Public Document Pack

Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park

Dover
a Kent CT16 3PJ
DOVER Telephone: (01304) 821199

DISTRICT Fax: (01304) 872452
COUNCIL DX: 6312

Minicom:  (01304) 820115
_ Website: www.dover.gov.uk
e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

6 December 2017

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held
in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Thursday 14 December 2017 at 6.00 pm when
the following business will be transacted.

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Kate Batty-Smith
on (01304) 872303 or by e-mail at kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk.

Yours sincerel

Chief Executive

Planning Committee Membership:

F J W Scales (Chairman)

B W Butcher (Vice-Chairman)
P M Beresford

T A Bond

D G Cronk

B Gardner

D P Murphy

M J Ovenden

G Rapley

P M Wallace

AGENDA
1 APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

To note appointments of Substitute Members.



10

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Page 5)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be
transacted on the agenda.

MINUTES

To confirm the Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 26 October and
16 November 2017 (to follow).

ITEMS DEFERRED (Pages 6-7)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

ITEMS WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO PUBLIC SPEAKING
(Pages 8-11)

APPLICATION NO DOV/17/01098 - 50 AND 51 BIGGIN STREET, DOVER (Pages
12-20)

Part Change of Use and conversion of first, second and third floor to nine self-
contained flats and installation of replacement shop front

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

APPLICATION NO DOV/17/01078 - THE TIDES, 9 ST MARGARET'S ROAD, ST
MARGARET'S BAY, DOVER (Pages 21-29)

Erection of a single storey link extension, garage and studio extension with
storage and gym above; two-storey rear extension and extension to existing
terrace (existing conservatory to be demolished)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

APPLICATION NO DOV/17/01107 - 25 GRANVILLE ROAD, WALMER (Pages 30-
36)

Erection of a two-storey front extension, extension to vehicular crossover and
enlargement of driveway (existing garage to be demolished)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

APPLICATION NO DOV/17/01165 - LAND BETWEEN THE CHALET AND
MILNER, CLAREMONT ROAD, KINGSDOWN (Pages 37-42)

Outline application for the erection of a detached dwelling (all matters
reserved)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

APPLICATION NO DOV/17/00967 - 5 ALEXANDRA ROAD, KINGSDOWN
(Pages 43-52)




11

12

13

14

Erection of a detached dwelling and garage, excavation of land and
demolition of existing garage

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

APPLICATION NO DOV/16/01356 - LAND AT MONKTON COURT LANE,
EYTHORNE (Pages 53-67)

Change of Use of land for the keeping of horses, the formation of a vehicle
access and the erection of a gate (retrospective application)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

APPLICATION NO DOV/14/00240 - EASTRY HOSPITAL, MILL LANE, EASTRY
(Pages 68-169)

Redevelopment of site to provide a total of 100 residential units comprising:
two-storey terrace, semi-detached and detached new-build dwellings; Change
of use and conversion of Tewkesbury House and the Chapel to provide 568
square metres of community space (Use Class D1), employment space (Use
Class B1) and two residential units; minor demolition, alteration and
conversion of the ‘Old Workhouse’ to provide ten residential units; retention
and reinstatement of the fire-damaged Range building and erection of a two-
storey terrace of ten residential units; car parking, landscaping, public open
space and alteration to existing access (Amended plans and documents)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regeneration and Development.

ITEMS WHICH ARE NOT SUBJECT TO PUBLIC SPEAKING

APPEALS AND INFORMAL HEARINGS

To receive information relating to Appeals and Informal Hearings, and appoint
Members as appropriate.

ACTION TAKEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORDINARY DECISIONS
(COUNCIL BUSINESS) URGENCY PROCEDURE

To raise any matters of concern in relation to decisions taken under the above
procedure and reported on the Official Members' Weekly News.

Access to Meetings and Information

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its
Committees and Sub-Committees. You may remain present throughout them except
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on

the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the Council Chamber
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.




. Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from
our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes will be published on our website as soon as
practicably possible after each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.

. If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Kate Batty-Smith,
Democratic Services Officer, telephone: (01304) 872303 or email: kate.batty-
smith@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.




Agenda Item No 3
Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must
disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance
that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any
matter in which they have declared a DPI| and must not participate in any discussion of, or
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to
do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a
DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the
commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and
must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are
permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving
evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the
same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote
taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's

procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for
transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter
under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code:

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside
bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person
involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would
affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her
financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a
Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member,
relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in

some cases a DPI.



Agenda Item No 5

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 14 DECEMBER 2017

CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS HAS BEEN

DEFERRED AT PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Members of the Planning Committee are asked to note that the following
application(s) have been deferred at previous meetings. Unless specified, these

applications are

not for determination at the meeting since the reasons for their

deferral have not yet been resolved.

1.

2.

3.

DOV/14/00240

DOV/16/01356

Redevelopment of site to provide a total of 100
residential units comprising: two-storey terrace,
semi-detached and detached new-build dwellings;
Change of Use and conversion of Tewkesbury
House and the Chapel to provide 568 square metres
of community space (Use Class D1), employment
space (Use Class B1) and two residential units;
minor demolition, alteration and conversion of the
‘Old Workhouse’ to provide ten residential units;
retention and reinstatement of the fire-damaged
Range building and erection of a two-storey terrace
of ten residential units; car parking, landscaping,
public open space and alteration to existing access
(Amended plans and documents) — Eastry Hospital,
Mill Lane, Eastry (Agenda Item 10 of 31 August
2017)

Change of use of land for the keeping of horses,
formation of a vehicle access and erection of a gate
(retrospective application) — Land at Monkton Court
Lane, Eythorne (Agenda Iltem 9 of 26 October 2017)

These items are dealt with elsewhere on the agenda

DOV/16/01476

Background Papers:

Erection of 70 dwellings, with access roads,
footpaths, drainage, associated parking provision,
groundworks, landscaping, open space and
associated infrastructure (existing buildings to be
demolished) — Land to the rear of Hyton Drive and
Roman Close, Church Lane, Sholden (Agenda Item
8 of 2 November 2017)

Unless otherwise stated, the appropriate application file, the reference of which is

stated.



MIKE EBBS
Head of Regeneration and Development

The Officer to whom reference should be made concerning inspection of the background papers is Alice
Fey, Support Team Supervisor, Planning Section, Council Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Dover
(Tel: 01304 872468).



APPLICATIONS WHICH MAY BE SUBJECT TO PUBLIC SPEAKING

The Reports

The file reference number, a description of the proposal and its location are identified under
a) of each separate item. The relevant planning policies and guidance and the previous
planning history of the site are summarised at ¢) and d) respectively.

The views of third parties are set out at e); the details of the application and an appraisal of
the proposal are set out at f) and each item concludes with a recommendation at g).

Additional information received prior to the meeting will be reported verbally. In some
circumstances this may lead to a change in the recommendation.

Details of the abbreviated standard conditions, reasons for refusal and informatives may be
obtained from the Planning Support Team Supervisor (Tel: 01304 872468).

It should be noted, in respect of points raised by third parties in support of or objecting to
applications, that they are incorporated in this report only if they concern material planning
considerations.

Each item is accompanied by a plan (for identification purposes only) showing the location of
the site and the Ordnance Survey Map reference.

Site Visits

All requests for site visits will be considered on their merits having regard to the likely
usefulness to the Committee in reaching a decision.

The following criteria will be used to determine usefulness:

. The matter can only be safely determined after information has been acquired
directly from inspecting this site;

. There is a need to further involve the public in the decision-making process as a
result of substantial local interest, based on material planning considerations, in the
proposals;

° The comments of the applicant or an objector cannot be adequately expressed in

writing because of age, infirmity or illiteracy.
The reasons for holding a Committee site visit must be included in the minutes.

Background Papers

Unless otherwise stated, the background papers will be the appropriate file in respect of
each application, save any document which discloses exempt information within the
meaning of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.

The Officer to whom reference should be made concerning inspection of the background
papers is Alice Fey, Planning Support Team Supervisor, Planning Department, Council
Offices, White Cliffs Business Park, Whitfield, Dover CT16 3PJ (Tel: 01304 872468).



IMPORTANT

The Committee should have regard to the following preamble during its consideration of all

applications on this agenda

1.

Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires that, in dealing with an
application for planning permission, the local planning authority shall have regard to the
provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other
material considerations.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that: ‘If regard is to
be had to the development plan for the purposes of any determination to be made under the
Planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise’.

Planning applications which are in accordance with the relevant policies in the Development Plan
should be allowed and applications which are not in accordance with those policies should not
be allowed unless material considerations justify granting of planning permission. In deciding
such applications, it should always be taken into account whether the proposed development
would cause demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged importance. In all cases where the
Development Plan is relevant, it will be necessary to decide whether the proposal is in
accordance with the Plan and then to take into account material considerations.

In effect, the following approach should be adopted in determining planning applications:

(a) if the Development Plan contains material policies or proposals and there are no other
material considerations, the application should be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan;

(b) where there are other material considerations, the Development Plan should be taken as
the starting point and the other material considerations should be weighed in reaching a
decision;

(c) where there are no relevant policies in the Development Plan, the planning application
should be determined on its merits in the light of all material considerations; and

(d) exceptionally, a development proposal which departs from the Development Plan may be
permitted because the contribution of that proposal to some material, local or national need
or objective is so significant that it outweighs what the Development Plan says about it.

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that, in
considering planning applications for development affecting a listed building or its setting, special
regard shall be had to the desirability of preserving the building, its setting or any features of
special architectural or historical interest which it possesses. Section 72 requires that special
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of conservation areas when considering any applications affecting land or buildings within them.
Section 16 requires that, when considering applications for listed building consent, special regard
shall be had to the desirability of preserving the listed building, its setting, or features of special
architectural or historic interest which it has.

Section 38(6) of the 2004 Act does not apply to the determination of applications for
advertisement consent, listed building consent or conservation area consent. Applications for
advertisement consent can be controlled only in the interests of amenity and public safety.
However, regard must be had to policies in the Development Plan (as material considerations)
when making such determinations.

The Development Plan

7.

The Development Plan in Dover District is comprised of:

Dover District Core Strategy 2010

Dover District Land Allocations Local Plan 2015
Dover District Local Plan 2002 (saved policies)
Worth Neighbourhood Development Plan (2015)
Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2016



Human Rights Act 1998

During the processing of all applications and other items and the subsequent preparation of
reports and recommendations on this agenda, consideration has been given to the
implications of the Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to both applicants and other parties
and whether there would be any undue interference in the Convention rights of any person
affected by the recommended decision.

The key articles are:-

Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence. There shall
be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except such as is in
accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic society in the interests of national
security, public safety or the economic well being of the country, for the prevention of
disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the protection of the rights and
freedoms of others.

Article 1 of the First Protocol - Right of the individual to the peaceful enjoyment of his
possessions. No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and
subject to the conditions provided for by law and by the general principles of international
law.

Account may also be taken of:-

Article 6 - Right to a fair trial and public trial within a reasonable time.

Article 10 - Right to free expression.

Article 14 - Prohibition of discrimination.

The Committee needs to bear in mind that its decision may interfere with the rights of
particular parties, particularly under Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol. The decision

should be a balanced one and taken in the wider public interest, as reflected also in planning
policies and other material considerations.

(PTS/PLAN/GEN) HUMANRI

10



PUBLIC SPEAKING AT PLANNING COMMITTEE

10.

11.

The scheme for public speaking at Planning Committee only concerns matters
relating to the determination of individual applications for planning permission
contained in the Planning Committee agenda and not to other matters such as Tree
Preservation Orders or Enforcement.

The scheme for public speaking will apply at each meeting where an individual
application for planning permission is considered by the Planning Committee.

Any person wishing to speak at the Planning Committee should submit a written
request using this form and indicate clearly whether the speaker is in favour of, or
opposed to, the planning application.

The form must be returned to Democratic Support no later than two working days
prior to the meeting of the Planning Committee.

Speaking opportunities will be allocated on a first come, first served basis but with
the applicant being given first chance of supporting the scheme. Applicants or
agents will be notified of requests to speak. Third parties who have applied to speak
will be notified of other requests only when these directly affect their application to
speak. The names, addresses and telephone numbers of people who wish to speak
may be given to other people who share their views and have expressed a wish to
address the Committee. The identified speaker may defer to another at the discretion
of the Chairman of the Committee.

One person will be allowed to speak in favour of, and one person allowed to speak
against, each application. The maximum time limit will be three minutes per speaker.
This does not affect a person’s right to speak at a site visit if the Committee decides
one should be held.

Public speakers will not be permitted to distribute photographs or written documents
at the Committee meeting.

The procedure to be followed when members of the public address the Committee
will be as follows:

Chairman introduces item.
Planning Officer updates as appropriate.

(a
(b
(

S— — ~—

c Chairman invites the member of the public and Ward Councillor(s) to speak,
with the applicant or supporter last.

(d) Planning Officer clarifies as appropriate.

(e) Committee debates the application.

(f) The vote is taken.

In addition to the arrangements outlined in paragraph 6 above, District Councillors
who are not members of the Committee may be permitted to address the Planning
Committee for three minutes in relation to planning applications in their Ward. This is
subject to giving formal notice of not less than two working days and advising
whether they are for or against the proposals. In the interests of balance, a further
three minutes’ representation on the contrary point of view will be extended to the
identified or an additional speaker. If other District Councillors wish to speak, having
given similar notice and with the agreement of the Chairman, this opportunity will be
further extended as appropriate.

Agenda items will be taken in the order listed.

The Chairman may, in exceptional circumstances, alter or amend this procedure as
deemed necessary.

11



%

X
/ o}&’

This plan has been produced for Planning Committee purposes only. No furtf{8REBiEEMYP Be made.
s v

Caves
Court

War
Memoria|

&

+

Biggin Gate
(site of)

Not to scale Application: DOV/17/01098
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material N
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 50 & 51 Biggin Street
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Dover
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. CT16 1DB

Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2017

TR31814156 gl
Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site = =

i plall ] DOVER
identification only. N 2Tt




DOV/17/01098 — Part change of use and conversion of first, second and
third floor to nine self-contained flats and installation of a replacement
shopfront - 50 and 51 Biggin Street, Dover

Reason for report: The application has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Jones and
Councillor Collor.

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be granted

Planning Policies and Guidance

Core Strategy Policies

e DM1 — Development will not be permitted outside of the settlement confines,
unless it is specifically justified by other development plan policies, or it
functionally requires such a location, or it is ancillary to existing development or
uses.

e DM13 - Parking provision should be design-led, based upon an area’s
characteristics, the nature of the development and design objectives, having
regard for the guidance in Table 1.1 of the Core Strategy.

Land Allocations Local Plan (LALP)

o DM27 - sets out standards for providing open space to meet the additional need
generated by residential development of 5 or more dwellings. It also requires that
a minimum of 15 years maintenance be demonstrated. Where it is impractical to
provide open space on site, consideration will be given to accepting a commuted
payment to providing and maintaining improvements to existing facilities.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

e Paragraph 7 of the NPPF states that there are three dimensions to sustainable
development: economic, social and environmental.

e Paragraph 11 states that “planning law requires that applications for planning
permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise”.

e Paragraph 23 sets out ‘planning policies should be positive, promote competitive
town centre environments and set out policies for the management and grown of
town centres over the plan period and amongst other things that should

¢ Recognise town centres as the heart of their communities and pursue policies to
support their viability;

¢ Recognise that residential development can play an important role in ensuring
the viability of centres and set out policies to encourage residential development
on appropriate sites; and

e Paragraph 123 advises that planning policies and decisions should aim to avoid
noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life
as a result of new development.

e Paragraph 129. “Local Planning Authorities should identify and assess the
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal,
taking into account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise. They



d)

should take this assessment into account when considering the impact of a
proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict between the heritage
asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal”.

e Paragraphs "132 — 134."Consideration has to be given to whether there is
significant harm, less than substantial harm or neutral harm to heritage assets".

Planning Act (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 1990

Section 72 (1) requires LPAs to have a duty to respect conservation areas
in the exercising of planning functions. It states that special attention shall
be paid to the desirability of preserving and enhancing the character and
appearance of the area.

The Kent Design Guide (KDG)
The Guide provides criteria and advice on providing well designed development.

Flat Conversion Guidelines 2006

e Advises on room and unit sizes and facilities required to provide a good level of
amenity for future residents.

Guidance on Shopfronts within Conservation Areas.

¢ Provides advice to help ensure that alterations to shopfronts will preserve or
enhance the conservation area.

The Kent Design Guide (KDG)

e The Guide provides criteria and advice on providing well designed development.

Relevant Planning History

Pre-application advice was sought, a planning officer met with the owners and
architect at the site. Following the meeting written advice was given and several
queries and concerns were raised which the applicant responded to in the
presentation of this application.

Consultee and Third Party Responses

Councillor Jones —I am calling this application so the Committee can consider
whether it meets the required criteria in DDC planning policies on the impact of
development in a conservation area, the retention and reinstatement of traditional
shop fronts and the minimum guidelines for the development of flats.

Councillor Collor — | formally request that this application is heard and decided by
the Planning Committee. We are in desperate need for more residential
accommodation and we need to improve the street scene in Central Dover. This
scheme would help to achieve these aims.

Principal Heritage Officer — Detailed written advice was given to the architect
regarding the interpretation of the SPD, the character of surrounding shop fronts and
alterations to the shop front at 50 and 51 Biggin Street. Subject to conditions the
Heritage Officer does not raise an objection to the amended plans.

Environmental Health — no objection subject to a condition requiring sound proofing.

14



f)

Principal Infrastructure Officer — Policy DM27 is applicable because it is not a tariff-
style payment, however the commuted sum contribution would be extremely small.
Furthermore, it would use up one of the five pooled payments for the project at
Pencester Gardens. No final figure has been given and the contribution not sought.

KCC Highway Services — no objection because the proposed would not generate
more car parking than the existing lawful use and the site is within a town centre
location. Standard informative is suggested if permission is granted.

Dover Society — Object for the following summarised reason;

Storage of rubbish — this could result in bags being left on the pavement and
attacked by seagulls resulting in a mess in a very public area.

Shop front design — the use of porcelain tiles erodes the historic character. The shop
front should be similar to the one at Burtons.

Room sizes

Dover Town Council — Objects

The density of flats is too high

Inadequate natural daylight

Not enough space for bin and bike store

The shopfront is not being retained and the proposed shopfront would not enhance
the conservation area.

Third Party — 4 objections received the comments are summarised as follows;

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Supporting the views expressed by the Town Council and Dover Society
The flats are too small and of poor quality
poor residential amenity for the future occupiers

The Site and the Proposal

The site is located within the urban confines of Dover within a primary shopping
frontage. It is also within a designated conservation area.

Biggin Street is characterised by three storey, terraced buildings entirely
commercial in character at road level. The upper floors generally appear to be
used for a mixture of storage, commercial or residential accommodation.

No.50 and 51 have a vacant retail unit at ground floor level, the upper floors are
also vacant and have been for many years. The Design and Access statement
advises that the last known use was as a hotel but there is no evidence of this
throughout the building.

The buildings do not benefit from a rear curtilage or access, the sole access to
the floors above is through the retail units. Permission will also be sought for a
new self-contained access from Biggin Street, this will be created by reducing the
width of unit 51 and inserting a passage way and staircase behind a new front
door.

Planning permission is being sought for the change of use and conversion of the
first, second and third floor to residential accommodation. The proposal is for 3 x
studio flats and 6 x 1 bedroom flats.

A new staircase to access the flats from ground level will need to be provided.
This will be achieved by the subdivision of the retail unit at no.51 by creating a

15



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.

1m wide passage way. The creation of the passage will result in a narrower shop
and the provision of a new shop frontage.

Main Issues
The main issues are:

The principle of the development

The impact on residential amenities

The impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area
The impact on the highway network

Other matters

Assessment
Principle

The site is located within the urban area and specifically within Dover Town
Centre. The NPPF advises LPA’s to support development which will enhance the
vitality and viability of town centres. This development would bring more people
into the town centre, the residents would use the amenities and surrounding
shops which in turn would boost the vitality and viability of the town centre.

In addition the conversion of the upper floors to flats appears to be in-line with
the Governments ‘No Use Empty’ programme. Thus the principle of the
development is considered to be acceptable, because

Character, Appearance and Heritage

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF advises that when considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great
weight should be given to the asset’s conservation. The existing shopfront is
modern but is of traditional detailing. The new shop front as originally proposed
was considered unacceptable and detrimental to the visual appearance of the
conservation area, alterations and amended plans were sought.

The Heritage Officer advised that drawings were rather basic and that the
existing plans were inaccurate as they did not show the shopfront correctly, for
example no pilasters and the fascia did not extend up to the underside of the first
floor windows. The Heritage Officer stated that the essential issue, is that the
surround needs to remain in place, there is no need to replace the shopfront in its
entirety to install a secondary door and the existing can be altered.

The Heritage Officer produced a draft sketch for the applicant to help explain and
offered the following advice;

e ‘The existing pilasters, corbels, upper fascia and cornice should be retained
(as shown in green on the draft sketch) the lower is a modern insertion.

¢ | have shown the doors at either end of the shopfront window. This allows for
the central section to be divided with a main central mullion and each section
of glazing either side to be divided into two. This will allow for half to be
obscure glazed for the bin storage beyond, and half to remain clear for the
shop unit.

16



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

e The proposed ventilation grill has been removed and a set of glazed panes
runs across the top of the doors and windows. The personal door to the flats
must be solid so the glazed panel above lights the hallway beyond.

¢ We have no details of the signage proposed, but the fascia is all one unit and
should not be split up. | suggest a simple sign fixed to the inner face of the
recessed doorway with the flat details.

e The stall riser can be tiled but we will need details to ensure that it is
traditionally detailed. A cill needs to be provided.

¢ Aluminium is not an acceptable material under our SPD. The shopfront must
be made of timber’.

The architect has taken on board the advice from the Heritage Officer and has
amended the shopfront. The Heritage Officer advises that is ‘a more
appropriately traditionally detailed shopfront with doors set at either end of the
windows’. The shopfront as amended will restore and retain elements of the
existing and replace with traditional fittings and materials where it is not possible
to retain.

At the request of Waste Services a recessed area behind the faux shop front will
be provided, this area will be used for the deposition of rubbish sacks on
collection day. Waste Services have advised that nine flats are likely to generate
18 bags of rubbish a week and this area will prevent the sacks from being left on
the public highway. It is acknowledged that rubbish left on the public highway and
in particular this high profile area will be harmful to the area.

Although the faux shopfront is an unusual feature it is not harmful to the
conservation area. The shopfront at no. 51 will be narrow, but there is a mixture
of shop types and sizes in Biggin Street and High Street and this would not be
incongruous.

Paragraph 134 of the NPPF advises that where a development proposal will lead
to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset,
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including
securing its optimum viable use. The existing shops are empty and have been
vacant for some time; they are in a poor state of repair and visually detract from
the character and appearance of the shopping area and the wider conservation
area. The change to the shopfront would enhance the character and appearance
of the conservation area and would result in less than substantial harm, and is
outweighed by the public benefits of the development. The proposal complies
with the NPPF.

The only other alteration to the front elevation would be the insertion of two roof
lights into the roof, this would only be glimpsed from the front streetscene and not
harmful to the conservation area. The existing timber sash windows are to be
retained and repaired.

Impact on Residential Amenity

It is unclear what the use of the first-floor accommodation in the directly adjoining
buildings are; some appear to be residential, office or storage. However, the
change of use would not have an impact on these uses and it is not significantly
different to the lawful hotel use. Furthermore the adjoining uses are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the future residential amenities of the occupiers.
Environmental Health have been consulted and they are satisfied with the level
of soundproofing to mitigate resultant impacts.

17



2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

At the rear of the site (south west) there is a building known as The Warehouse
which is accessed off Worthington Street, this building is converted to flats and
has windows that look towards the rear of the application building. The
separation distance is approximately 14m and the buildings are set at an oblique
angle to each other. On balance it is considered that the level of overlooking is
negligible and would not be harmful to the amenities of the occupiers.

In terms of noise disturbances, in the event of planning permission being
granted, it is recommended by Environmental Health that a condition be imposed
requiring the submission of details of sound insulation between the residential
and commercial parts of the development to ensure high standard of living
conditions.

Housing Standards

Housing standards are set to ensure that there is a reasonable level of residential
amenity for the future occupiers. The Flat Conversion SPG advises that, self-

contained studio flats should not have an overall floor area of less than 30 m2.

Each studio room should have a minimum net floor area of 16 m2. If the kitchen
is combined with this room, the area should be 6 m2 larger. A separate kitchen

should have a net minimum size of 5.6m2. In addition to this accommodation
there should be a bathroom/shower-room and W.C. There are 3 studio flats in

this proposal and the floor area of the studios are between 36 and 37mZ2 which is
larger than the recommended size guide of 30m2

The Flat Conversion SPG advises that 1 bed flats should not be less than 40 m2

and should have a bedroom 11m2 and a living room/kitchen/dining room 20m2.
All of the 6 flats comply with the individual room sizes but only 2 of them have an

overall floor area of 40m2 the remaining 4 flats range in size from 36m2 to

39.7m2 as this is only slightly below the recommended standard and the overall
room sizes comply it is considered that on balance the proposal is acceptable.

Natural light and out look to the studio flats is limited, to one aspect. The
applicant has however chosen to insert additional windows into the studio flats
which would allow extra light into the units. Internal low level privacy screens will
be provided adjacent to the sleeping areas, which will allow natural light to filter
over the top. The sleeping area in the studio flats is likely to be the darkest area
which is the furthest away from the windows. However, this is considered on
balance to be acceptable as the flats are small.

A communal bin storage area is provided on the terrace at the rear of the
building. On collection day the residents will be expected to bring the bags of
rubbish to the front of the property and to leave them in the recessed collection
area adjacent to the shop front.

There is a minimal amount of private amenity space, on the terrace for the
occupiers. The flats are small and are not expected to be family accommodation.
The site is however in close proximity to the seafront and Pencester Gardens.

Impact on the Local Highway Network

18



2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

KCC highway services do not object to this proposal, it is considered that the
lawful use of the building as a hotel would have generated a greater demand of
car parking then the proposed 9 flats. Furthermore the future occupiers would be
living in a sustainable location within the town centre close to public transport and
car parks.

The provision of bicycle storage was considered and could have been provided
but this would’ve been at the expense of the bin storage area on the terrace. As
KCC highway authority did not consider bike storage to be a necessity it was not
pursued further. A neat and tidy street frontage is considered an important
feature in such a location.

Other Matters

The NPPG advises that there are specific circumstances where contributions for
affordable housing and tariff style planning obligations (section 106 planning
obligations) should not be sought from small scale and self-build development.
This follows the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13 May 2016, which give legal
effect to the policy set out in the written ministerial statement of 28 November
2014 and should be taken into account. In this case therefore contributions are
not being sought.

Policy DM27 seeks the provision of open space it is applicable because the
development is for more than 5 units. It is impractical to provide open space on —
site and there are existing facilities (Pencester Gardens) within the access
distance which could be improved by the provision of a commuted payment. This
policy is not a tariff style contribution and would meet CIL reg. 122. However in
this instance, due to small size of the flats (studio and 1 bed flats) and the low of
number of units (nine) the commuted sum would be minimal and would be
counted towards the 5 pooled payments for this scheme. The Principal
Infrastructure Officer has not calculated figure and not pursued the contribution.
On balance it is not considered reasonable to make a request for a financial
payment.

Conclusion

The proposed development would make good use of a vacant building, within a
prominent town centre location. The introduction of flats would help to enhance
the vitality and viability of the area and would boost the wider economy. It would
provide much needed small units of accommodation in a sustainable location.
The change would also result in a new shopfront; which would improve the
appearance and quality of the building and thus preserving and enhancing the
conservation area. It is accepted that the units are small but on balance it is
considered that any shortfall in floor area is outweighed by the benefit brought by
the proposal.

Recommendation

PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to the following (summarised conditions)
conditions:

1) Standard time condition

2) In accordance with approved plans

3) Samples of materials to be submitted

4) Full constructional details of the proposed shopfront

19



5) The new shopfront at no.51 shall be fully installed prior to first occupation of
any flat

6) The new windows in the rear elevation of the building serving flats, 1, 2, 5
and 8 shall be of timber construction (to match existing)

7) Prior to the first occupation of any unit, the 1.8m high trellis as shown on the
rear terrace shall be fully erected

8) Full particulars and details of a scheme for sound insulation between the
proposed first floor residential development and the commercial uses on the
ground floor shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details on measures to ensure
that there are no flanking transmission paths for noise between the
commercial and residential premises. The approved scheme shall be installed
before the first occupation of flats 1, 2 and 3

9) Prior to the first occupation of any flat hereby granted the bin storage area
on the terrace and the recessed bin area behind the shop front, shall be
provided

I Powers be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to settle
any necessary planning conditions in line with the issues set out in the
recommendation and as resolved by planning committee

Case Officer

Rachel Humber



This plan has been produced for Planning Committee purposes only. No

Bay Hill

Foreland

Little

)
) )|+ Stone
)

’ Foreland
House

furtheepdpitembe

Memorial Ground

South Lawn

Studio

Thalassa

e made.

Not to scale

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2017

Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site
identification only.

Application: DOV/17/01078
The Tides
9 St Margarets Road
St Margarets Bay
CT156EQ
TR36394429 P @




b)

DOV/17/01078 - Erection of a single storey link extension, garage and
studio extension with storage and gym above, two-storey rear extension
and extension to existing terrace (existing conservatory to be demolished) -
The Tides, 9 St Margaret’s Road, St Margaret’s Bay

Reason for report: Contrary views (7)

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission should be Granted.

Planning Policy and Guidance

Dover District Council Core Strategy

Policy CP1 states the location and scale of development in the District must
comply with the settlement Hierarchy. The Hierarchy should also be used by
infrastructure providers to inform decisions about the provision of their services.
Policy DM1 states that development will not be permitted outside the confines
unless specifically justified by other plan policies, or it functionally requires such a
location, or it is ancillary to existing development or uses.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012

Paragraph 7 sets out 3 dimensions to sustainable development — the economic,
social and environmental role which should not be undertaken in isolation.
Paragraph 14 states ‘that at its heart there is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Where the development plan is absent, silent or out of
date this means granting permission unless any adverse impacts of doing so
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed
against the Framework as a whole’.
Paragraph 17 sets out the core planning principles... Planning should....
always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all
existing and future occupants of land and buildings...”take account of the
different roles and character of different areas, promoting the viability of our main
urban areas, protecting the Green Belts, around them, recognising the intrinsic
character and beauty of the countryside and supporting thriving rural communities
within it...."
Paragraph 56 states ‘the Government attaches great importance to the design of
the built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development,
is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making
places better for people’.
Paragraph 58 sets out amongst other things that comprehensive policies that set
planning decisions should aim to ensure the development;
o Will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the
short term but over the lifetime of development.
o Establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to
create attractive and comfortable places to live, work and visit;
¢ Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate development, create
and sustain an appropriate mix of uses (including incorporation of green
and other public spaces as parts of developments) and support local
facilities and transport networks.
o Respond well to local character and history, and reflect the identity of
local surroundings and material, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation.

22



o Create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and
the fear of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion;
and

o Are visually attractive as a good result of good architecture and
appropriate landscaping’.

Paragraph 60, Planning policies and decisions should not attempt to impose
architectural styles or particular tastes and they should not stifle innovation. It is,
however, proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness".
Paragraph 61, Although visual appearance and the architecture of individual
buildings are very important factors, securing high quality and inclusive design
goes beyond aesthetic considerations. Therefore, planning policies and decisions
should address the connections between people and places and the integration
of new development into the natural, built and historic environment.
Paragraph 64, ‘permission should be refused for development of poor design that
fails to take the opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area
and the way it functions’.
"132. When considering the impact of a proposed development on the
significance of a designated asset, great weight should be given to the asset's
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be.
Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction of the
heritage asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are
irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification.
Substantial harm to or loss of a grade |l listed building, park or garden should be
exceptional. Substantial harm to or loss of designated heritage assets of the
highest significance".
"133. Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or total loss
of significance of a designated heritage asset, Local Planning Authorities should
refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or loss is
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss.
"134. Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to
the significance of a designated asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum
viable use".

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 Section 72 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires that the decision maker
should pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character
or appearance of the conservation area.

Dover District Council Core Strategy (adopted 2010)

Policy DM1 states that development will not be permitted outside the confines unless
specifically justified by other plan policies, or it functionally requires such a location, or
is ancillary to existing development or uses.

Policy DM13 ‘Parking provision should be a designed led process based upon the
characteristics of the site, the locality, the nature of the proposed development and its
design objectives’.

Dover District Council Local Plan (adopted 2002)

None applicable.

Dover District Council Land Allocation (adopted 2015)




None applicable.

Other Guidance/Relevant Matters

Kent Design Guidance.

(d) Relevant Planning History

DOV/89/01050 — The Tides — proposed extensions to form sun lounge and conservatory.
DOV/02/00251 — Land rear of The Tides — erection of detached dwelling and detached
garage.

DOV/04/01162 — The Tides — erection of first floor side extension and lower ground
floor extension.

DOV/15/00030 — Site next to The Tides — Erection of a detached bungalow and
attached garage — Refused.

DOV/16/00891 — Erection of a single storey side and rear extension and roof extension
to garage, insertion of rooflights, erection of decking and balcony with balustrade -
Refused

PRE/17/00076 — advice was given concerning extensions and alterations to the
dwelling with a linkway and erection of a replacement garage.

The main concern was the potential impact the gym/garage addition would have in
respect of potential overlooking and the substantial size and scale and forward
projection of 4.5 metres beyond the front wall of the house.

(e) Consultee and Third Party Responses

Dover District Council Principle Heritage Officer:

Verbally confirmed no objection to the application.

St Margarets Parish Council — objects

This is an overdevelopment of the site, incongruous in the conservation area and
blocking seaward view.

Third Party Responses:

Local residents; 7 letters of objections have been received and are summarised below;

o The proposal will extend beyond the main body of house, beyond the natural
building line at the rear with not one but four extended balconies.

o Overlooking;

o The two storey building described as a gym/study with bathroom takes up nearly

half the garden, the slanted full height ground floor windows and two first floor
velux window, this would amount to a self-contained annexe or separate dwelling
which could be used such as a b&b;

o It would be unsightly for the conservation area;

o The design and access statement indicates that a new hedge will be planted on
the north east boundary, helping to reduce overlooking. It is not possible to grow
a hedge high enough to stop the overlooking from this proposed two storey
building. The architects have stated that there is an overlooking problem;

. The demolition of the existing conservatory and the replacement with a flat roofed
extension to the ground floor living area could be used as a balcony;
) Part of the terracing is immediately adjacent to the neighbouring dwelling and the

extension could cause noise nuisance to both properties;

24



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

The proposed development in overdevelopment, especially if it is sub-divided; the
continuous masonry would stretch from boundary to boundary with very little
clearance either side;

The rear garden was recently made up by 4 feet leaving a normal height person
standing on the lawn some 3 or 4 feet above the 2 metre high fence;

Two previous applications have been received and refused;

The end of the garden has purposely not been made up previously as the wall
which divides the properties is not fit for purpose and the garden has always
sloped so steeply it was maintained as an orchard;

If the glass walkway was not completed for any reason, the position would be two
separate buildings;

The proposed development is intrusive;

The development is not in keeping within the street scene;

The proposed development would look cramped and would detract from what is a
lovely road containing mostly large detached houses of character with
appropriately sized gardens;

The bulk, scale and mass is huge and very similar to that of the last two refused
applications;

The road forms part of the Saxon shoreline walk and is used by tourists and
walkers each year; these views will not be visible if the road develops in this way,
this visual amenity forms the basis of the conservation area;

It is unneighbourly;

No objection to the extensions to the house to the front/rear which would provide
extra space with minimum impact on the environment and conservation area;

The Site and the Proposal

The application site is within the village of St Margaret’s in the conservation area.
The Tides is a two storey dwelling with single storey extensions to the north
eastern and south western elevations. The Tides is set back from the back edge
of the footpath by off street parking provision. To the south west of The Tides is a
single storey garage with a tiled, hipped roof.

The application site falls from the north west from St Margaret's Road to the
south east. The site is currently falls from the road level, to a retaining wall and
then to the driveway to access the garage. The garage is on the flat platform, with
a 1.5 metre drop in the land level behind it. The land then continues to fall in a
south easterly direction to the rear site boundary. The rear boundary consists of a
retaining wall and there is a significant hedging dividing the application site and
lllawarra to the rear.

lllawarra a two storey detached dwelling set below the garden level of The Tides
and there is a significant difference in ground levels between the two sites, with a
a detached garage to the south west of the dwelling. Access is gained to this site
by a drive on the south west boundary of the application site. To the north east is
The Shrubbery a two storey detached dwelling with terracing to the rear
elevation.

Proposed Development

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey link extension,
garage and studio extension with storage and gym above, two storey rear
extension and an extension to the existing terrace (existing garage and
conservatory to be demolished).

25



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.0
2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

The proposed extensions to the main dwellinghouse includes a single storey
extension to the north eastern elevation measuring 4 metres x 6 metres with a flat
roof over. The two storey flank elevation to the north eastern elevation would
measure 1.5 metres in width x 6.2 metres in depth with a hipped roof over. The
two storey side extension to the north west would measure 3 metres in width x 7
metres in depth continuing the existing roof form with a hipped roof over.

The two storey rear extension would measure 14 metres x 1.5 metres
incorporating two gable ends and four recessed balconies. The entire rear
elevation will be aluminium framed glazed and would have timber clad window
surrounds at first floor.

A link extension is proposed to connect the garage to the dwellinghouse with an
overall height of 2.2 metres, with timber cladding to the street front elevation and
glazing to the entire rear elevation.

New hedgerow planting is proposed to the north east and south west boundaries.

The replacement garage would have an overall eaves height of 6.2 metres, with a
width of 6.3 metres and a length of 13 metres. The rear elevation would have
glazing to the first and ground floor levels.

Main Issues
The main issues for consideration are;

Principle of the development.

Design and impact within the street scene.
Impact on conservation Area

Impact on residential amenity

Highway safety.

Assessment

Principle of Development

The site is located within the St Margaret's settlement boundary. The
development is acceptable in principle, subject to other material considerations
as set out below.

Design, Visual Amenity and Appearance of the Street Scene

Paragraph 60 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets out that ‘planning
policies and decisions should not attempt to impose architectural styles or
particular tastes and they should not stifle innovation, originality or initiative
through unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development
forms or styles. It is however, proper to seek to promote or reinforce local
distinctiveness. Within the immediate locality the area is characterised by
properties that have been altered to be contemporary in design as well as
those that have been retained the traditional  features. The side extension to
this dwelling is an interpretation of the existing form of the dwelling incorporating
the features of the hipped and gable ends of the building.

A link is proposed connecting the dwelling to the proposed garage with a height
of 2.2 metres. Given the boundary treatment to the front of the site including

26



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

dwarf walls, gates and screening and the use of sympathetic materials it is
considered this element of the proposal would not be unnatural or intrusive or
result in any adverse harm to the character and appearance of the street scene.

Previous planning applications have been refused in respect of the replacement
garage being an incongruous feature within the street scene by virtue of the bulk,
scale, form and design features. Pre-application has also been given in respect
of the proposed garage with the main concerns arising from these discussions
being the proposed size and siting of the garage with a forward projection as it
would have competed with the dwelling. The applicant has overcome these
concerns by siting the garage behind the front building line by 1.4 metres and
designed it with a hipped roof. The original application sought planning
permission for a garage measuring 14.8 metres in length and concerns were
raised over the over bulk, scale and massing and amendments were sought. The
replacement garage has been reduced by 3.5 metres and the resultant garage is
of a suitable scale and form which would not appear as an overly dominant
feature within the wider street scene or compete with the form and scale of the
existing dwelling.

The rear extensions are of a contemporary design and would continue to allow
long views through towards the sea. The rear elements of the extension would
not be readily visible from the public realm, are considered innovative,
contemporary and are sympathetic in scale and form are acceptable.

New hedgerow planting is proposed to the north east and south west
boundaries. This would, in time help alleviate the resultant impact of the garage
building from the west, in particular, which is where the impact of the extensions
would be most noticeable.

The materials indicated to be used on the development is untreated natural
timber cladding, with matching brick. The cladding would overtime would weather
to blend in with the other materials proposed here. Due to the amount of glazing
proposed within the rear of the proposed development and given the position
within an effective hillside terrace, it is considered appropriate to condition the
use of non-reflective glazing to ensure there would be no glare from the sun,
which would reduce the visual impact when viewed from any public viewpoint.
The finishes are a blend of contemporary and more traditional materials and are
considered acceptable.

For the reasons set out above the overall development is not considered to be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene and complies
with the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Impact on Conservation Area

The general characteristics of this area of the St Margaret's conservation area
are substantial properties within larger plots with gaps and spaces around the
buildings through, to the south east, towards the sea. Views to and from this site
are achieved from the street, and from the distance, from coastal walks.

It is necessary to consider the impact and harm of a proposed development on
the significant of a heritage asset and great weight is given to assets
conservation. Where a development is considered to result in less than
substantial harm, this harm has to be weighed against public benefits.

27



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

The gaps and spaces between and around dwellings in this street scene
contribute towards the character and appearance of the conservation of the
conservation area in this instance. The gaps and spaces around buildings, allow
through views and relief to an otherwise built frontage to be retained.

In this case the development would amount to an extension to a dwelling, of a
relative and domestic scale and incorporate design features, characteristics of the
existing dwelling. Although readily visible in the street, due to the retention and
safeguarding of the existing gaps and spaces around the building, it is not
considered, compared to the wider form and scale of built development in the
street scene, in this location, that there would be substantial harm or less than
substantial harm caused to the significance of the heritage asset. It should be
noted that the Conservation Officer raises no objection.

In heritage terms therefore the proposals are considered acceptable and
sufficiently National Planning Policy Framework compliant.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Loss of outlook/overshadowing

Concerns have been raised by local residents in respect of the potential in the
loss of outlook by virtue of the extensions. However as set out in above it is
considered the proposed development would maintain the gaps and spaces
between the dwelling and the proposed garage and around the resultant
buildings and would not result in a loss of outlook currently enjoyed. It is not
considered that due to the siting of the extensions and distances away from
neighbours that there would be harm to residential outlook.

In respect of the potential for overshadowing/overbearing effect the proposed
extension to the south eastern elevation is to remain as a single storey extension
and would not be closer to the dividing boundary. The two storey element of the
development would be well contained within the site. The proposed development
would not lead to any additional overshadowing and would not result in harm to
the residential amenity in respect of it being overbearing.

Overlooking

The proposed development has been designed with an expanse of glazing within
the rear elevation and the replacement garage at first floor. The design
incorporates balconies, which have been designed to be recessed within the
gable ends; this limits the potential outward views towards adjacent
properties. It is accepted the entire rear elevation of the dwelling and first floor of
the new garage will be glazed. The topography of the land form here means that
views towards the sea would largely be across the south east; Downwards views
as such would be limited. In addition, due to the intervening boundary treatment
to the southern boundary of The Tides, views towards lllawarra would be
interrupted by this feature. There may be some increasingly distant overlooking
towards this property, but any views achieved would be largely of lllawarra’s front
parking area and part of their side garden. Their private amenity space to the rear
of the dwelling would be screened from views by lllawarra itself. Conditions can
be attached regarding the retention of the rear boundary.

Residential amenity concerns have been given careful consideration, particularly
in the light of previous refusals. In this case, due to the topography of the

28



3.18

41

5.
5.1

(9)

landscape distances of extensions from the most likely affected neighbour, the
intervening boundary treatment and siting of the neighbouring properties, it is
considered that the development would not result in undue loss of amenity and
harm. Accordingly the development is considered to be National Planning Policy
Framework Complaint.

Other Residential Amenity Matters

The existing conservatory is to be demolished and replaced with a flat roofed
single storey extension. Of concern to a local resident is the potential for the roof
area to be used as a balcony as it would result in direct overlooking of the primary
amenity space. However, planning permission would be required for the use of
the flat roof as a balcony as the General Permitted Development Order 2015
(England) (as amended) does not allow the construction or provision of a
veranda, balcony or raised platform without planning permission.

Highway Safety

The existing parking arrangements will remain unchanged and therefore the
proposal complies with the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy
Framework and policy DM13 of the Core Strategy.

Conclusion

The National Planning policy Framework states there should be a presumption in
favour of sustainable development, unless there are any adverse impacts of
doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. In this
instance it is considered the resultant development is of a suitable and high
quality design. The identifiable characteristics and features of the
conservation area, notably the gaps and spaces around the buildings, would
not be diminished. Additional benefits would be brought about by new
hedgerow planting along the south west boundaries. It is considered  that
the proposal would respond well to the character and appearance of the
conservation area and the existing street scene. In addition to this it is concluded
there is no undue harm to the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the
occupiers of the surrounding property. Therefore the development is considered
acceptable, subject to appropriate conditions and accords with the aims and
objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework and policies, CP1, DM1,
DM13 of the Core Strategy.

Recommendation

PERMISSION BE Granted for the following reasons subject to conditions set out
to include, in summary: i)standard time: ii) carried out in accordance with the
approved details, iii) details of materials to be submitted and approved, iv) the
glazing within the rear elevations, link way and garage shall be non-reflective
glass and retained as such at all times; v) the existing boundary treatment
screening to the south east boundary shall be retained at all times, vi)
landscaping scheme submitted for the north east, south west boundary.

That powers be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to settle
any necessary planning conditions in line with the issues set out in the
recommendation, and as resolved by the planning committee.

Case Officer - Karen Evans

29



TP Be made.

ittee purposes only. No furtfeBdpilie

WALMER

N7

ad

Not to scale Application: DOV/17/01107
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material ;
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 25 Granville Road
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown

. : gt s Walmer
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. CT147LQ

Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2017

) ] ) ) TR37655049
Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site = BovER
identification only. N gsTNET
30




DOV/17/00432 — Erection of a two-storey front extension, extension to
vehicular crossover and enlargement of driveway (existing garage to be
demolished) - 25 Granville Road, Walmer

Reason for report: Number of contrary views (6).

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be granted.

Planning Policies and Guidance

Core Strategy Policies

DM1 - Development will not be permitted outside of the settlement confines,
unless it is specifically justified by other development plan policies, or it
functionally requires such a location, or it is ancillary to existing development or
uses.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Paragraph 17 states that securing high quality design and a good standard of
amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings is one of
the 12 core planning principles set out in the NPPF.

Paragraph 32 states that development should only be prevented or refused on
transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are
severe.

Paragraph 56 states that the Government attaches great importance to the
design of the built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute
positively to making places better for people.

Paragraph 58 states that planning policies and decisions should aim to ensure
that developments:

o will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for
the short term but over the lifetime of the development;

o establish a strong sense of place;

o respond to the local character and history, and reflect the identity of
local surroundings and materials, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation;

o are visually attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate
landscaping.

Paragraph 60 states that planning policies and decisions should not attempt to
impose architectural styles or particular tastes and they should not stifle
innovation, originality or initiative through unsubstantiated requirements to
conform to certain development forms or styles. It is, however, proper to seek
to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness.

Paragraph 64 states that permission should be refused for development of
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the
character and quality of an area and the way it functions”.

31



The Kent Design Guide

The Kent Design Guide says that for extensions to buildings the main principle is
that the character of the building and the surroundings must be maintained or
improved by the work done.

Walmer Design Statement

Walmer Design Statement seeks to focus on the special character and design
features in different parts of Walmer. It sets out Design Principles that could be
applied appropriately.

The design principles that can be applied in the context of the current planning
proposal are:

WDS1: requires the development to be consistent with Dover District Local Plan
(2002) and the principles and objectives of Kent Design (2000) and should
acknowledge, preserve or enhance the built and natural heritage of the parish of
Walmer.

WDS3: The scale, materials and boundary treatments used in development
should be appropriate to their surroundings and the design details of the
Character Area in which the development is proposed. Harmonious variety in
design details within developments is encouraged to maintain the tradition of
visually interesting streetscapes which is a characteristic of Walmer.

Relevant Planning History

DOV/17/00854 - Erection of a two storey front/side extension and alterations to
vehicular access and extension to driveway. Withdrawn.

Consultee and Third Party Responses

Walmer Parish Council — object to the planning application for the following

reasons:

- Use of cladding — out of keeping

- Do not agree that the proposed development meets NPPF section 7 para 59,
the overall scale, density, massing, height, landscape, layout, materials and
access of new development in relation to neighbouring buildings and the local
area more generally.

- would contravene Walmer Design Statement Principle WDS 3

County Archaeologist — no archaeological measures required.

Public Representations:
Six (6) representations received objecting to the planning application and raising the
following relevant planning matters:
- design and materials out of keeping
- vehicular access would be out of keeping
- probable damage to the Sycamore tree
- overshadowing and loss of outlook to no.27 Granville Road
- incongruous and overbearing
- unauthorised work (the construction of the porch to the front elevation)
- design of the extension conflicts with Local Planning Policies, NPPF and
contradicts two key design principles (WDS2 and WDS3) as set out in the
Walmer Design Statement 2006.

32



Twenty (20) representations received supporting the planning application and making
the following comments:

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

it would be inconsistent to refuse this application.

would not have an impact on the Walmer Castle — well screened by
intervening trees

no significant historical character and these changes are an improvement

it is not in the conservation area and overlooks a sheep field

adequate private parking for cars and on street

The Site and the Proposal

The application relates to a detached dwellinghouse which is located within
the settlement confines of Walmer. The host property shares boundaries
with no.27 to the east and no.23 to the west. No.23 has an existing two
storey front extension.

The application site abuts the northeast edge of Granville Road. The area
has a fairly uniform character, with the properties in the vicinity of the
application property sharing common architectural features, materials and
scales. Equally, there is a degree of uniformity in terms of its layout and
pattern of development, with all the properties set back from the main road
by approximately 12 to 15m from Granville Road.

The exterior fagade of the application property comprises a combination of
painted brickwork, exposed brickwork and a small section of dark coloured
cladding to the front. It has a concrete tiled roof and UPVC fenestration. It
has an attached garage which makes provision for one car parking space.
It has front and rear gardens. The front garden is partly covered in
hardstanding and makes provision for two off-street car parking spaces.

The application seeks consent for the erection of a two storey side/front
extension and widening of the existing vehicular crossover and the
driveway. The proposed extension would measure 6.25m in depth and 3m
in width. It would be 4.9m in height at eaves level and would reach a
maximum height of 6.2m above ground floor level. The proposed extension
would be finished in brick. It would have a concrete tiled shallow pitched
hipped roof and UPVC fenestration. The existing width of the driveway and
the vehicular crossover is approximately 3m and the proposal is to
increase the width to 6m.

Main Issues
The main issues are:

The principle of the development

The impact on the character and appearance of the area
The impact on residential amenity

The impact on the highway network

Assessment

Principle of the Development

33



22

23

24

2.5

26

2.7

The site lies within the settlement confines of Walmer. It is considered that
principle of the development is acceptable, subject to site-specific
considerations.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

The current application is a resubmission of a previously withdrawn
scheme (DOV/17/00854). It would be relevant to discuss the concerns
raised in the previous scheme and how the current scheme overcomes
those concerns. The previous scheme comprised of a two storey flat metal
roofed front extension clad in vertical weatherboarding (coloured). The
design of the extension was fairly contemporary in nature. Concerns were
raised regarding the stark effect the extension would have on the street
scene by virtue of its overall massing, design and use of materials. Since
substantial and fundamental changes were required to make the scheme
acceptable, the application was withdrawn with a view to submitting a
revised proposal.

The current proposal seeks to address the concerns raised in the previous
application (DOV/17/00854) by virtue of significant amendments to the
scheme which includes the following:

o the extension would have a pitched hipped roof which would be in
keeping with the roof form of the application property and those others
in the street

o it would have concrete roof tiles to match existing

o the proposed extension would be finished in brick

o the proposed fenestration would be white UPVC to match existing

Having regard for the amendments made to the proposed scheme, the

detailed design of the extension is considered acceptable and would not

cause harm to the character and appearance of the application property.

It is necessary to consider the impact of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the street scene. The proposed extension by virtue of its
siting to the front would be readily visible in the street. However, it is
relevant to note that the application property is well set back from the main
road and the finished extension would sit at a distance of approximately
15m from the edge of the main road. Whilst two storey front extensions are
not a common feature in the street, it should be noted that a similar front
extension was permitted to no.23 in 2009. Given the significant separation
distance from the main road and having regard to the limited scale and
height of the extension, it is not considered that the proposed extension
would constitute a dominant or an obtrusive feature in the street.

Having regard for the reasons set out above, your officers are satisfied that
the proposed extension would not detract from the character and
appearance of the street scene and would accord with the key principles of
Walmer Design Statement, in that it incorporates materials, fenestration
design and external cladding which reflects the appearance and finish of
the original building.

The application also involves widening of the existing vehicular crossover
and the driveway by approximately 3m. It involves a partial removal of the
fence along the front boundary. It is proposed to finish the new driveway in
permeable block pavers to match the existing driveway. Given the general

34



2.8

29

2.10

2.11

212

213

214

character of the area, the proposed widening of the existing access is
considered acceptable.

Overall, the development proposals are sufficiently sympathetic and are of
a scale, form and appearance that would not look out of place in this street
scene. Accordingly, the development is considered to be NPPF compliant
and acceptable.

Impact on Residential Amenity

No.27 to the east

The proposed extension would lie at a distance of approximately 2m from
the side elevation of no.27 to the east. The proposed extension spans less
than half the depth of the application property and projects beyond the front
elevation of the existing garage at no.27 by approximately 1m. There are
no openings serving habitable rooms to the side elevation of no.27 facing
the proposed extension. Therefore, no interlooking, overlooking, loss of
outlook or loss of light would occur from the proposal.

No. 23 to the west

The proposed extension would be sited at a distance of approximately 12m
from the dividing boundary with no.23. Given the substantial separation
distance between the properties, no loss of light, sense of enclosure or
overshadowing would result from the proposal. The proposal also involves
insertion of a window at first floor level to the side elevation facing towards
no.23. Having regard for the separation distance and given the fact that
only views of the front garden and the driveway would be achievable from
the proposed window, it is not considered to cause loss of privacy to the
neighbouring occupiers of no.23.

With regards to the proposed vehicular crossover, it is not considered that
the widening of the existing vehicular crossover by 3m to form a 6m wide
access would cause harm to the residential amenity of the neighbouring
occupiers.

There are no other properties in the vicinity that would be directly affected
by the proposal.

Impact on Highways

Policy DM13 of the Core Strategy requires a provision of 2 car parking
spaces to be made within the site for a 3+ bed property. The proposed
enlargement would result in an additional bedroom (according to the plans,
one existing bedroom would become an office). Whilst one garaged car
parking space would be lost, the application site would retain adequate
space for at least two offstreet car parking spaces. It is noted that onstreet
parking is prevalent in the street. For the foregoing reasons, it is not
considered that the proposal would result in an increase in the parking
demand in the street or cause harm to the free flow of traffic.

KCC Highways have not been consulted on this application; however, the

following is deemed necessary to be secured via condition:

e Provision of measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto
the highway.

35



9)

2.15

e Use of a bound surface for the first 5 metres of the access from the
edge of the highway.

e Completion of the necessary vehicle crossing in the footway prior to the
use of the access commencing.

Archaeology

Given the scale of the proposed extension, it is likely to have shallow
foundations. As such, it is not considered that there is a reasonable
likelihood that the development will impact upon heritage assets of
archaeological interest. Furthermore, KCC Archaeology are satisfied with
the proposal and have not recommended any archaeological measures to
be carried out.

Conclusion

The proposal is considered well sited and acceptably designed in relation
to the application property to be extended and the neighbouring properties
and as such would not detract from the character and appearance of the
host property or the street scene. It would not cause harm to the residential
amenity of the adjacent occupiers and is considered acceptable in all other
material respects.

Recommendation

PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to the following conditions: i)
Timescale of commencement of development, ii) A list of approved plans
(iii) measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the highway
(iv) use of a bound surface for the first metres of the access from the edge
of the highway (v) completion of access prior to first use.

Powers to be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to
settle any necessary planning conditions in line with the issues set out in
the recommendation and as resolved by the Planning Committee.

Case Officer
Benazir Kachchhi

36



This plan has been produced for Planning Committee purposes only. No furti8FRIBikeMmYP Be made.

‘.

Tremont

Penmore

Mill

Chevin

Ventura

Seagull
Cottage

Sunmead

Not to scale Application: DOV/17/01165

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material The Chalet & Milners Land Between
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Kingsdown

Claremont Road

CT14 8BU

Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2017

TR37344875
Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site =

: ™ . DOVER
identification only. N B5IREL




DOV/17/001165 — Outline application for the erection of a detached dwelling
(all matters reserved) — Land between The Chalet and Milner, Claremont
Road, Kingsdown

Reason for report: Number of contrary views (9).

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be granted.

Planning Policies and Guidance

Core Strategy Policies

CP1 — Requires that the location and scale of development complies with the
Settlement Hierarchy. Deal is identified as a District Centre, which is the
secondary focus for development in the District; suitable for urban scale
development.

CP6 - Development that generates a demand for infrastructure will only be
permitted if the necessary infrastructure is either already in place, or there is a
reliable mechanism to ensure that it will be provided at the time it is needed.

DM1 - Development will not be permitted outside of the settlement confines,
unless it is specifically justified by other development plan policies, or it
functionally requires such a location, or it is ancillary to existing development or
uses.

DM11 - Development that would generate high levels of travel will only be
permitted within the urban areas in locations that are, or can be made to be, well
served by a range of means of transport.

DM13 - Parking provision should be design-led, based upon an area's
characteristics, the nature of the development and design objectives, having
regard for the guidance in Table 1.1 of the Core Strategy.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The NPPF has 12 core principles which, amongst other things, seeks to:
proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the
homes, business and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that
the country needs; secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for
all existing and future residents; to reduce pollution; and actively manage
patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of public transport, walking
and cycling, and focus significant development in locations which are or can be
made sustainable.

Chapter four of the NPPF seeks to promote sustainable transport. In particular,
paragraph 29 states that "the transport system needs to be balanced in favour of
sustainable transport modes, giving people a real choice about how they travel".

Chapter six of the NPPF seeks to significantly boost the supply of housing,
requiring Local Planning Authorities to identify specific deliverable sites sufficient
to provide five years' worth of housing. Housing applications should be
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable
development.

38



Chapter seven requires good design, which is a key aspect of sustainable
development.

The Kent Design Guide

The Guide provides criteria and advice on providing well designed development.

Relevant Planning History

DOV/15/00596 - Outline application for the erection of a detached dwelling (all
matters reserved). Approved.

Consultee and Third Party Responses

Kingsdown Parish Council — no objections. Consider a bungalow would be more
appropriate for the site.

PROW Office KCC — no objections raised however, following informatives have
been recommended to be attached with the permission:

1. No furniture may be erected on or across Public Rights of Way without
the express consent of the Highway Authority.

2. There must be no disturbance of the surface of the right of way, or
obstruction of its use, either during or following any approved
development.

3. No hedging or shrubs should be planted within 1.5 metres of the edge
of the public path.

Public Representations:
Nine (9) representations received objecting to the planning application and raising
the following relevant planning matters:

- plan includes land not owned by the applicant

- dwelling should be single storey
front boundary projects beyond the boundaries of the surrounding
properties
will narrow the entrance to the road

1. The Site and the Proposal

1.1 The application site relates to a parcel of land, which is situated within the
confines of Kingsdown and abuts the northeast edge of Claremont Road.
The site was previously used as an access to the field to the rear (north) of
Claremont Road. The site is rectangular in shape and measures
approximately 65m by 10.5m and is currently overgrown with trees and
hedging along the northwest and southeast boundaries. There is a public
footpath to the rear of the site.

1.2 The site lies within a wholly residential area of Kingsdown within the village
confines. The area predominately comprises detached dwellinghouses,
whilst the scale and form of development in the area is varied with
properties of one, one and a half or two storeys in height.

1.3 The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of a
detached dwelling. While all matters are reserved and no indicative plans

39



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

have been submitted, the application submission indicates that approval is
sought for a two storey dwellinghouse.

Main Issues
The main issues are:

The principle of the development

The impact on the character and appearance of the area
The impact on residential amenity

The impact on the highway network

Ecology

Assessment

Principle of the Development

The site lies within the settlement confines of Kingsdown. It is considered
that principle of the development is acceptable, subject to site-specific
considerations.

Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area

Members are advised that there have been no change in circumstances in
respect of the site since the time the original planning permission
(DOV/15/00596) was granted. The proposed dwelling would be located
between ‘The Chalet’ and ‘Milner’, both of which are detached bungalows.
The application site measures 10.5m in width and 65m in depth. The
property to the immediate southeast (Milner) has a width of approximately
20m with the site to the immediate northwest (The Chalet) having an
approximate width of 14.5m. It is however relevant to note that there are
properties to the northwest and southeast with varying plot sizes whose
widths range from 10.5m upwards. Therefore, whilst the plot width of the
application site is considered to be slightly narrower to the immediate
neighbouring plots of Milner and The Chalet, it would be fairly
commensurate with other residential curtilages in the locality. For this
reason, it is not considered that a dwelling on the site would result in a
form of development that would appear inconsistent with the spatial and
visual character of the locality.

The application form indicates that an outline application for the erection of
a two storey dwelling is being applied for. However, no details relating to
the appearance, height and scale of the dwelling have been provided. At
this stage, your Officers are of the view that further details would be
required in order to demonstrate that a dwelling of this scale/size could be
accommodated which reflects the visual character of the area. Should this
application be approved, any reserved matters application would need to
provide a detailed design analysis, which would have to indicate how the
design, scale and form of the dwelling has taken account of the immediate
character of the local vernacular and how it would relate to the existing
buildings and the street scene.

For the purposes of this outline application, it is considered that a dwelling
could be accommodated within the application site. It would be for the
reserved matters stage however, (when full details are provided) to

40



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

3.1

determine whether anything more than a single storey unit, or perhaps a
chalet styled dwelling, could be adequately accommodated.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Given the size of the site and its relationship with the immediately adjoining
properties namely The Chalet to the northwest and Milner to the southeast,
it is considered that a single storey dwelling could be provided on the site
without causing unacceptable harm to the neighbours, subject to
acceptable details being submitted in the reserved matters application. The
effects and impacts on neighbours would also drive the type of dwelling
that would be acceptable on this site. Whether a dwelling with
accommodation at first floor level could achieve the same would be subject
to detailed consideration at the Reserved Matters stage.

Impact on Highways

In accordance with Policy DM13, the proposed dwelling would need to
provide up to two independently accessible off-road parking spaces. These
details would need to be submitted as part of any reserved matters
application. It is likely that this could be achieved.

Ecology

Under the previous outline application DOV/15/00596, a Herpetofauna
Survey had been undertaken following the consultation with the Ecological
Officer. The results of this survey showed that a total of 82 slow-worms
were observed during the 2015 survey period. The maximum number of
adults which were recorded during a single survey was 21. The population
size class within the survey had been classified as exceptional. It was
recorded that a majority of the observations were recorded along the
western boundary. It was further observed that immature and neonate
slow-worms were observed, which indicates the presence of a breeding
population.

A condition had been attached to the previous outline permission which
required the submission of a translocation strategy (which would detail the
methodology for safe capture and translocation to an adequate receptor
site together with a monitoring programme for three years for approval of
the local planning authority) prior to the submission of a reserved matters
application. It is recommended that this condition be reapplied in the event
of a grant of planning permission for this current application.

Conclusion

The outline proposal for the erection of a detached dwelling is considered
acceptable in principle. It meets the policy requirement for new dwellings to
be located within the settlement confines and it is considered that subject
to suitable details being submitted at the Reserved Matters stage, a
dwelling should be capable of being accommodated within this plot, which
would be acceptable in terms of its impact on the neighbouring properties
as well as its impact on the character and appearance of the street scene
and surrounding area. Without further details however, it is not possible to
conclude that a two storey dwelling (referred to in the application form)
would be acceptable.

41



Recommendation

OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to conditions
to include:- i) Approval of Reserved Matters, ii) Time limit for submission of
Reserved Matters, iii) Time limit for commencement of development
following approval of Reserved Matters, iv) Approved plans, v) Highway
conditions to include: provision and permanent retention of parking spaces
prior to first occupation; provision and retention of cycle parking facilities
prior to first occupation; provision and maintenance of visibility splays to be
shown on submitted plans prior to first occupation; details for construction
vehicle parking, vi) Sample of materials, vii) Soft and hard landscaping
details, viii) Tree/shrub replacement, ix) Landscape management plan, x)
Details of boundary treatments xi) Details of disposal of foul and surface
water, xii) Existing and proposed sections through the site, to include
details of existing and proposed ground levels and finished floor levels and
thresholds, xiii) Translocation strategy for slow-worm.

Powers to be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to
settle any necessary planning conditions in line with the issues set out in
the recommendation and as resolved by the Planning Committee.

Case Officer
Benazir Kachchhi

42



Points
of-View

El Sub Sta

“\_Uplands Croes

Not to scale

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2017

Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site
identification only.

Application: DOV/17/00967
Land at 5 Alexandra Road

Kingsdown
CT14 8DS

TR37454824
B N

-
DOVER
DISTRICT
N COUNCIL




DOV/17/00967 — Erection of a detached dwelling and garage, excavation of land,
and demolition of existing garage - Land at 5 Alexandra Road, Kingsdown

Reason for report — the number of third party contrary representations.

Summary of Recommendation

Refuse permission.

Planning Policy and Guidance

Development Plan

The development plan for the purposes of section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) comprises the Dover District Council Core Strategy
2010, the saved policies from the Dover District Local Plan 2002, and the Land
Allocations Local Plan (2015). Decisions on planning applications must be made in
accordance with the policies of the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

In addition to the policies of the development plan there are a number of other policies
and standards which are material to the determination of planning applications
including the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), National Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG) together with other local guidance.

A summary of relevant planning policy is set out below:

Dover District Core Strategy (2010)
CP1 — Settlement hierarchy.

DM1 — Settlement boundaries.
DM13 — Parking provision.

Saved Dover District Local Plan (2002) policies
None applicable.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)(2012)

7. There are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and

environmental. These dimensions give rise to the need for the planning system to

perform a number of roles:

° an economic role — contributing to building a strong, responsive and competitive
economy, by ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right
places and at the right time to support growth and innovation; and by identifying
and coordinating development requirements, including the provision of
infrastructure;

o a social role — supporting strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by providing
the supply of housing required to meet the needs of present and future
generations; and by creating a high quality built environment, with accessible
local services that reflect the community’s needs and support its health, social
and cultural well-being; and

° an environmental role — contributing to protecting and enhancing our natural,
built and historic environment; and, as part of this, helping to improve
biodiversity, use natural resources prudently, minimise waste and pollution, and
mitigate and adapt to climate change including moving to a low carbon economy

44



9. Pursuing sustainable development involves seeking positive improvements in the
quality of the built, natural and historic environment, as well as in people’s quality of
life, including (but not limited to)...

. improving the conditions in which people live, work, travel and take leisure; and

° widening the choice of high quality homes.

17. Core planning principles... planning should...

. not simply be about scrutiny, but instead be a creative exercise in finding ways to
enhance and improve the places in which people live their lives...

° always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all
existing and future occupants of land and buildings...

56. The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment.
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people.

58. ... Planning policies and decisions should aim to ensure that developments:

. will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development...

. respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local
surroundings and materials, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation...

. are visually attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate
landscaping.

61. Although visual appearance and the architecture of individual buildings are very
important factors, securing high quality and inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic
considerations. Therefore, planning policies and decisions should address the
connections between people and places and the integration of new development into
the natural, built and historic environment.

64. Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way
it functions.

Other considerations

Kent Design Guide

Relevant Planning History

None relevant.

Consultee and Third Party Responses

Ringwould with Kingsdown Parish Council — Objection — The Parish Council
objects to the application. This is an oversized dwelling being squeezed into an
unsuitable plot, by virtue of its scale and design details. This development will result in
the loss of perfectly good garden space including the loss of trees and bushes.

It is out of keeping with the visual and spatial character of the area. This is contrary to
item 1.53 of Landscape Character Local Development Framework, Core Strategy
February 2010.

It is an intrusion of privacy for the adjacent property and other nearby properties. The
garage serving the original premise has been removed leaving no garage for that

45



property, contrary to DM13 of the Local Development Framework. It is also contrary to
paragraphs 12,17,49, 56, 57, 61, of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

We therefore object to this application.

KCC PROW - No objection.

Southern Water — No objection, subject to informative — For connection to public
sewer.

Public comments — 32x support, 29x objection, 4x observations
Support

A family home.

No set style in Kingsdown, eclectic mix.

No right to views.

Would not infringe on privacy, roof lights look to the sky.
A good use of land.

Kingsdown is a sought after village.

Complements surroundings.

Object

Privacy concerns, no consideration for neighbouring amenity.
Noise and pollution.

Over-development of site.

Out of character, loss of peace and tranquility.

Overbearing.

Intrusive.

No market for property, 1 and 2 beds required more.

Harm to wildlife.

Needs to be a limit to infilling.

Topography exacerbates loss of privacy.

Observations

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

If granted, needs to fix damage caused to road during construction, which is
maintained privately.

The Site and the Proposal

The Site

The site is located in the garden of number 5 Alexandra Road, in Kingsdown.
Alexandra Road is a quiet, unmade road. Number 5 itself is located at the
western end of a small unmade track off of Alexandra Road which also serves
number 7 and leads on to public footpath ER6. The site comprises the side
garden and an old garage both located on the southern side of number 5, which
is a chalet style dwelling now with flat roofed extension, dating to the mid-1960s.

The character of the area is that of a group of relatively large dwellings in large
plots, the size of which are relative to the scale and type of dwellings on them.
The character of the group within which the application site is located is typified
by its verdant, spacious yet intimate layout with native tree planting.

Surrounding the site, and taken clockwise, are the rear gardens to six homes:
[Alexandra Road] numbers 3 and 1, [Upper Street] The Courtyard, Briarwood,
Brambles and Overhill.

46



1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.14.

2.1.

Land on/around the site falls to the east and south — towards neighbouring
dwellings.

The western and southern boundaries are formed primarily by close board
fencing, approximately 1.6 to 1.8 metres tall. The site is noticeably exposed to
outlook from surrounding sites particularly across the southern and western
boundaries. Existing mature vegetation — a mix of deciduous and evergreen
trees, is located adjacent to the eastern boundary in the form of a hedge.
Adjacent to the southern boundary with The Courtyard is a small group of around
four trees, which depending on the season, provides some screening. A small
wall is also located along the boundary at this location.

Site dimensions are:
o Depth — (taken from north to south) between 12 and 18 metres.
o Width — (taken west to east) 40 metres.

Proposed Development

The proposed development comprises the subdivision of the site, roughly in half,
demolition of the existing garage, and the erection of a 4 bedroom, storey and a
half dwelling in a form broadly reminiscent of a Swiss chalet, with prominent
gable ends and a large overhanging roof. The dwelling would be located mainly
in the western half of the site. In the eastern half the site a gravel driveway would
be formed, as would a free standing garage orientated on an oblique axis to the
site boundary.

To enable to the formation of a flat slab and the erection of the dwelling, the site
would be excavated to the rear (western) end.

. The dwelling would comprise through coloured white rendered walls and artificial

slate roof tiles. The first floor, located partly in the roof space, would be lit by
rooflights in its northern (7) and southern (4) slopes. First floor glazing to the
western and eastern gable ends would include a double width standing out
balcony above the front door (eastern gable) and a double width Juliet balcony
serving two separate rooms in the western gable. Frames would be comprised of
grey aluminium and doors would be formed of timber composite.

. The roof would have a 1.2 metre overhang on northern and southern slopes and

would overhang each gable by 1.2 metres.

. Dimensions of the proposed building are:

o Depth — (from front door back) 13.3 metres, (including roof) 15.7 metres.
) Width — 9 metres, (including roof overhangs) 11 metres.

) Eaves height — 4.1 metres (front — east), 3.4 metres (rear — west).

. Ridge height — 7.6 metres (front — east), 7 metres (rear — west).

Plans will be on display.

Main Issues

The main issues to consider are:
o Principle of development.

. Visual amenity, street scene, spatial character, design.
o Residential amenity.



3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

) Highways and traffic impact.
. Other matters.

Assessment

Principle of Development

The site is located within the adopted Kingsdown settlement confines. Subject to
its details and any material considerations, the proposed development is
acceptable in principle.

Visual Amenity, Street Scene, Spatial Character, Design

The design, characteristics and features of the dwelling are considered to be
somewhat alien and unsympathetic to its surroundings. Dwellings in this location
are of their time, some updated with contemporary additions, but they have
evolved organically within their plots and retained a quiet, well related character.
The subdivision of the site would result in two garden areas which are not
particularly well related to the scale of the dwellings on them. The spatial
character and nature of the area — particularly in this grouped cluster, becomes
unduly cramped, at odds with the existing spacious layout.

A particular concern associated with the proposal is that its size and siting in
relation to plot boundaries (the roof would almost overhang the dividing boundary
with Briarwood), combined with stark materials — white render and artificial slate
roof tiles, would amount to an intrusive overdevelopment of the site.

In terms of the design features, the designer suggests that the dwelling is
evocative of existing chalet style dwellings in the area, but with a modern
interpretation. The form is indeed simple with gable ends such as a chalet might
have, however, there is a sense of contrivance in its conception that results in no
recognisable aesthetic. There appears to be a design exercise conflict between
fitting the maximum size house in this location versus a building that might sit
well and enhance the local character, while not harming residential amenity and
the character of the locality. Aspects such as the eastern facing glazed apex with
standing out balcony, western facing Juliet balconies, proliferation of roof lights
and large overhanging roof, suggest that the balance has been lost. The roof
form is contrived, designed to overhang in an effort to prevent/avoid undue
overlooking/loss of privacy to neighbours. This concept has only served to result
in @ more uncharacteristic form of development, adding to the incongruity of the
scheme. Paragraph 60 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should not
impose architectural styles or tastes but does state that it is right to reinforce
local distinctiveness. It is unclear what of the dwelling as proposed is locally
distinctive, and this is evident.

In terms of the street scene, the effects of the dwelling would be relatively
limited, given that views are encountered close to the site access point, which
itself is relatively removed from the main thoroughfare of Alexandra Road,
however, it is right to seek good design — paragraph 56 of the NPPF states that
good design is indivisible from good planning, particularly bearing in mind any
development would be visible from neighbouring properties.

In spatial terms, numbers 5 and 7 Alexandra Road are somewhat unique to this
location, presenting as backland development, where all other dwellings front
onto their respective residential streets. Numbers 5 and 7 are each set in
generous garden plots, which help to alleviate any sense of overdevelopment

48



3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

and allows them to each sit well within their respective plots. The scale of the
proposed development in a relatively constrained plot would bring about
enclosure and add to the sense of a cramped development that is alien and
incongruous.

Accordingly, in design terms, the development is considered to be unacceptable
due to it ultimately being poorly related and out of keeping with the prevailing
spatial character of the area.

Residential Amenity

Overbearing. In particular, the proposed dwelling would be located in close
proximity to the dividing boundary with Briarwood and Brambles, with around a
1.2 metre separation from that boundary at its closest point and the extended
overhang of the roof being located almost directly above the boundary. The
boundary itself is 24 metres from the rear elevations of Briarwood and Brambles,
which, in terms of separation only, is considered to be a reasonable distance.
However, the raised land level on site, relative to these two dwellings means that
the new dwelling, as seen from the living space and private amenity space at the
rear of Briarwood and Brambles would appear as an intrusive and obtrusive
presence. This effect would also be repeated seen from the living area at The
Courtyard, which although sited at a more oblique angle from the proposed
building, is closer to the boundary at approximately 19 metres.

Accordingly, when the height and mass of the proposal is taken in combination
with its proximity to the boundary it is considered that the development would
bring about a sense of intrusion for neighbouring residents. The section drawing
A-A provided by the applicant reinforces this concern.

Overshadowing. The siting of the proposed dwelling and the distances between
it and neighbouring dwellings means that undue harm from overshadowing is
unlikely to occur. Some shadow may be cast towards the rear garden of Overhill
in the morning and towards the rear garden of The Courtyard in the evening,
however, this is likely to be negligible. 5 Alexandra Road is the closest dwelling
to the proposal at 3.8 metres (not including roof overhang), however, section
drawing B-B shows that the new dwelling is on lower land, which combined with
the relatively shallow roof pitch, means that light should still shine towards
number 5 without being blocked to a harmful degree.

Overlookingl/interlooking. The applicant proposes to make significant use of
roof lights, all set at least 1.7 metres above internal finished floor level to reduce
the opportunities of overlooking. The number of roof lights proposed, however,
may create a perception of overlooking, which is considered to be significant in
its own right.

The paragraphs below set out an analysis of effects in this regard on
immediately adjoining properties.

1 Alexandra Road — The standing out balcony located at first floor level in the
eastern gable end is located 16 metres from the dividing boundary with 1
Alexandra Road. Currently mitigating the opportunity of overlooking occurring is
an existing hedge, trees adjacent to this boundary within the site, and the
location of a garage within the boundary of number 1, which would also help to
screen views. It should be noted that the hedge and trees at this location are
primarily deciduous; meaning that in autumn, winter and early spring, the level of
screening provided would be noticeably less than in the summer. The section

49



3.17.

3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

3.21.

3.22.

3.23.

3.24.

3.25.

drawing A-A shows that the proposed garage would also provide some
screening, but this is unlikely to restrict all views.

There are also opportunities for interlooking into the side elevation of number 1.

3 Alexandra Road — The views from the balcony towards the private rear amenity
space at 3 Alexandra Road would not be interrupted by any intervening
structures, meaning that privacy would be dependent on the ongoing health of
the primarily deciduous hedge adjacent to this boundary, which cannot be
guaranteed. The same issue applies in terms of the deciduous species which
form the hedge not providing the same level of screening all year round.

The Courtyard — The standing out balcony, it is considered, would give rise to
clear opportunities for harmful overlooking into a section of the rear amenity
space at The Courtyard. There are deciduous trees adjacent to this boundary
which depending on the time of year would block views to varying degrees, but
their ongoing health is not guaranteed.

Overhill — The western gable end incorporates a Juliet balcony serving two
rooms. These would be located 9.4 metres away from the rear of the garden at
Overhill and would provide a raised viewing point into that garden. This area is to
the rear of an admittedly long garden — approximately 38 metres from the rear
elevation of Overhill. The occupants have stated that their existing summerhouse
would be overlooked at this part of the garden.

Taken cumulatively, the new dwelling would give rise to the potential for undue
harm to be caused from overlooking and some interlooking, accepting that
vegetation/trees does provide a screening function to varying degrees depending
on the time of year. In addition, the health of the vegetation/trees cannot be
guaranteed and should these fail or be removed for any reason, the existing
intimate relationship of the site and dwelling with their neighbours could result in
unacceptable harm to the living standards of those neighbours. Taken as a
whole, what would be presented as the means of protecting neighbouring
amenity is considered to be relatively fragile and cannot be guaranteed in the
longer term.

The Government specifies at paragraphs 17 and 56 of the NPPF that planning
should enhance and improve the places in which people live their lives, it should
seek a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings, and that good design should contribute positively to making places
better for people. It is considered in this respect that the proposal would not
provide a good standard of amenity, nor would it contribute positively to making
this place better. As discussed, it is considered to be primarily an attempted
exercise in limiting the amenity impacts of a [relative to its site and location] large
building, however, it is considered that the proposal remains unsuccessful in that
regard also and is accordingly unacceptable in terms of its impact on residential
amenity.

Highways and Traffic Impact

The proposed development is for one dwelling accessing an unclassified road.
As such it is outside of the KCC Highways consultation protocol.

Such a dwelling in this location, incorporating four bedrooms, requires two
independently accessible parking spaces. There is sufficient room on site to
provide these.

50



3.26.

3.27.

3.28.

3.29.

3.30.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Number 5 currently parks its vehicles in the existing layby outside of the site
access. It is likely that there is sufficient space for this to continue, however, the
applicants have provided a drawing which shows two tandem spaces made
adjacent to the pedestrian access for number 5. This is not within the red line but
is on blue land and there is reasonable certainty that these spaces will be
provided so could be conditioned were it considered necessary.

Other Matters

Amended design. The applicant was invited to submit a more modest and
appropriately scaled scheme for a dwelling that in general design principles
would be single storey and no taller than the eaves of the scheme as now
considered, with windows facing back towards number 5. A suitably designed
dwelling, it is considered, could provide a compromise between seeking to
develop the site, but also maintaining the character of the site in this location, the
amenity of neighbours and a sense of openness. The applicant chose not to
amend the scheme.

Trees/habitats. Some concern has been raised about trees and local wildlife
habitats. No trees are proposed to be cut down, although the detached garage is
proposed to be sited among existing trees close to the boundary with The
Courtyard. This has the potential to damage tree roots, so were permission
granted, details of the proposed garage foundations could be sought to ensure
that tree roots are not damaged. In terms of habitat, the site is mostly lawn and
an existing garage so it is unlikely that undue harm to ecology would occur were
permission granted.

Legal covenant. A number of local residents have suggested that further
development of the site is precluded by legal covenant. This may or may not be
the case, however, such matters are not considered as part of the planning
process and any pursuit of this would need to be undertaken independently.

Conclusion

The proposed development is considered to be unacceptable. In its current form
it is considered not to be informed by the spatial character of the immediate area,
accordingly its impact on local character resulting in a cramped overdeveloped
site, which would be harmful to its character. It is considered that there are no
mitigating factors in assessing the design. Its mass and form as proposed would
not fit acceptably into the site available and would appear as an intrusive and
obtrusive addition. This is contrary to the requirements of NPPF paragraphs 9,
17, 56, 58 and 61.

It is also considered that the development would unduly harm the amenity of
existing residents. The size of the dwelling, combined with its design features,
finish and siting on higher land close to the dividing boundary with neighbours to
its south would mean that it would appear to loom over those neighbours and
intrude on the enjoyment of their homes. The exposed site means that the
outlook from neighbouring homes would be impinged upon as would their privacy
by what would be an intrusive and overlooking scheme. This is contrary to the
requirements of NPPF paragraphs 9, 17 and 56.

In this instance the applicant did seek pre-application advice after the application
had been submitted. Given that an application was already ongoing, this was
considered unnecessary and the applicant was advised as part of the ongoing

51



4.4

4.5

process what might be acceptable. On this occasion the applicant did not choose
to amend the scheme.

Accordingly, despite its location within the confines it is not considered that the
development would fulfii the social and environmental roles required of
sustainable development. It could be that there would be limited economic value
brought about by the development, but as members will know — sustainable
development is about achieving all three dimensions. In this case the
development is not considered to contribute towards bringing about a high
quality built environment, nor would it contribute towards enhancing or protecting
the existing built environment. It would likely result in harmful effects to
neighbours and accordingly is not considered to be sustainable development.
The level of harm caused in this case is considered to demonstrably outweigh
the benefits.

Paragraph 64 of the NPPF directs that where “poor” design “fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions” permission should be refused. Accordingly, having taken into
account all issues and the comments submitted, the recommendation is to refuse
permission.

Recommendation

Planning permission be REFUSED, for the following reasons: (1) The
development, if permitted, would not be sustainable development and would, by
virtue of its siting, scale and design, result in an unsympathetic, alien, intrusive
and cramped form of development which would be poorly related to and out of
keeping with the spatial character of the area, leading to an unacceptable level of
overlooking of neighbouring properties, affecting their outlook and leading to a
sense of enclosure, contrary to the aims and objectives of the NPPF, in particular
at paragraphs 7, 9, 17, 56, 58, 61 and 64.

That powers be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to
settle any reasons for refusal in line with the issues set out in the
recommendation and as resolved by the Planning Committee.

Case Officer

Darren Bridgett

52



This plan has been produced for Planning Committee purposes only. No furti8PRdpitembe Ad made.

/i

Not to scale

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown
copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2016

Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site
identification only.

Application: DOV/16/01356
Land and access

Monkton Court Lane

Eythorne
CT154BH

TR28784914




b)

DOV/16/01356 - Change of use of land for the keeping of horses, the formation
of a vehicle access and the erection of a gate (retrospective application) — Land
at Monkton Court Lane, Eythorne

Reason for report: Because of the number of contrary views (18).

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be approved.

Planning Policies and Guidance

Statute

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Dover District Council Core Strategy (2010)

Policy DM1 (Settlement Boundaries) states that development will not be permitted
outside of the urban/village confines unless specifically justified by other
development plan policies, or if it functionally requires such a location.

Policy DM11 (Managing Travel Demand) Development that would generate travel will
not be permitted outside the urban boundaries and rural settlement confines unless
justified by development plan policies.

Policy DM15 (Protection of the Countryside) Development which would result in the
loss of, or adversely affect the character or appearance, of the countryside will only
be permitted if it is:-

i. In accordance with allocations made in Development Plan Documents, or
ii. justified by the needs of agriculture; or

iii. justified by a need to sustain the rural economy or a rural community;

iv. it cannot be accommodated elsewhere; and

v. it does not result in the loss of ecological habitats.

Policy DM16 (Landscape Character) Development that would harm the character of
the landscape, as identified through the process of landscape character assessment
will only be permitted if:

i. It is in accordance with allocations made in Development Plan Documents and
incorporates any necessary avoidance and mitigation measures; or

ii. It can be sited to avoid or reduce the harm and/or incorporate design measures to
mitigate the impacts to an acceptable level.

Dover District Council Local Plan (saved policies) (DDLP)

Policy DD21 (Horse Related Development) will be granted provided:

i. It provides for the safety and comfort of horses in terms of the size of the
accommodation and land for grazing exercise.

ii. Ease of access to suitable riding country can be demonstrated;

54



d)

iii. Buildings are of a high standard of design and do not adversely impact the
character of the area, appearance of the countryside ort historic areas.

iv. The nearby amenity of neighbours are not adversely affected.

Land Allocations Local Plan (LALP)

None relevant to this proposal.

Worth Neighbourhood Plan

None relevant to this proposal.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Paragraph 6: Recognises that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to
the achievement of sustainable development.

Paragraph 7: Outlines the three dimensions of sustainable development, which has
an economic role, social and environmental role.

Paragraph 14: states that at the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be seem as a
golden thread running through both plan-making and decision taking.

Paragraph 58: states that it is important to plan positively for the achievement of high
quality and inclusive design for all development, including individual buildings, public
and private spaces and wider area development schemes.

Paragraph 109: of the NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment.

Paragraph 112: states that Local Planning Authorities should take into account the
economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land. Where
significant development of agricultural land is demonstrated to be necessary, local
planning authorities should seek to use areas of poorer quality land in preference to
that of higher quality.

Paragraph 132: of a heritage asset, great weight should be given to the assets
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be.

Paragraph 133: where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or
total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or
loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or
loss.

Paragraph 134: Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighted against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum
viable use.

Paragraph 137- states that Local Planning Authorities should look for opportunities to
for new development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites and within
the setting of heritage assets to enhance or better reveal their significance.

Relevant Planning History

The sites planning history is listed below:

14/00477: Erection of 20 dwellings with associated car parking, access, garaging and
landscaping. Appeal Dismissed.

55



f)

16/00675: Outline application for the erection of a detached dwelling (with all matters
reserved). Land adjacent to 2 Kennel Hill, Eythorne, CT15 4BQ. Refused.

Statutory Consultee and Third-Party Comments

KCC Highways responded by saying that the development proposal does not meet
the criteria to warrant involvement from the Highway Authority in accordance with the
current consultation protocol arrangements.

Dover District Council Environmental Health had no observations or comments to
make on the application.

Eythorne Parish Council strongly object to the application due to concerns over a
previous application made by Pentland Homes in 2014 for an application for the
erection of 20 dwellings with associated access and landscaping. The Parish feel that
changing the use of the land for the grazing of horse would downgrade the level of
agricultural land (currently grade 1). The overriding implications voiced by the Parish
are that the applicant is attempting to ‘shape the site’ in order to facilitate future
development unrelated to the keeping of horses.

Agricultural Advisor comments that the land appears to have been used for grazing
for many years, rather than any more intensive agricultural use. There appears to be
no detailed report of the agricultural quality of the land, but in any event, this
retrospective application for the change of use to the keeping of horses would not, of
itself, represent any permanent or irreversible development, such that the land could
not revert to an agricultural use, if so required. Consequently, it is not considered that
the proposal would represent a significant loss of agricultural land, in terms of the
relevant advice in paragraph 112 of the NPPF.

Representations

A site notice was displayed notifying neighbours and local residents of the proposed
development. A total of 18 responses were received which all object to the
application. The reasons for objection are outlined below:

o Loss of the best and most versatile agricultural land;

e Concerns over the access in term of highway safety and whether it is needed
given the use of the land and the existing access;

o Applicant is “shaping the ground” for a future bid for residential development
on the site. For example, by attempting to lower the agricultural grade and
soften the sites eastern boundary with hedging to essentially expand village
confines;

o Anxiety over future use of the site in light of previous planning history;

e Lack of community engagement from the applicant with regards to their
intended use with the land;

e Inaccuracies present within the application; particular reference is made to
hedgerows and trees on site.

The Site and the Proposal
The Site

1. The application site comprises an irregular rectangle shaped parcel of land on
the east side of Monkton Court Lane, located outside of the built confines of
Eythorne and adjoining the Eythorne conservation area.

56



10.

The land is an undeveloped green field site classified as grade 1 agricultural
land which forms the start of a clear distinction between the edge of the
village of Eythorne and open countryside.

The application site is situated opposite residential dwellings on the west side
of Monkton Court Lane, and adjoins further residential development on
Kennel Hill beyond its southern boundary.

This application is retrospective, and the site is currently used for the keeping
of horses and the new access and gate is in use.

The Proposal

The application seeks retrospective planning permission to change the use of
the land for the keeping of horses. The application previous sought
permission for the creation of a new access and gate, (which was also
retrospective) but this has now been removed from the application.

Assessment

At the Planning Committee Meeting on the 26 October 2017 members
resolved to defer this application, for the following reason:

‘That, notwithstanding the Officer's recommendation, Application No
DOV/16/01356 be DEFERRED to allow Officers to negotiate with the
applicant regarding the removal of the access gate and reinstatement of the
hedgerow.’

At the meeting, Members expressed the view that the use of the field for the
keeping of horses was acceptable in principle, however, they were concerned
about the position of the access gate, and the impact that this had on both
vehicular movements, and also the character and appearance of this lane. As
such, they expressed a view that should the gate be removed from the
proposal, then the proposal would be acceptable, however, as they were
unable to issue a split decision, requested more time for negotiations to take
place.

The original committee report and minutes from the committee are attached
at appendix 1.

Negotiations have taken place with the applicant, how has agreed to remove
the gate from the application, in accordance with Members’ wishes. Clearly,
as this is retrospective, there will be a requirement for the gate to be
removed, and for the hedge to be reinstated. Given that we are now entering
the winter months, | consider it appropriate to allow for three months for the
closure of the gate, and for the hedge to be re-instated within the next
planting season — to allow it to have the best possible chance of survival. It is
proposed that a condition be imposed to ensure that this occurs in a timely
fashion.

It is therefore now considered that the proposal is acceptable, and that the
applicant has complied with Member’s instructions. For this reason it is
recommended that Members give the application favourable consideration
and grant planning permission in accordance with the conditions set out
below. Suggested wording is as follows:

“Within 3 months of the date of this decision notice, the gate (shown on
drawing no.21530B/11) shall be removed and the access permanently sealed

57



g)

in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority, and hedgerows shall be re-instated /replanted within
the opening to a similar species and planting spacing to the existing
hedgerow. No further vehicular or pedestrian access shall be achieved
through this sealed off and replanted opening at any time.”

Recommendation

Grant planning permission subject to conditions to include:

i) Carried out in accordance with the approved plans (notwithstanding the
removal of the gate); ii) no temporary structures within the application site; iii)
details of the storage of disposal of manure; iv) used for private use only; v)
limit the number of horses; vi) no events/livery/commercial use vii) close and
seal off access and replant hedgerow.

Powers be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to settle
any necessary planning conditions in line with the issues set out in the
recommendation and as resolved by Planning Committee.

Case Officer

Chris Hawkins

58



a)

b)

Appendix 1

DOV/16/01356 - Change of use of land for the keeping of horses, the formation
of a vehicle access and the erection of a gate (retrospective application) - Land
at Monkton Court Lane, Eythorne

Reason for report: Because of the number of contrary views (18).

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be approved.

Statutory Requirements, Planning Policies and Guidance

Statute

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Dover District Council Core Strategy (2010)

Policy DM1 (Settlement Boundaries) states that development will not be permitted
outside of the urban/village confines unless specifically justified by other
development plan policies, or if it functionally requires such a location.

Policy DM11 (Managing Travel Demand) Development that would generate travel will
not be permitted outside the urban boundaries and rural settlement confines unless
justified by development plan policies.

Policy DM15 (Protection of the Countryside) Development which would result in the
loss of, or adversely affect the character or appearance, of the countryside will only
be permitted if it is:-

i. In accordance with allocations made in Development Plan Documents, or
ii. justified by the needs of agriculture; or
iii.  justified by a need to sustain the rural economy or a rural community;
iv. it cannot be accommodated elsewhere; and
v. it does not result in the loss of ecological habitats.

Policy DM16 (Landscape Character) Development that would harm the character
of the landscape, as identified through the process of landscape character
assessment will only be permitted if:

i. It is in accordance with allocations made in Development Plan Documents
and incorporates any necessary avoidance and mitigation measures; or

ii. Itcan be sited to avoid or reduce the harm and/or incorporate design
measures to mitigate the impacts to an acceptable level.

Dover District Council Local Plan (saved policies) (DDLP)

Policy DD21 (Horse Related Development) will be granted provided:

i. It provides for the safety and comfort of horses in terms of the size of the
accommodation and land for grazing exercise.
ii. Ease of access to suitable riding country can be demonstrated;

59



iii.  Buildings are of a high standard of design and do not adversely impact the
character of the area, appearance of the countryside ort historic areas.
iv.  The nearby amenity of neighbours are not adversely affected.

Land Allocations Local Plan (LALP)

None relevant to this proposal.

Worth Neighbourhood Plan

None relevant to this proposal.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Paragraph 6: Recognises that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to
the achievement of sustainable development.

Paragraph 7: Outlines the three dimensions of sustainable development, which has
an economic role, social and environmental role.

Paragraph 14: states that at the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be seem as a
golden thread running through both plan-making and decision taking.

Paragraph 58: states that it is important to plan positively for the achievement of high
quality and inclusive design for all development, including individual buildings, public
and private spaces and wider area development schemes.

Paragraph 109: of the NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment.

Paragraph 112: states that Local Planning Authorities should take into account the
economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land. Where
significant development of agricultural land is demonstrated to be necessary, local
planning authorities should seek to use areas of poorer quality land in preference to
that of higher quality.

Paragrpah 132: of a heritage asset, great weight should be given to the assets
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be.

Paragraph 133: where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to or
total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities
should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or
loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or
loss.

Paragraph 134: Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should ne
weighted against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its
optimum viable use.

60



d)

Paragraph 137- states that Local Planning Authorities should look for opportunities to
for new development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites and within
the setting of heritage assets to enhance or better reveal their significance.

Relevant Planning History

The sites planning history is listed below:

14/00477: Erection of 20 dwellings with associated car parking, access, garaging and
landscaping. Appeal Dismissed.

16/00675: Outline application for the erection of a detached dwelling (with all matters
reserved). Land adjacent to 2 Kennel Hill, Eythorne, CT15 4BQ. Refused.

Statutory Consultee and Third Party Comments

KCC Highways responded by saying that the development proposal does not meet
the criteria to warrant involvement from the Highway Authority in accordance with the
current consultation protocol arrangements.

Environmental Health had no observations or comments to make on the
application.

Eythorne Parish Council strongly object to the application due to concerns over a
previous application made by Pentland Homes in 2014 for an application for the
erection of 20 dwellings with associated access and landscaping. The Parish feel that
changing the use of the land for the grazing of horse would downgrade the level of
agricultural land (currently grade 1). The overriding implications voiced by the Parish
are that the applicant is attempting to ‘shape the site’ in order to facilitate future
development unrelated to the keeping of horses.

Agricultural Advisor comments that the land appears to have been used for grazing
for many years, rather than any more intensive agricultural use. There appears to be
no detailed report of the agricultural quality of the land, but in any event this
retrospective application for the change of use to the keeping of horses would not, of
itself, represent any permanent or irreversible development, such that the land could
not revert to an agricultural use, if so required. Consequently it is not considered that
the proposal would represent a significant loss of agricultural land, in terms of the
relevant advice in paragraph 112 of the NPPF.

Representations

A site notice was displayed notifying neighbours and local residents of the proposed
development. A total of 18 responses were received which all object to the
application. The reasons for objection are outlined below:

o Loss of the best and most versatile agricultural land;

Concerns over the access in term of highway safety and whether it is needed
given the use of the land and the existing access;

o Applicant is “shaping the ground” for a future bid for residential development on
the site. For example, by attempting to lower the agricultural grade and soften the
sites eastern boundary with hedging to essentially expand village confines;

¢ Anxiety over future use of the site in light of previous planning history;

e Lack of community engagement from the applicant with regards to their intended
use with the land;

61


https://planning.dover.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&previousKeyVal=PROPLPI_56480_1&activeTab=summary&previousCaseUprn=&previousCaseNumber=PROPLPI_56480_1&keyVal=DCAPR_224080
https://planning.dover.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&previousKeyVal=PROPLPI_56480_1&activeTab=summary&previousCaseUprn=&previousCaseNumber=PROPLPI_56480_1&keyVal=DCAPR_224080

o Inaccuracies present within the application, particular reference is made to
hedgerows and trees on site.

f) The Site and the Proposal

The Site

1.

The application site comprises an irregular rectangle shaped parcel of land on
the east side of Monkton Court Lane, located outside of the built confines of
Eythorne and adjoining the Eythorne conservation area.

The land is an undeveloped green field site classified as grade 1 agricultural
land which forms the start of a clear distinction between the edge of the
village of Eythorne and open countryside.

The application site is situated opposite residential dwellings on the west side
of Monkton Court Lane, and adjoins further residential development on
Kennel Hill beyond its southern boundary.

This application is retrospective and the site is currently used for the keeping
of horses and the new access and gate is in use.

The Proposal

5.

The application seeks retrospective planning permission to change the use of
the land for the keeping of horses. The application also seeks permission for
the creation of a new access and gate, which is also retrospective.

Main Issues

6.

The main issues in the determination of this planning application are as
follows:

The principle of development;

The impact on the countryside;
Heritage impact;

The impact on residential amenity;
Suitability of the site for keeping horses;
Access and Highways.

Assessment

Principle of Development

7.

The application site comprises undeveloped land located on the eastern edge
of the village confines of Eythorne. The Eythorne conservation area is
situated to the south west of the application area and adjoins the south west
corner of the site boundary. The proposal seeks retrospective planning
permission to use the land for the keeping of horses and the formation of a
vehicular access.

Policy DM1 states that development will not be permitted outside of the
defined settlement boundaries unless the proposal is justified by other
development plan policies or if it functionally requires such a location. In this

62



10.

11.

case, the keeping of horses is best suited to and functionally requires a rural
location.

Policy DD21 of the Dover Local Plan saved policies states that horse related
development will be granted provided that; the site is safe and of a suitable
size; it is easy to access suitable riding country and; the character of the area
and neighbouring amenity is not adversely affected as result. It is considered
that the site allows space for horse related development in line with
development plan policy DD21.

Officers note that the site is grade 1 agricultural land, however this is not
considered to be an issue in this instance as the grade of land is easily
reversible from the keeping on horses. There is therefore no conflict with
Paragraph 112 of the NPPF. This has been confirmed by the Councils
agricultural advisor.

In light of the above, officers consider the principle of keeping of horses on
this site to be acceptable, with planning permission subject to the proposal
adhering with the requirements outlined within policy DD21 and the other
material considerations set out below.

Impact on Character and Appearance of Countryside and Landscape

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The site is in a rural location outside of the village confines of Eythorne and is
characterised by sporadic residential development, open countryside and
agricultural land.

Policy DM15 of the Core Strategy outlines how development which would
result in the loss of, or adversely affect the character or appearance, of the
countryside will only be permitted if it is:

i. In accordance with allocations made in Development Plan
Documents, or

i.  justified by the needs of agriculture; or

iii.  justified by a need to sustain the rural economy or a rural community;

iv. it cannot be accommodated elsewhere; and

v. it does not result in the loss of ecological habitats

-~

The keeping of horses functionally requires a rural location and is therefore
acceptable as a matter of principle, in line with the requirements of policy
DM1 as well as DM15. The development would also not interfere with or
result in a loss of ecological habitats. The use of the land for the keeping of
horses is a therefore considered to be a compatible use in the rural area.

Policy DM16 of the Core Strategy sets out how development that would harm
the character of the landscape will only be permitted if:

i. It is in accordance with allocations made in Development Plan
Documents and incorporates any necessary avoidance and mitigation
measures; or

ii. It can be sited to avoid or reduce the harm and/or incorporate design
measures to mitigate the impacts to an acceptable level.

The use of the land for the keeping of horses upholds the rural character of
the area given that that the openness of the countryside is retained. The

63



17.

18.

keeping of horses is also a rural land based activity and therefore is an
acceptable use of the site.

The agricultural buildings on site operate ancillary to the use of the land and
are screened by mature vegetation along the western boundary, which
minimise visual impact.

In light of the above, officers are satisfied that the change of use of the land
for keeping horses is a suitable use of the land of the land in this location and
does not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the
countryside or neighbouring conservation area, in line with Core Strategy
policies DM15, DM16.

Heritage Impact

19.

20.

21.

Paragraph 132 states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight
should be given to the assets conservation. Paragrpah 134 states that where
a development will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against public
benefits of the proposal.

The Eythorne conservation area boundary adjoins the south-west corner of
the application site, which extends to the west, away from the application site
and south into the countryside. The conservation are begins on the southern
corner of Monkton Court Lane and area incorporates a number of properties
along ‘The Street’ stretching westward.

Views of the application site from the conservation area are limited, however
the change of use of the land has not considerably changed these views and
therefore it is not considered that there is any harm to the character and
appearance of the conservation area. In this instance, the impact is
considered to be neutral.

Impact on Residential Amenity

22.

23.

24.

Policy DD21 states that horse related development will be permitted provided
that there is no adverse harm on the residential amenity of neighbouring
occupants. Likewise, paragraph 17 of the NPPF seeks to ensure that a good
level of amenity is secured for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings.

The change of use of the land for the keeping of horses has not adversely
affected the outlook of neighbouring residential dwellings. The presence of
horses on site is the only notable change to the site, which is not considered
to be unacceptably harmful to amenity.

Officers have read and understood the concerns raised by local residents with
regards to the unpleasant smells that may arise. However, there is adequate
space between the residential development and the land used for the keeping
of horses. Environmental Health were consulted on the application and did
not raise any concerns on this matter. Details of the muck heap location and
disposal of waste will be secured by condition.

64



25.

In light of the above, | am satisfied that the change of use of the land for
keeping of horses has not resulted in harm to the neighbouring amenity of
residents.

Suitability of Site for Keeping Horses

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Policy DD21 states that horse related development will usually be permitted.
However, for permission to be granted, sites for the keeping of horses must
be safe, of a suitable size and have good access to riding country.

The site comprises 1.8 hectares (approximately 4.5 acres) of undeveloped
land, which offers more than acceptable space for the keeping of horses. The
site is enclosed by mature planting and a gate is installed to ensure that the
horses are securely contained within the site. Good access to suitable riding
country is provided.

The applicant has not submitted any information confirming how many horses
are kept on the land. The British Horse Society sets out guidelines for the
provision and grazing of horses, and states that average pasture will maintain
approximately two horses per hectare as permanent grazing (1-1.5 acres per
individual), provided that good pasture management is employed.

A condition will be imposed to the permission to ensure that the number of
horses kept at the site is limited to 1 horse per acre, which is a maximum of
four horses.

With the above in mind, it is considered that the sites characteristics conform
to the requirements of Policy DD21.

Access and Highways

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Access to the site is served by a vehicle crossover on Monkton Court Lane,
which is concealed by a wooden gate measuring 3.5 metres in width and 1.25
metres in height.

KCC Highways were not required to comment on the application given that it
does not meet the criteria to warrant involvement from the Highway Authority
in accordance with the current consultation protocol arrangements.

Policy DM11 states that development that would generate travel will not be
permitted outside the urban boundaries and rural settlement confines unless
justified by development plan policies.

The site is outside of the settlement confines of Eythorne and the use of the
site for the keeping of horses will generate some vehicle movements.
However, as discussed previously the location of the site is justified because
of functional requirements and also in line with Policy DD21. In any event, the
number of vehicle trips generated will not have an unduly adverse impact on
the existing highway network and the existing road infrastructure would be
able to accommodate this.

The vehicle crossover from Monkton Court Lane, allows appropriate visibility
splays and an entry point large enough to accommodate vehicles travelling to
and from the site.

65



36. Officers are satisfied with access arrangements onto the site and that the
change of use will not have an adverse impact on the highway network. The
change of use therefore accords with Policy DM11 of the Core Strategy.

Conclusion

37.In summary, a change of use of this site does not cause harm to the
character of the countryside or conservation area, does not harm the
neighbouring amenity of residents and offers safe and suitable
accommodation to horses. The change of use therefore accords with policies;
DM1, DM11, DM15, DM16, DD21 as well as the aims and objectives of the
NPPF, subject to appropriate management of the site.

Recommendation

Grant planning permission subject to conditions to include:

| i) carried out in accordance with the approved drawings; ii) to temporary
structures; iii) storage and disposal of manure; iv) used for private use only; v)
maximum number of horses.

Il Powers delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to settle any
necessary planning conditions in line with the issues set out in the
recommendation and as resolved by Planning Committee.

Case Officer

Chris Hawkins



Appendix 2

Minutes of the Planning Committee Meeting of 26 October 2017

Members viewed plans and photographs of the application site which had been the subject
of previous refusals due to its location and unsustainability. The Planning Consultant
advised that the principle of keeping horses at the site was accepted. A number of concerns
had been raised about the manner in which the site had been used and managed in the
past, and how residential development might be pursued in the future. On the latter, the
Council’'s agricultural adviser had commented that any future application for residential
development would be no more likely to be granted given that the development now
proposed was reversible and not permanent. As a correction to the report, it was clarified
that condition ii) should read ‘no temporary structures’ and that the maximum number of
horses would be limited to four.

Councillor Ovenden referred to a previous application that had been refused. An existing
field access had previously been unavailable to the applicant whilst the application was
pending. However, the field access was now available and she could therefore see no need
for the new access. Moreover, the hedgerow lost as a result of the creation of the new
access had been cited by the Inspector in dismissing the appeal in relation to application
DOV/14/00477. She argued that neighbours had been adversely affected by the keeping of
horses on the site which was contrary to Policy DD21 of the Local Development Plan. She
queried whether the application could be refused in part.

The Planning Consultant advised that his understanding was that applications could not be
refused and approved in part. It was not for the Committee to consider how the land had
been used and managed in the past, but whether the land was suitable for the keeping of
horses. The amount of hedgerow that had been lost as a result of the current proposal was
less than had been proposed as part of the previously refused application. Finally,
applications could not be refused on whether the use was needed, but on whether they were
policy compliant and acceptable in planning terms.

The Chairman commented that the Committee’s role was to consider whether harm had
been caused by the removal of the hedgerow. The Planning Consultant clarified that
conditions would prevent events being held on site and the ability to build chattels, hard-
standings and temporary structures. The Planning Solicitor advised that National Planning
Policy Guidance indicated that decisions should not be split without the agreement of the
applicant. A more appropriate way to deal with the application would be to seek amended
details from the applicant prior to a decision being made.

Councillor Gardner proposed that the application should be refused on the grounds that the
access was not acceptable, with an informative that the keeping of four horses would be
allowed. Councillor Keen added that accessing the site with horseboxes, bales of
hay, etc via such a narrow road would be difficult and was therefore unacceptable. The
Chairman was of the view that it would be more appropriate to defer the application to
enable negotiations to take place with the applicant regarding the access.

RESOLVED: That, notwithstanding the Officer's recommendation, Application No
DOV/16/01356 be DEFERRED to allow Officers to negotiate with the
applicant regarding the removal of the access gate and reinstatement of the
hedgerow.

67



made.

Gun Park
' ns s (Recreation Ground)
<
Gardens % oAl Gomt

+ g

Tel
Ex

Farm Hoy

Fire Sta Cobblers
Cottage

September Plage

Bank House

Milton
Cottage

Fairfield
Cottage

Fairfield
House

Ink-Pen
House

The Coach & Horses

Hillside

LB

This plan has been produced for Planning Committee purposes only. No furti8eedpilembe 3é

The
Bull Inn

-1 T :

5

13USWIMOT Nl ooo-ooootooiiiiitesg

B

owling
Green

Not to scale Application: DOV/14/00240

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the
Controlled of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown

Eastry Hospital

identification only. N

copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Mill Lane
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Eastry
CT130JU
Dover District Council Licence Number 100019780
published 2014
] ] ) ) TR30785456
Note: This plan is provided for purposes of site = v




a)

b)

DOV/14/00240 - Redevelopment of site to provide a total of 100 residential units
comprising: two-storey terrace, semi-detached and detached new-build
dwellings; Change of use and conversion of Tewkesbury House and the
Chapel to provide 568 sqm of community space (Use Class D1), employment
space (Use Class B1) and two residential units; minor demolition, alteration
and conversion of the ‘Old Workhouse’ to provide ten residential units;
retention and reinstatement of the fire-damaged Range building and erection of
a two-storey terrace of ten residential units; car parking, landscaping, public
open space and alteration to existing access (Amended plans and documents)
— Eastry Hospital, Mill Lane, Eastry

Reason for report: Number of contrary views (13)

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be granted.

Planning Policies and Guidance

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
states that in considering whether to grant listed building consent the local planning
authority “shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest it possesses.”

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires that the planning authority should pay special regard to the desirability of
preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest it possesses.

Section 72 of the Act 1990 requires that the planning authority should pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of
the conservation area.

Land Allocations Local Plan Adopted 2015

Policy LA29 is specifically related to this application site, being the allocation policy
for Eastry Hospital within the recent Local Plan. It should be noted that this policy
was adopted after the initial submission of this planning application. The policy states
that:

‘The site is allocated for a mixed-use scheme including residential, community and
compatible employment generating uses with an estimated capacity of 80 dwellings.
Planning permission will be permitted provided that:

i. any proposals ensure that repairs to the external envelope of the listed
workhouse building are prioritised;

ii. any proposals ensure that visual interest is not harmed, and provide for a soft
loose knit interface between the site boundary and adjacent countryside and,

69



in particular, provide for structural landscaping along the southern boundary
of the site;

iii. any road improvements arising from the development are funded by the
developer and limited to works which are compatible with the historic
environment;

iv. the traffic and highways issues can be satisfactorily addressed;

V. redevelopment of the Range building reflects the height, scale and massing of
the fire damaged building and include a porte-cochere (a covered entrance
large enough for vehicles to pass through);

Vi. the development should provide a connection to the water supply
infrastructure at the nearest point of adequate capacity;
Vii. a mitigation strategy to address any impact on the Thanet Coast and

Sandwich Bay Ramsar and SPA sites and Sandwich Bay SAC site is
developed. The strategy should consider a range of measures and initiatives;
and viii. the Public Right of Way (EE256) is retained and enhanced.’

Dover District Core Strategy

Policy CP1 states that the location and scale of development in the District must
comply with the Settlement Hierarchy. The Hierarchy should also be used by
infrastructure providers to inform decisions about the provision of their services.

Policy CP2 outlines the provision of jobs and homes required between 2006- 2026.
Policy CP3 relates to the distribution of housing allocations.
Policy CP4 relates to housing quality, mix, density and design.

Policy CP5 outlines the sustainable construction standards required for new non-
residential development which proposes in excess of 1,000 square metres of floor
space.

Policy CP6 seeks to ensure that development that generates a demand for
infrastructure will only be permitted if the necessary infrastructure to support it is
either already in place, or there is a reliable mechanism to ensure that it will be
provided at the time it is needed.

Policy DM1 states that development will not be permitted outside of the urban/village
confines unless specifically justified by other development plan policies, or if its
functionality requires such a location.

Policy DM5 states that the Council will seek applications for residential
developments of 15 or more dwellings to provide 30% of the total homes proposed
as affordable homes, in home types that will address prioritised need, and for
developments between 5 and 14 homes to make a contribution towards the provision
of affordable housing. Affordable housing should be provided on the application site
except in relation to developments of 5 to 14 dwellings which may provide either on-
site affordable housing or a broadly equivalent financial contribution, or a
combination of both. The exact amount of affordable housing, or financial
contribution, to be delivered from any specific scheme will be determined by
economic viability having regard to individual site and market conditions.

Policy DM11 states that planning applications that would increase travel demand
should be accompanied with a suitable assessment of this increase. This again re-
iterates that development outside of the urban/rural confines will not be permitted
unless justified by Development Plan policies.



d)

Policy DM12 relates the road hierarchy within the Borough.

Policy DM13 states that parking provision should be design led and based on the
characteristics of the site, the locality, the nature of the proposed development 63
and its design objectives. Provision for non-residential development, and for
residential cycle provision, should be informed by Kent County Council Guidance
SPG4, or any successor.

Policy DM16 states that development that would harm the character of the
landscape will only be permitted if it is in accordance with allocations made in
Development Plan Documents and incorporates any necessary avoidance and
mitigation measures; or it can be sited to avoid or reduce the harm and/or incorporate
design measures to mitigate the impacts to an acceptable level.

Policy DM25 relates to the provision of open space within developments.

Saved Policies

Policy TR9: Cycles Routes

Policy HS2: Housing Allocations

Policy OS2: Children’s Play Space
Policy OS3: Open space

Policy AS11: Re-use of Eastry Hospital

National Planning Policy Framework

The NPPF states that at its heart is the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, to be seen as a golden thread running through decision-taking. It sets
out three dimensions to achieving sustainable development; economic, social and
environmental. These should not be undertaken in isolation, because they are
mutually dependent. To achieve sustainable development economic, social and
environmental gains should be sought jointly and simultaneously through the
planning system.

o Paragraph 14 sets out the presumption in favour if sustainable development. This
is set out in full in the Overall Conclusions section at the end of this report.

e Paragraph 17 sets out 12 core principles which amongst the others seek to

secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and

future residents.

Section 1 sets out the needs of building a strong, competitive economy.

Section 4: Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 6: Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

Section 7: Requiring a good design

Paragraph 69 and 70 sets out the importance of facilitating social interaction and

creating healthy, inclusive communities and to deliver the social, recreational and

cultural facilities and services the community needs.

e Section 11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

e Section 12: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment. National
Planning Policy Guidance This provides guidance relating to matters contained
within the NPPF.

Relevant Planning History

There is extensive planning history for this application. The relevant history is
summarised below:

71



93/00609: Two six place residential units. Granted on 18th November 1993.

00/00259: Demolition of a major part of Eastry Hospital (but retaining Chapel,

buildings on back edge of Mill Lane and building fronting the access).
Granted permission 18th May 2000.

04/01399: Erection of 23 houses and 26 apartments together with 2145m2 of B1

Employment floorspace following the demolition of existing buildings.
Refused permission on 16th February 2005.

14/00241 Minor demolition, and refurbishment/conversion of the Old Workhouse

to provide 10 residential units; alterations and conversion of
Tewkesbury House and the former Chapel to provide for community
and employment space; reinstatement of the former Range building to
provide a two-storey terrace of 10 residential units. (Amended plans
and documents). Yet to be determined — awaiting the outcome of this
application.

Also of relevance is Tree Preservation Order 3/2001 dated 28 March 2001.

e) Consultee and Third Party Comments

All comments relating the application that were submitted prior to the Planning
Committee Meeting on the 31 August 2017 are set out within the appended report.

Since the publication of this report, one additional letter of representation has been
received which raises concerns with regards to the point of access into the
application site.

There are no additional consultation responses to report to Members.

f) The Site and Proposal

1.

The proposed site is roughly L-shaped which is approximately 4.68ha, lying on
the south side of Mill Lane on the southern edge of the village of Eastry. Eastry is
located approximately 20km east of Canterbury. There is one single point of
vehicular and pedestrian access to the site from Mill Lane.

The site was formerly used as a mental health hospital, however that use ceased
in the 1990’s. Prior to being acquired by the NHS, the site housed the Eastry
Union Workhouse. The original Old Workhouse building is highly prominent on
site and has been affected by numerous fires but is still a Grade Il listed building.
The site also consists of the Eastry Asylum Chapel and Tewkesbury House. In
2008, many of the other previous hospital buildings were demolished.

The Eastry Conservation Area, as designated by Dover District Council, extends
across the north corner of the site and includes the Old Workhouse and Chapel.
The site is located outside of the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB), though the land to the immediate south of the site, part of which is under
the applicant’s ownership, has been designated as part of the North Downs
Special Landscape Area (SLA) by Kent County Council.

The proposal comprises of residential development consisting of 100 dwellings
with partial redevelopment of The Range and the Old Workhouse. In addition, the
development will comprise of commercial/community floorspace to be provided

72



10.

11.

12.

13.

within the Chapel, the retained wing to the Old Workhouse and Tewkesbury
House providing a total of 568m2 of B1/D1 floorspace.

The range of dwellings include: 12 x 2-bed flats, 34 x 2-bed houses, 25 x 3-bed
houses, 9 x 4-bed houses. As well as 7 x 2-bed, 2 x 3-bed and 1 x 4-bed houses
in the Range and 7 x 1-bed and 3 x 2-bed flats in the Old Workhouse. The new
dwellings will use a mix of materials including timber cladding, brickwork, powder
coated aluminium frames, slate and roof tiles.

The application site contains a number of listed buildings, with the descriptions
available on the Historic England website. These listed buildings are however in a
significant state of disrepair, with only the chapel within the site appearing to be
fully intact.

The site is very much overgrown, with the buildings within the site in a particularly
unkempt state, and they have clearly suffered significant vandalism over the past
few years. There is evidence of fires having taken place within the site and other
forms of anti-social behaviour — such as graffiti.

Assessment

This application was deferred by Members at the Planning Committee meeting on
the 31 August 2017 for the following reasons:

That, notwithstanding the Officer's recommendation, Application No
DOV/14/00240 be DEFERRED for the following information: (i) An updated
Viability Assessment and an independent review of that Assessment; (ii)
Clarification from Southern Water on whether there is an increased flood risk; (iii)
Clarification from Southern Water regarding what drainage infrastructure is
required; (iv) Details of the phasing plan for the listed buildings; and (v)
Clarification on the design of the housing in front of the hospital and its
association with that building.

This report therefore seeks to address the issues raised by Members on each
matter.

The original committee report is attached at Appendix 1.
Viability

The first matter for consideration is the requirement for an updated viability
appraisal to be submitted and reviewed. Following the Planning Committee
meeting, the applicants submitted an updated appraisal (on the 27 September
2017) which addresses Members’ concern with regards the age of the
information and data inputted into the previous viability appraisal.

As background, the previous viability report was dated August 2015, and
Members’ concern related to whether these were up-to-date given the changes
within the housing market. The report, submitted by the applicant seeks to
address this, by looking at the likely level of profit that would be generated with
2017 values and build costs within the appraisal.

One of the key points for debate relates to the land acquisition cost — and
whether this should be treated as being at the point of purchase, or whether this

73



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

value should reflect the likely purchase price in the here and now. There is no
hard and fast rule in this regard, but what one should consider it how important it
is that the site is redeveloped to the Council, and the likelihood of the site being
sold on should a loss then be made.

In this regard | am of the view that this is an important site to the Council,
delivering not only 100 houses to meet their strategic, and indeed immediate
(five-year housing land supply) need, but also to ensure the long-term future of
these important heritage assets. To this end, it would not be in the Council’s
interests for this site to remain undeveloped for the unforeseeable future, and as
such, the Council have taken a pragmatic approach to development here. For this
reason, | am happy to accept the purchase price within the financial appraisal.

The assertion from the applicant's agent that because of the more buoyant
housing market, there would be an expectation of more that 20% profit on costs
is not accepted however. Whilst this might well be desirable, there is no reason,
in terms of availability of finance that this would be required. | therefore give this
little weight in the determination of this application.

The appraisal does demonstrate though, that with the provision of 10% affordable
housing, there would be a profit of between 15% and 17% - which is within the
recognised level of profit that any developer would expect when undertaking a
scheme of this nature. Should the profit levels drop below 15% then finance
would be less readily available, and would certainly make the proposal less
attractive to the site owner.

The figures that have been submitted have been analysed and are considered to
be robust, and relate to the local property market.

It is therefore recommended that Members accept the findings of this report, and
the recommendations of the previous report which would see a provision of 10%
affordable housing, together with the contributions towards ecological mitigation
and open space.

Flood Risk

Members raised concerns with regards to the impact that this proposal would
have upon the locality in terms of flood risk, and requested that further
discussions be held with the statutory undertaker to assess the likely impact of
this proposal.

It is important for Members to note that the Water Industry Act 1991 has
significant powers that should not be overridden by the granting of planning
permission, and in particular the imposition of safeguarding conditions. This is not
to say of course, that flood and drainage are not material considerations in the
determination of planning applications.

Of particular importance in the High Court Case (Barratt Homes Limited v DWR
Cymru Cyfyngedig (Welsh Water) (2009) UKSC 13) which made it clear that any
developer has the right to connect to a public sewer (or drain) under Section 106
(of the Water Industry Act 1991) and that right cannot be denied because it might
cause a nuisance, or capacity issues. This also states that Grampian conditions
should not be imposed to prevent an impact upon the drainage system as a result
of the undertaker failing to provide sufficient capacity.

74



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

In this instance, Southern Water has stated that they do not have capacity within
the locality, however they have invited the applicant to liaise with them in order to
ensure that it can be provided. | have discussed the matter with Southern Water
and they have confirmed that given the run-off rate for surface water from the site
is to be improved through the use of SuDs, the capacity concern relates to waste
water disposal — which is course is unlikely to cause any flooding.

In this instance, the statutory undertaker has requested that an informative be
placed upon any permission which would ensure that the developer and Southern
Water enter into a formal agreement (outside of planning legislation) to provide
the necessary infrastructure required to service this development. This
requirement, together with the necessity to provide a drainage strategy for within
the site will ensure that there would be no detrimental impact upon the existing
network, and will also ensure that there would be no further risk of flooding.

Phasing of Listed Buildings

It is proposed that the listed building will be completed within phase Il of the
application, which will ensure that this work is undertaken in a timely fashion. It is
proposed that the phasing plan be included within the S106 agreement so that
this is enforceable.

Location of Dwellings to Front of Hospital Building

Members expressed concern at the previous Planning Committee with regards
to the location and orientation of dwellings to the front of the existing hospital
building, and in particular the fact that these ‘back on’ to the building. Further
discussions have taken place with the applicant as to whether there would be any
benefit in re-orientating the dwellings, however this would have significant
implications for the remainder of the development, and access to the units.

One of the benefits of having the dwellings orientated in this manner is the fact
that it limited the number of vehicular movements than run to the front of the
listed buildings. Should these dwellings be re-positioned then the number of
vehicles running past the listed buildings would be increased.

In addition, any re-positioning would be likely to have an impact upon the outlook
of the other dwellings within the development. The design submitted seeks to
ensure that there would be a legible road hierarchy, and this is achieved through
both the layout and the materials used within the highways.

I am therefore satisfied that the proposal does represent a high standard of
design, that would have the least impact upon the setting of the listed buildings,
and would also represent a good standard of urban design. As such, the
applicant has not been requested to amend the proposal further.

Conclusion

As set out within the previous report, this is an application that has now been
with the local authority for three years. Through this passage of time,
amendments have been made to the scheme and additional information has
been submitted.

75



g)

30.

31.

32.

Whilst clearly the failure to deliver a policy compliant level of affordable housing is
regrettable, in this instance, the viability report is robust, and demonstrates that
the costs of refurbishing the listed buildings would be significantly greater than
expected on most sites, and this has a significant impact upon developer profits.
It is therefore concluded that this is acceptable in this instance.

It is also considered that the matter of drainage can be adequately addressed
through both the imposition of conditions, and the requirements of the 1991
Water Industry Act. The provision of SuDs within the development will actually
ensure that surface water run-off is at a lesser rate than greenfield — which will
alleviate any risk of flooding.

It is also considered that the design is of a high standard, and that there is an
adequate mechanism to ensure that the refurbishment to the listed buildings
takes place at an appropriate stage. For these reasons, it is recommended that
Members give this application favourable consideration and grant delegated
powers to approve in accordance with the requirements set out below.

Recommendation

. GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the completion of a legal
agreement to secure the provision of 10% affordable housing and appropriate
financial contributions to provide necessary ecological mitigation, and to
secure appropriate phasing of the site, and subject to conditions to include:

i) commencement within 3 years; ii) carried out in accordance with the
approved drawings; iii) submission of Construction Management Plan; iv)
limits on temporary lighting/illumination; v) development carried out in
accordance with approved phasing sequence; vi) submission of development
phasing vii) written confirmation of commencement of development and first
occupation of each phase; viii) submission of details relevant to
sales/marketing accommodation, vehicle parking and servicing and
associated development; ix) limits to means of enclosure; x) limits to the
provision of hard surfacing; xi) submission of material samples; xii)
informative on windows; xiii) submission of details for listed buildings; xiv)
solar panel installation; xv) retention of Public Right of Way; xvi) submission
of details- proposed on-site highway works; xvii) finished surfacing to vehicle
and pedestrian access routes; xviii) submission of details of sight lines
(roadway junctions); xix) submission of details of sight lines (private
driveways); xx) limits on development overhang; xxi) submission of details
related to vehicle parking; xxii) submission of travel plan; xxiii) submission of
details of hard and soft landscaping; xxiv) hard and soft landscaping carried
out in accordance with approved details; xxv) limits on excavation during
construction; xxvi) limits on storage of materials; xxvii) no damage to trees of
hedgerows within phased development; xxviii) erection of mans of enclosure;
xxix) submission of external lighting scheme; xxx) submission of details of
refuse storage areas and recycling facilities; xxxi) programme of
archaeological works; xxxii) contamination informative; xxxiii) submission of
sustainable water drainage scheme; xxxiv) infiltration of surface water
drainage only with approval of LPA; xxxv) submission of Foul Sewerage
Disposal Strategy; xxxvi) retention of open areas/spaces; xxxvii) no external
units on any external elevation; xxxviii) secure and implement programme of
archaeological works; xxxix) ecological enhancements; xxxx) any other
conditions as required by KCC highways; xxxxi) safeguarding employment
use; xxxxii) any other conditions as required by DDC Conservation; and

76



Powers be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to settle
any necessary S106 matters and planning conditions in line with issues set
out in the recommendation and as resolved by Planning Committee.

77



b)

Appendix 1

a) DOV/14/00240 - Redevelopment of site to provide a total of 100 residential units

comprising: two-storey terrace, semi-detached and detached new-build
dwellings; Change of use and conversion of Tewkesbury House and the
Chapel to provide 568 sqm of community space (Use Class D1), employment
space (Use Class B1) and two residential units; minor demolition, alteration
and conversion of the ‘Old Workhouse’ to provide ten residential units;
retention and reinstatement of the fire-damaged Range building and erection of
a two-storey terrace of ten residential units; car parking, landscaping, public
open space and alteration to existing access (Amended plans and documents)
— Eastry Hospital, Mill Lane, Eastry

Reason for report: Number of contrary views (13)

Summary of Recommendation

Planning permission be granted.

Legislation, Planning Policies and Guidance

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
states that in considering whether to grant listed building consent the local planning
authority “shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest it possesses.”

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires that the planning authority should pay special regard to the desirability of
preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest it possesses.

Section 72 of the Act 1990 requires that the planning authority should pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of
the conservation area.

Land Allocations Local Plan Adopted 2015

Policy LA29 is specifically related to this application site, being the allocation policy
for Eastry Hospital within the recent Local Plan. It should be noted that this policy
was adopted after the initial submission of this planning application. The policy states
that:

‘The site is allocated for a mixed use scheme including residential, community and
compatible employment generating uses with an estimated capacity of 80 dwellings.
Planning permission will be permitted provided that:

i. any proposals ensure that repairs to the external envelope of the listed
workhouse building are prioritised;

ii. any proposals ensure that visual interest is not harmed, and provide for a soft
loose knit interface between the site boundary and adjacent countryside and,
in particular, provide for structural landscaping along the southern boundary
of the site;

iii. any road improvements arising from the development are funded by the
developer and limited to works which are compatible with the historic
environment;

iv. the traffic and highways issues can be satisfactorily addressed;

78



Vi.

Vii.

redevelopment of the Range building reflects the height, scale and massing of
the fire damaged building and include a porte-cochere (a covered entrance
large enough for vehicles to pass through);

the development should provide a connection to the water supply
infrastructure at the nearest point of adequate capacity;

a mitigation strategy to address any impact on the Thanet Coast and
Sandwich Bay Ramsar and SPA sites and Sandwich Bay SAC site is
developed. The strategy should consider a range of measures and initiatives;
and viii. the Public Right of Way (EE256) is retained and enhanced.’

Dover District Core Strategy:

Policy CP1 states that the location and scale of development in the District must
comply with the Settlement Hierarchy. The Hierarchy should also be used by
infrastructure providers to inform decisions about the provision of their services.

Policy CP2 outlines the provision of jobs and homes required between 2006-
2026.

e Policy CP3: Distribution of Housing Allocations
e Policy CP4: Housing Quality, Mix, Density and Design.

Policy CP5 outlines the sustainable construction standards required for new non-
residential development which proposes in excess of 1,000 square metres of
floor space.

Policy CP6 seeks to ensure that development that generates a demand for
infrastructure will only be permitted if the necessary infrastructure to support it is
either already in place, or there is a reliable mechanism to ensure that it will be
provided at the time it is needed.

Policy DM1 states that development will not be permitted outside of the
urban/village confines unless specifically justified by other development plan
policies, or if its functionality requires such a location.

Policy DM5 states that the Council will seek applications for residential
developments of 15 or more dwellings to provide 30% of the total homes
proposed as affordable homes, in home types that will address prioritised need,
and for developments between 5 and 14 homes to make a contribution towards
the provision of affordable housing. Affordable housing should be provided on
the application site except in relation to developments of 5 to 14 dwellings which
may provide either on-site affordable housing or a broadly equivalent financial
contribution, or a combination of both. The exact amount of affordable housing, or
financial contribution, to be delivered from any specific scheme will be determined
by economic viability having regard to individual site and market conditions.

Policy DM11 states that planning applications that would increase travel demand
should be accompanied with a suitable assessment of this increase. This again
re-iterates that development outside of the urban/rural confines will not be
permitted unless justified by Development Plan policies.

e Policy DM12: Road Hierarchy

Policy DM13 states that parking provision should be design led and based on the
characteristics of the site, the locality, the nature of the proposed development

79



d)

and its design objectives. Provision for non-residential development, and for
residential cycle provision, should be informed by Kent County Council Guidance
SPG4, or any successor.

Policy DM16 states that development that would harm the character of the
landscape will only be permitted if it is in accordance with allocations made in
Development Plan Documents and incorporates any necessary avoidance and
mitigation measures; or it can be sited to avoid or reduce the harm and/or
incorporate design measures to mitigate the impacts to an acceptable level.

e Policy DM25: Open Space

Saved Policies

Policy TR9: Cycles Routes

Policy HS2: Housing Allocations

Policy OS2: Children’s Play Space
Policy OS3: Open space

Policy AS11: Re-use of Eastry Hospital

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The NPPF states that at its heart is the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, to be seen as a golden thread running through decision-taking. It sets
out three dimensions to achieving sustainable development; economic, social and
environmental. These should not be undertaken in isolation, because they are
mutually dependent. To achieve sustainable development economic, social and
environmental gains should be sought jointly and simultaneously through the
planning system.

Paragraph 14 sets out the presumption in favour if sustainable development.
This is set out in full in the Overall Conclusions section at the end of this report.
Paragraph 17 sets out 12 core principles which amongst the others seek to
secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and
future residents.

Section 1 sets out the needs of building a strong, competitive economy.

Section 4: Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 6: Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

Section 7: Requiring a good design

Paragraph 69 and 70 sets out the importance of facilitating social interaction and
creating healthy, inclusive communities and to deliver the social, recreational and
cultural facilities and services the community needs.

Section 11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Section 12: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

National Planning Policy Guidance

This provides guidance relating to matters contained within the NPPF.

Relevant Planning History

There is extensive planning history for this application. The relevant history is
summarised below:

93/00609: Two six place residential units. Granted on 18" November 1993.

80



00/00259: Demolition of a major part of Eastry Hospital (but retaining Chapel,
buildings on back edge of Mill Lane and building fronting the access).
Granted permission 18" May 2000.

04/01399: Erection of 23 houses and 26 apartments together with 2145m2 of B1
Employment floorspace following the demolition of existing buildings.
Refused permission on 16" February 2005.

14/00241 Minor demolition, and refurbishment/conversion of the Old Workhouse
to provide 10 residential units; alterations and conversion of
Tewkesbury House and the former Chapel to provide for community
and employment space; reinstatement of the former Range building to
provide a two-storey terrace of 10 residential units. (Amended plans
and documents). Yet to be determined — awaiting the outcome of this
application.

Also of relevance is Tree Preservation Order 3/2001 dated 28 March 2001.

Consultee and Third Party Comments

Neighbouring occupiers were notified and to date 13 letters of objection and 1 letter
of support have been received. 6 of the commentators offered their comments but
remained neutral. It is worth noting that many of those who objected to the
application would accept an alternative, perhaps less intensive redevelopment of the
site. The main comments within these letters are summarised below:

Objections:

e The development would result in an unacceptable level of increased traffic.

¢ Increased population would place pressure on local facilities such as schools,
doctors surgery etc.

e Lack of infrastructure to support the development.

e Overdevelopment of the locality/ too many houses.

e The application site covers an area which is potentially rich in archaeological
material.

e Concerns over the impact of the development on nearby listed buildings and

how the development would be in keeping with the historic built environment.

Surface water drainage.

Traffic assessment out of date.

Development not in keeping with the character of the area.

No affordable housing contribution.

Construction related disturbance (noise, vehicles etc.).

Support:

¢ Welcome initiative for rural regeneration to provide extra housing. However it
is stated that more could be done to protect the historic built environment

Neutral:

e Information requested from nearby surgery on how it would cope with
increased population level. Requested a S106 to ensure adequate provision is
given.

Natural England were consulted and raised no objection in regard to national and
international designated sites. We have not assessed this application for impacts on
protected species.

81



Dover District Council Environmental Health Officer was consulted and states
that the proposed development sits on top of the former hospital site which could
possibly be contaminated land. The application shows little detail on the planned use
of the existing church / chapel for change of use to B1 planning class. During
previous demolition works within the planned development area Dover District
Council served a Section 80 Abatement Notice for smoke nuisance. There were also
concerns raised over the burning of trade waste. | would advise any developer of this
site to pay due regard to smoke nuisance legislation under the Environmental
Protection Act 1990. | would also draw the developer’s attention to the waste
management regulation for the disposal of site waste. Your attention is drawn to the
provisions of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. Section 60 & 61 of the Act gives local
authorities powers to control noise from construction sites.

Dover District Council Heritage Officer: The remaining buildings of the historic
workhouse have suffered from extensive damage resulting in much of the internal
historic fabric being lost. Externally the buildings contribute strongly to the street
scene, being large and dominant structures within a street composed of small scale
dwellings. However the largest building, the original 1835-36 workhouse has suffered
significantly resulting in the need to carry out emergency works to remove several
courses of the brick facade to prevent loose material falling and potentially causing
harm to the general public. The proposal to convert to residential would help to
ensure the preservation of the building and prevent further loss.

Dover District Council Ecological Officer: Makes no comments in relation to the
application.

The Fire Officer was consulted and stated that from the submitted plans it appears
that access to the site for the Fire and Rescue Service, as required by Section 53 of
the above legislation, is adequate.

Kent Highways Services: Were initially consulted upon the application and raised a
number of concerns with regards to the proposal and the data that was submitted
with it. They therefore asked the applicant to submit further studies and plans, which
were subsequently reviewed.

KCC Highways have now withdrawn a number of their objections but remain
concerned with regards to the following matters:

KCC PROW were consulted and raised no objection to the erection of the
development but as the proposed application is directly adjacent to footpath ER256
had concerns regarding how this will affect the footpath. It is intended to address this
concern by condition.

KCC Development contributions were consulted and requested contributions for
Primary school, secondary school, library book stock, Adult Social Care contributions
and a condition to be included for the provision of Superfast Fibre Optic Broadband.
As is set out within the main body of the report, these contributions cannot be met
due to viability issues.

KCC Heritage were consulted and raised two principal issues which arise from
proposals: impact on sites historic buildings (both listed and otherwise) and the
impact on buried archaeological remains. They would recommend attaching two
conditions if permitted.

KCC Archaeology were consulted and recommended conditions relating to historic
building recording and the requirement for a programme of archaeological works to
be implemented.

82



Southern Water were consulted and raised the following concerns: Following initial
investigations, there is currently inadequate capacity in the local network to provide
foul sewage disposal to service the proposed development. May lead to increase
flows to the public sewerage system and existing properties and land may be subject
to greater risk of flooding. They recommended that if planning permission is granted
that suitable safeguarding conditions be imposed.

Kent Wildlife Trust were consulted and recommended that DDC ensures that a Bat
Mitigation Strategy is submitted for this planning application. They would also advise
that a similar approach should be taken to a Reptile Mitigation Plan, supported by
condition and including recommendations with the Greenspace Ecological Solutions
report of October 2014. Does not appear to be any mitigation measures detailed for
loss of habitat for breeding birds. They would expect to see details of how this
development would avoid any potential impacts upon the European designated sites
nearby, in particular as a result of increased recreational pressure. Kent Wildlife Trust
therefore has no objection to the planning application, subject to the remaining
matters above being addressed.

Dover District Council Strategic Housing Manager was consulted and made the
following comments:

‘While the developer claims that the requirement to provide 30% affordable housing
made the previous proposed scheme unviable | am of the view that some aspects of
the scheme may have contributed to increased viability i.e. the proposed increase in
the number of units and an increase in property values. It will need further viability
testing to determine whether or not some contribution towards affordable housing
can be made.’

Stagecoach were consulted and confirmed that drawing 616231/SKO03 revision B,
showing the new westbound bus stop, is acceptable to them.

Historic England were consulted but did not wish to offer any comments on this
occasion.

The Environment Agency were consulted and raised no objections to this proposal
subject to the imposition of suitable safeguarding conditions.

The Primary Care Locality Manager was consulted and made comments outlining
the estimated costs of reconfiguration and refurbishment work needed so that the
local hospitals and surgeries could cope with the increased population.

Eastry Parish Council were consulted and made the following comments:

‘Although the Parish Council supports the principle of development on this site they
object to this application on transport and highway issues related to the number and
density of proposed dwellings and commercial units. The inadequate and flawed
transport report submitted with the application means that the traffic impacts have not
been fully or accurately considered. Further information is required to enable a full
assessment to be made as to whether the impact is acceptable.

The application also makes numerous references to the fall-back position of the site
as a hospital, however with the lack of buildings on site which could facilitate the
realistic re-use of the site in a fall-back scenario, the strength of the fall-back position
is seriously compromised. The Parish has commissioned an independent transport
and highways report to fully detail the concerns of the local residents.

In addition, the members strongly object to the proposed removal of the specimen
sycamore tree T1 to improve the access to the site. This tree is of significant value to

83



the village. The members would also like more details in the proposed 568m2 of
community and employment use areas.’

Nonington Parish Council were consulted and made the following comments:

‘Object to the proposed development on Mill Lane on the ground that traffic from the
Mill Lane site heading to either Canterbury, Maidstone or Faversham or to the M2,
M20 or the M25 will travel directly through Easole/Holt Street. This is an unclassified
village road through a designated Conservation Area. The MLM 2014 traffic report
does not contain a single reference to the primary transport route for the primary
transport mode — road travel from Eastry to the A2 and UK Motorway System. No
consideration appears to have been taken as to whether this route can accommodate
the increased traffic this development will inevitably generate. It is clear that a co-
ordinated approach between housing development and the infrastructural capacity of
the local road network at both a local and regional level is urgently required before
this proposal should be considered. NPC therefore recommend that this proposal be
refused.’

The Site and Proposal

The proposed site is roughly L-shaped which is approximately 4.68ha, lying on the
south side of Mill Lane on the southern edge of the village of Eastry. Eastry is located
approximately 20km east of Canterbury. There is one single point of vehicular and
pedestrian access to the site from Mill Lane.

The site was formerly used as a mental health hospital, however that use ceased in
the 1990’s. Prior to being acquired by the NHS, the site housed the Eastry Union
Workhouse. The original Old Workhouse building is highly prominent on site and has
been affected by numerous fires but is still a Grade Il listed building. The site also
consists of the Eastry Asylum Chapel and Tewkesbury House. In 2008, many of the
other previous hospital buildings were demolished.

The Eastry Conservation Area, as designated by Dover District Council, extends
across the north corner of the site and includes the Old Workhouse and Chapel. The
site is located outside of the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB), though the land to the immediate south of the site, part of which is under the
applicant’'s ownership, has been designated as part of the North Downs Special
Landscape Area (SLA) by Kent County Council.

The proposal comprises of residential development consisting of 100 dwellings with
partial redevelopment of The Range and the Old Workhouse. In addition, the
development will comprise of commercial/community floorspace to be provided within
the Chapel, the retained wing to the Old Workhouse and Tewkesbury House
providing a total of 568m2 of B1/D1 floorspace.

The range of dwellings include: 12 x 2-bed flats, 34 x 2-bed houses, 25 x 3-bed
houses, 9 x 4-bed houses. As well as 7 x 2-bed, 2 x 3-bed and 1 x 4-bed houses in
the Range and 7 x 1-bed and 3 x 2-bed flats in the Old Workhouse. The new
dwellings will use a mix of materials including timber cladding, brickwork, powder
coated aluminium frames, slate and roof tiles.

The application site contains a number of listed buildings, with the descriptions
available on the Historic England website. These listed buildings are however in a
significant state of disrepair, with only the chapel within the site appearing to be fully
intact.

84



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The site is very much overgrown, with the buildings within the site in a particularly
unkempt state, and they have clearly suffered significant vandalism over the past few
years. There is evidence of fires having taken place within the site and other forms of
anti-social behaviour — such as graffiti.

Main Issues

The main issues for consideration in the determination of this application are:

Principle of Development

Impact on the visual amenity of the area and landscape
Impact upon residential amenity within the area

Impact upon highways

Impact upon heritage assets

Contributions

Drainage

Assessment

Principle of Development

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that
planning applications should be determined in accordance with the Development
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (herein referred to as the NPPF)
indicates that planning applications within sustainable locations and that accord with
the development plan should be approved without delay.

The application site is allocated within the adopted Land Allocations Local Plan
(adopted in 2015) for a mixed use development, the criteria of the policy being set
out in full earlier within this report. It should be noted that this proposal does not
wholly comply with the requirements of this policy, but nevertheless does accord with
the principle of development, i.e. a mixed use scheme.

That said, given the fact the proposal does not wholly comply with the policy, a
careful assessment with regards to sustainability of the development, in accordance
with the NPPF is also required, and in particular the three threads of sustainable
development, and the importance of conserving and enhancing heritage assets.
Whilst the principle is therefore acceptable, all material considerations need to be
fully considered prior to the determination of this application.

In terms of the split of uses within the site, the LALP document identifies that there is
a requirement for employment as well as housing within the application site.
Paragraph 3.332 states that the Employment Update (2012) has indicated that, in
terms of the rural area, retaining an element of employment at Eastry Hospital is
important for the geographical distribution of employment sites in the District. The
retention of an element of employment in the former workhouse, which fronts Mill
Lane, is supported from a historic environment perspective as potentially there could
be less damage to the internal layout.

The LALP then states (in paragraph 3.333) that in recognition that the demand for
specific B1 (business) uses has historically been low, the District Council will be
supportive of other employment generating uses, wider than the B1 use
classification, providing that they are compatible with the residential element of the
development.

85



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

The applicant has sought to provide some flexibility within this site, by suggesting
either community or employment uses within these buildings. It is considered that this
is a pragmatic response to the policy requirements; it is acknowledged that this would
be a particularly difficult location to support medium/large scale employment
provision, given its relatively remote location, but also the emergence of Discovery
Park in Sandwich as a successful hub for businesses of this scale (with all of the
economic benefits of an Enterprize Zone). Whilst clearly the aspiration for mixed use
within communities such as this is generally supported, it is considered that due to
the economic viability of refurbishing the buildings, together with the abundance of
available office/commercial space within the locality, it is reasonable and acceptable
to provide a lesser amount of floorspace within this location.

In terms of housing numbers, this site would deliver an over-provision when
assessed against the requirements of the policy. This is in-part due to the fact that
there is less commercial floorspace than the policy suggests, but also because the
applicant has sought to provide a variety of house types throughout the development
including a number of smaller properties.

Whilst the Council are currently in a relatively strong position in terms of five-year
housing land supply, it is acknowledged that there is a strong reliance upon large
strategic allocations such as Whitfield. Sites such as this could deliver approximately
50 dwellings per annum, and given this is a full application, it is likely that all 100
units would be delivered within the next five years. It should also be acknowledged
that the figures provided within the LALP are suggested yields, and not limits to
development. If an appropriate form of development comes forward which exceeds
this figure then there is no ground to refuse simply on that basis.

For the reasons given above, it is considered that whilst this proposal does not
comply with all elements of the LALP Policy, there are sound justifications for this,
and as such, the proposal is acceptable in principle subject to all other material
considerations being assessed.

Impact on the Visual Amenity of the Area and Landscape

Given that the application site has been allocated within the Council’s land
allocations local plan, there is clearly an acceptance that this is a suitable site for a
mixed use development, which comprises primarily of housing. That said, the policy
states that the site would be able to accommodate up to 80 dwellings, and this
proposal is demonstrating a significant uplift on this projected figure to 100 dwellings.

The proposed layout has been formulated in order to respond positively to the setting
of the listed buildings that are sought to be retained/refurbished within the site. That
said the layout within the site is relatively formulaic, with the highways throughout of
a fairly formal character.

There is a clear road hierarchy that is legible once within the site, and the main
means of access/egress is easily defined. In any event, this is not a scale of
development that would require differing character areas of specific highways
treatment to emphasise the layout.

Pockets of open space would be provided within the development, that would allow
for the retention of the highest quality trees within the development. These would
also act as informal areas of open space for recreational purposes. They would also
have the benefit of being located upon the southern part of the site, where views into

86



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

the development would be more readily available from medium/long distance views.
These areas of open space, with retained trees would offer a layering effect and
would soften the development from the south. It is also noted that there is land to the
south that is proposed to be undeveloped, but that is part of the application site. This
is to be used for ecological mitigation, and as such additional planting can be
provided that would further soften the proposal form medium/long distance views.

Views from the south are particularly important, and this is highlighted within the pre-
amble to the allocation policy. It is therefore welcomed that, in addition to the above,
the properties along this southern edge are at the lowest density, with the greatest
level of separation between them. These are the largest properties within the site,
and are also provided with good sized gardens, which is as you would expect upon
the most sensitive part of the site.

The density of the development rises as one heads northwards, which responds
positively to the existing building form of the former hospital buildings. Again, the
proposal is relatively simple in its form, but nevertheless would provide for an
attractive layout that would allow for a suitable level of soft planting throughout.

Much of the development within the north of the site would be screened from the
public domain by the existing buildings. It is noted that the rebuilding of the Range
would be as per the requirements of the policy, with the inclusion of a porte-cochere
upon its front elevation. It is considered that this element of the proposal is well
designed, and would re-instate the building with correct proportions etc.

Given the above it is considered that the development would be acceptable in terms
of its impact on the street scene and would be able to be assimilated into the village
without having a detrimental impact upon its character. In terms of any wider
landscape impact, whilst the development would be located on the southern edge of
the village, it would be viewed within the context of existing residential development
surrounding it and through the design and layout solutions outlined above, it would
not have an unacceptable impact upon the character of the wider rural landscape.
Policy DM16 states that development that would harm the character of the landscape
will only be permitted if it is in accordance with allocations made in Development Plan
Documents and incorporates any necessary avoidance and mitigation measures; or it
can be sited to avoid or reduce the harm and/or incorporate design measures to
mitigate the impacts to an acceptable level.

The proposed development would therefore comply with the objectives of Core
Strategy Policy DM16 as it would not harm the character of the landscape and of
Paragraph 17 of the NPPF which requires development to take recognise the intrinsic
character and beauty of the countryside.

Impact upon Residential Amenity within the Area

Paragraph 17 of the NPPF outlines that one of the core principles of sustainable
development is to always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of
amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings.

The application site is relatively self-contained, and would be set away from existing
residential properties to the aside from those within Lower Street, and also within
White Wood Road.

The properties within White Wood Road would be side on to the development, with a
pedestrian/cycle link to be provided into the highway. The proposed layout would

87



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

relate to this existing pattern, grain, and orientation of development, and as such
there would be no direct overlooking of the existing properties. Furthermore, the
positioning of the new dwellings, together with their scale (being of two storey) would
ensure that there is no overshadowing, nor the creation of a sense of enclosure to
these properties.

Whilst a pedestrian link is proposed through to this cul-de-sac, it is not considered
that this would result in any significant noise and disturbance to the occupiers of
these properties, over and beyond that which would be expected within a residential
area.

The properties within Lower Street are set out in a much more organic manner, with
some properties within the road frontages and others set further back from the
highway. Those that are set further back would thus be closer to the proposed
development. The proposed properties closest to Lower Street are all designed to be
‘side on’ with the boundary, and with no windows that would overlook the properties.
As such, it is not considered that there would be any overlooking of these existing
properties. Likewise, there would be sufficient separation between the proposed and
existing (minimum of 19 metres) to ensure that there is no overshadowing or creation
of a sense of enclosure.

Again, whilst there will be a slight uplift in general noise and disturbance from new
occupiers of these dwellings, this is clearly anticipated as the site has been allocated
for housing for a significant period of time. It is therefore not considered that any
increase would be unacceptable. The Council’'s Environmental Health Officer has
also not expressed any concerns in this regard.

The site is currently undeveloped (aside from the derelict buildings) but is therefore
particularly dark at evening/night. The development of this site would introduce a
chance to this, but a condition has been suggested that would ensure that details be
submitted, in order that the local authority has suitable control over lighting — both in
terms of residential amenity and also ecology.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not have any adverse impact upon
the residential amenities of the neighbouring occupiers, thereby complying with the
requirements of the NPPF.

Impact upon Highways

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that All developments that generate significant
amounts of movement should be supported by a Transport Statement or Transport
Assessment. Plans and decisions should take account of whether:

o the opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up depending
on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the need for major transport
infrastructure;
safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people; and

e improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that cost
effectively limit the significant impacts of the development. Development should
only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative
impacts of development are severe.

The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment with the planning application
which has now been reviewed by Kent County Council Highways Services. This

88



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Assessment sets out that the proposal would have no severe impact upon the
highway network within the vicinity or further afield.

There were initially a number of concerns raised by the highways officer, with regards
to the submissions that have been made, and the applicant has subsequently
submitted additional information that has now removed their objections from the
development.

The proposals are likely to generate approximately 60 two-way vehicle movements in
the morning and evening peak hours, most of which will enter and leave the site via
High Street and Sandwich Road or Lower Street and Dover Road. The main
concentration of vehicle movements is through the Mill Lane/High Street/Lower
Street junction and this has sufficient capacity to accommodate the additional
movements. Whilst visibility from Mill Lane to Lower Street is less than would ideally
be provided under current guidance, the junction has been in use for many years and
there are no recorded personal injury crashes at the junction in the five years to the
end of 2016. Both High Street and Lower Street have sections which are used for on-
street parking, reducing the carriageway to single-lane working. In the case of High
Street there are passing places available at several locations (protected by existing
parking restrictions) and other gaps in the on-street parking, and these should be
sufficient to accommodate the additional vehicle movements on this route.

In Lower Street there are existing accesses protected by 'dog bone' markings which
act as passing places but some would benefit from being extended and protected by
parking restrictions. The development proposals therefore include provision of double
yellow lines to improve two of these informal passing places. This would mean the
loss of three on-street parking spaces in those specific locations but other on-street
parking is available. A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) would be required for the
parking restrictions and this can be made by Kent County Council as the highway
authority. According to advice to Planning Inspectors TROs must be made for
qualifying purposes including avoiding danger to persons or traffic and facilitating the
passage of traffic, which clearly apply in this case. Traffic flow and highway safety
should be the primary concerns in relation to introducing a prohibition of waiting
rather than matters of inconvenience or change. Therefore, if KCC is satisfied that
the TRO is required and is the correct form of mitigation then they are in a position to
dismiss erroneous objections and make the Order. The TRO could therefore be
reasonably secured through a planning condition, which has been proposed.

Whilst a few movements may be generated in Mill Lane to the west of the site but the
numbers are unlikely to be significant and, although there is some on-street parking
in this section of Mill Lane, passing places are available.

It should also be noted that whilst there may be some vehicle trips from the
development to/from the school, these will not add to existing school trips as they will
replace current trips by parents from further afield when school places are given to
children living in the new development. Some children from the development will also
be walked the short distance to and from the school using the direct pedestrian route
available.

The site access proposals include the provision of a pedestrian crossing point just to
the north of the access, to provide a connection to the existing footway network on
the north side of Mill Lane and therefore pedestrian access to the school and village
centre. A build-out and parking restrictions are required on the north side of Mill Lane
to provide visibility for pedestrians crossing southwards and this requires the removal
of 3 existing on-street parking spaces, replacements for which are included in the

89



44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

new parking area for existing residents adjacent to the access on the south side of
Mill Lane. The site access proposals also include the provision of a footway,
pedestrian crossing point and bus stop to the front of the listed building in Mill Lane,
the bus stop being a relocation of the existing westbound stop a few metres to the
east.

The footway will allow level access to buses and a pedestrian connection between
the listed building and the existing footway network on the north side of Mill Lane.
Parking restrictions are required on the north side of Mill Lane to provide visibility for
pedestrians crossing southwards. This will remove what appears to be some
sporadic footway parking in this section of Mill Lane, however other parking is
available on the south side of the road and additional parking will be available in the
new parking area for existing residents adjacent to the access on the south side of
Mill Lane. Again a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) would be required for the parking
restrictions and this can be made by Kent County Council as the highway authority. It
should be noted that in order to provide a new pedestrian access via private steps
from Mill Lane to the listed building, the small area of the highway containing the
steps will need to be stopped up.

There is no objection in principle to this from the highway authority. It is considered
that sufficient levels of car parking are available for the proposals within the site and
whilst there are a few plots where the associated parking would ideally be closer to
the dwelling, this is unlikely to result in unacceptable parking on the existing highway.
A gated secondary emergency access to the site is provided from White Wood Road
and this can be secured by condition.

Due to the scale of the proposed, it is considered necessary to require a detailed
construction management plan to address traffic and the associated routing and
timing of HGV movements, together with parking for delivery vehicles and site
personnel.

Given the above, it is not considered that the proposal would result in a severe
impact upon the highway network and existing public rights of way would be
unaffected by the proposal. As such the proposal complies with the requirements of
DM13 of the Core Strategy and the requirements of paragraph 32 of the NPPF.

Impact upon Heritage Assets

The NPPF (paragraph 128) requires that applicants should describe the significance
of any heritage assets affected including any contribution made by their setting. The
level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’ significance. The applicant has
submitted a full heritage assessment which identifies the historic use of the land at its
importance in relating to the setting of the building.

Paragraphs 132-135 of the NPPF relate to the significance of heritage assets and
how planning applications should be determined to ensure that great weight is given
to the asset’'s conservation. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss
should require clear and convincing justification.

The existing buildings within the application site are now within a significant state of
disrepair. Much of the original structure of the main listed building (chapel aside)
appear to have been lost, or in a state of collapse. It is clear therefore that there is
the necessity for a significant level of work to be undertaken on this site to bring the
listed buildings back in to any sort of use.

90



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

The applicant has submitted a Heritage Statement that sets out both the significance
of, and impact upon the heritage asset. Significant pre-application and post
submission negotiations have taken place with the Council’'s Heritage Officer, who
initially requested that a number of amendments be made to the scheme — these
were generally detailed points.

The applicant has addressed these points, and submitted amended plans which have
been reviewed by the Heritage Officer who is now content with the proposal.

The allocation policy for this site identifies elements of the listed buildings that should
be re-built and the applicant has undertaken a thorough assessment of the existing
buildings, and the plans clearly demonstrate how the listed structures can be
reinstated in an appropriate manner.

One of the key reasons that this site has been an allocation for housing development
is due to the necessity to be able to fund the rebuilding and refurbishment of the
derelict listed buildings. The buildings, being set up against the highway would retain
their character from outside of the application site as the additional housing
development would not be visible from this vista. Indeed, because of the works
required to bring these buildings into a habitable state, there would be betterment
from this public vantage point.

From within the site, the buildings appear as more derelict and as such their setting
has already been significantly compromised. The site is wholly overgrown, with short
to medium term views significantly compromised. Whilst the erection of dwellings
within their immediate curtilage would result in the loss of openness to the rear, and
thus would impact upon the buildings’ setting, this would not be to their detriment.
The site, being a former hospital use, would not necessarily be expected to be
surrounded by a significant level of open space, with many buildings of this type
located within urban or village settings, with buildings surrounding them.

Furthermore, the impact would be reduced by the re-instatement of the Range which
is currently of no scale having been mostly demolished. This historic structure would
be of a substantial size and would replicant the building that was previously in situ.
This in itself would therefore represent a barrier from the new development to the
listed buildings, which will further soften the impact of the dwellings.

Whilst the proposal would be in relatively close proximity to a number of listed
buildings located along Lower Street, there would be sufficient separation between
the proposed development and these properties to ensure that their setting would not
be compromised. The development would ensure the significance of the heritage
asset is safeguarded for the future.

In terms of archaeology an evaluation accompanies the application, the results of
which indicate that Anglo-Saxon settlement is present on or close to the site. It is
therefore possible that archaeological deposits may be present at the site that would
be affected by groundworks associated with the development and therefore provision
should be made for a programme of archaeological works, to be secured by
condition.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would bring about significant
enhancements to the existing listed building, with no significant impact upon their
setting brought about by the new development. The setting of existing listed buildings
would also be preserved, and as such the proposal is considered to comply with the
requirements of 132-135 of the NPPF.

91



60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

Ecology

Paragraph 3.337 of the LALP states that a combination of the scale of the
development and the proximity of the site to European designated nature
conservation sites means that any planning application will have to develop a
strategy with a range of measures and initiatives such as the provision of informal
open space or walking routes (leading to wider PROWSs) within the development.

The applicant has submitted a number of ecological reports that set out both the
existing biodiversity within the site, as well as suitable mitigation to address the
impact of the proposal.

The reptile survey that was undertaken showed a ‘good’ population of common
lizards, a ‘low’ population of slow worms in the development site, and a ‘good’
population of both within the proposed receptor site. It is therefore likely that harm
would occur without suitable mitigation, and it is therefore proposed that the receptor
site be in place prior to any works on site, in order that they can be translocated
without harm. The full mitigation for this is set out within the submitted report, and
shall be controlled by condition.

The submitted bat survey highlighted that during the surveys one common pipistrelle
bat was confirmed to have emerged from the northern aspect of the Chapel roof,
three common pipistrelle bats were confirmed emerging from Tewksbury House and
one long-eared bat emerged from a first-floor window of the Range. In addition, there
was a probable emergence of one soprano pipistrelle bat from Tewksbury House.

Because the chapel building is to be limited to internal alterations, there is not
considered to be any detrimental impact upon these bats, as the roost present within
this building would be unaffected. However, due to the level of works required to the
‘Range’ building, there is likely to be a requirement for further licences to be granted
to enable these works to take place. It is important for Members to note that these
licences can only be granted once planning permission has been granted —i.e. this is
the first step on the process. The content of the EPSM licence (if required) will then
detail the timeframes, methodology and mitigation measures required when working
with bats and their roosts.

Regardless of whether an EPSM is currently identified as needed for works to any
particular building, it is strongly recommended that update surveys are conducted in
the season prior to works being undertaken on any building. This is necessary as
bats have been found to be using three of the four buildings surveyed and their
usage of these buildings may change both throughout a season and from year to
year; this will therefore be secured by condition.

It is therefore considered that whilst this is a sensitive site in relation to ecology,
mitigation can be put into place to ensure that there would be no adverse impact
upon biodiversity subject to the imposition of suitable safeguarding conditions.

Contributions

Any requests for contributions needs to be scrutinised in accordance with Regulation
122 of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010. These stipulate that an
obligation can only be a reason for granting planning permission if it meets the
following requirements:

Itis:

92



68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

(a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b) Directly related to the development; and
(c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

As Members are aware the Council would ordinarily seek a provision of 30%
affordable housing on a site of this scale, together with suitable contributions for
community facilities that would be impacted by the proposal.

The applicant has submitted a full viability appraisal with this application, which has
been independently assessed for the Council. This and the assessment carried out
are attached to this report as appendix 1 and 2. The viability appraisal submitted
indicated that the viability constraints of the site meant that there would be no scope
to provide for any financial contributions or for any affordable housing provision within
the development.

The findings of the report were questioned by the independent assessor, who raised
some concerns with the proposed sales prices as well as costs. They estimated that
there would be an element of surplus (when taking into account a developer’s profit)
that could be spent on either affordable housing provision, or contributions.

Following on from this appraisal the case officer has been in negotiations with the
applicant, who has confirmed that the applicant can now provide 10% affordable
housing within the scheme (amounting to 10 units), as well as the required play
space contributions and SAMMS payments to mitigate the impact upon the local
nature reserves. These contributions will assist to address the impact of the proposal
upon the locality.

The lack of contributions needs to be carefully considered by Members, as a
proposal of this scale will have a clear impact upon local infrastructure. However, the
delivery of housing within the District is an important consideration, particularly given
that this is a long-standing allocation. There have consistently been viability concerns
with the delivery of this site, and these remain, and indeed are exacerbated by the
length of time the site has taken to come forward — which has required further works
to the listed buildings. Should the development provide the contributions proposed it
would be viable, and would significantly assist with both the Council’s five-year
housing land supply and also to address the strategic need within the District. This is
a significant material consideration in the determination of the planning application.

It is considered that whilst this shortfall of contributions is regrettable, the applicant
has demonstrated that it would not be possible to deliver more than 10% affordable
housing, open space, and SAMMS contributions, particularly given the cost of
safeguarding and reinstating the heritage asset, and as such the application can be
supported on this basis, given the overall benefits to the listed buildings and the
provision of housing delivery.

Drainage/Flooding

The applicant has submitted a flood risk assessment (FRA) with the application
which sets out that the development should not be at a significant risk of flooding,
and should not be susceptible to damage due to flooding. The flood risk assessment
concludes that the site is located within flood zone 1 and whilst the type of
development is classified as ‘more vulnerable’ this would not require an exceptions
test to be undertaken.

93



75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

The FRA then makes a number of suggestions in order to ensure that the
development does not adversely impact flood risk elsewhere. These include the
requirement for a detailed surface water management strategy (which is sought to be
conditioned), and the use of appropriate SuDS techniques within the development,
which again is to be conditioned.

The Environment Agency were consulted on this application and raised no objections
subject to the imposition of suitable safeguarding conditions to address the above
matters. These conditions are set out at the end of the report.

Open Space

It is proposed that an area of open space be provided to the south of the application
site. This is designed to be informal, semi-natural open space which will retain
existing trees, and hedging, and will therefore be used as informal open space. This
will the accessible for both the future residents of this site, as well as for those
outside of the site — i.e. public access would be available. The area would be bound
to the north by the rear boundaries of the application site, which would reduce the
level of natural surveillance but that in itself is not considered to be unexpectable.
There would be access through the open space within the residential portion to the
north of the site.

This open space would not be provided with any formal play equipment etc. but
contributions are to be made to improve other local facilities — as set out within the
section of the report above. This open space will also enable additional planting to be
provided which would further reduce the impact of the development upon the wider
area.

Conclusion

This is a development that has been subject to significant pre-application
discussions, and further amendments subsequent to the submission of the
application (which was made over three years ago). There are a number of reasons
why this application has taken this length of time to come to determination, including
the requirement for amended plans to be submitted, as well as the necessity for a
viability appraisal to be submitted — and fully and independently assessed.

This viability appraisal demonstrates that the applicant can only provide for 10%
affordable housing throughout the development, and given that this is an allocated
site within the Land Allocations DPD, this is disappointing. Nevertheless, the
importance of delivering this site, which has been allocated for a number of years, for
much needed housing is considered to be a strong material consideration in its
favour.

The proposal would bring forward 100 dwellings within a site identified as being
within a suitable location, as well as community/commercial floorspace.

A further benefit would be to bring back the now derelict listed buildings back into use
which  will  have social as well as environmental benefits. The
rebuilding/refurbishment of the listed structures will come at a significant cost, and it
is these benefits that have had a direct impact upon the viability of the scheme.
Whilst Policy DM5 of the Core Strategy does require the provision of 30% affordable
housing, it does allow for flexibility where viability does not allow this full provision. In
this instance the applicant has clearly demonstrated that this full provision cannot be

94



g)

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

made, for the reasons set out above, and as such it is considered that the policy is
still complied with.

Significant work has also been undertaken to ensure that the impact upon the
highways are fully understood and the County Highways Officer now does not object
to the proposal. Suitable parking provision is to be made within the site that would
ensure that there would be no detrimental impact upon highway safety. The proposal
therefore accords with Policy DM13 of the Core Strategy.

The proposal is well designed and has due regard to the sensitivity of the site. The
refurbishment of the buildings will see them re-instated to a high quality, and the
proposed new dwellings would respond positively to their locality.

Whilst the development does not wholly comply with the criteria of LALP 2015 Policy
LA29 in that is seeking to provide more than 80 dwellings and incorporate flexibility
within the site to provide either community or employment uses, for the reasons
outlined in this report the proposed development is considered to be acceptable
having regard to all relevant material considerations.

The development would comply with the sustainability objectives of the NPPF by
reusing land that has been previously developed to provide an appropriate form of
mixed use development whilst securing a high-quality design and ensuring that
heritage assets are conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance. The
development would result in a high quality built environment which through the
provision of this additional housing and increased population would help to support
the vitality of the existing community.

It is therefore considered that on balance, this proposal is acceptable, and it is
recommended that Members give this application favourable consideration and grant
delegated powers to approve subject to a suitable S106 legal agreement and the
imposition of suitable safeguarding conditions as summarised below.

Recommendation

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the completion of a legal agreement to
secure the provision of 10% affordable housing and appropriate financial
contributions to provide necessary ecological mitigation and subject to conditions to
include:

i) commencement within 3 years; ii) carried out in accordance with the
approved drawings; iii) submission of Construction Management Plan; iv)
limits on temporary lighting/illumination; v) development carried out in
accordance with approved phasing sequence; vi) written confirmation of
commencement of development and first occupation of each phase; vii)
submission of details relevant to sales/marketing accommodation, vehicle
parking and servicing and associated development; viii) limits to means of
enclosure; ix) limits to the provision of hard surfacing; x) submission of
material samples; xi) informative on windows; xii) submission of details for
listed buildings; xiii) solar panel installation; xiv) retention of Public Right of
Way; xv) submission of details- proposed on-site highway works; xvi)
finished surfacing to vehicle and pedestrian access routes; xvii)
submission of details- of sight lines (roadway junctions); xviii) submission
of details- sight lines (private driveways); xix) limits on development
overhang; xx) submission of details related to vehicle parking; xxi)
submission of travel plan; xxii) submission of details of hard and soft

95



landscaping; xiii) hard and soft landscaping carried out in accordance with
approved details; xxiv) limits on excavation during construction; xxv) limits
on storage of materials; xxvi) no damage to trees of hedgerows within
phased development; xxvii) erection of mans of enclosure; xxviii)
submission of external lighting scheme; xxix) submission of details of
refuse storage areas and recycling facilities; xxx) programme of
archaeological works; xxxi) contamination informative; xxxii) submission of
sustainable water drainage scheme; xxxiii) infiltration of surface water
drainage only with approval of LPA; xxxiv) submission of Foul Sewerage
Disposal Strategy; xxxv) retention of open areas/spaces; xxxvi) no external
units on any external elevation; xxxvii) secure and implement programme
of archaeological works; xxxviii) ecological enhancements; xxxix) any other
conditions as required by KCC highways; xxxx) safeguarding employment
use; xxxxi) any other conditions as required by DDC Conservation; and

Powers be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Development to settle any
necessary S106 matters and planning conditions in line with issues set out in the
recommendation and as resolved by Planning Committee.

Case Officer

Chris Hawkins

96



A{)ﬂ{;‘;\[b[ '7& \ Appendix 2

G IS MONTAGU
mmm EVANS

! Edinburgh
CHARTERED SURVEYORS

MJIW/TPS10966

5 Boltan Street
London

sl August 2015 London W1) BBA

Tel: D20 7493 4002
Fax: 020 7312 7548

Martin Brown wWww, montagu-evans.co.uk
Runnymede Homes Limited

183 Brooklands Road

Weybridge

Surrey

KT130RJ

Dear Mr Brown,
EASTRY HOSPITAL SITE, MILL ROAD, EASTRY, KENT
1. Introduction

In accordance with your recent instructions | write to set out my opinion of the financial viability of
developing a 100 unit residential scheme on the site of the former Eastry Hospital {“the Site”).

By way of background, | would confirm that our instructions are to prepare an assessment of the likely
level of profit that the owner of the Site, Runnymede Investments Limited (“Runnymede”), is likely to
earn in the event that the Site was developed out to provide a fully private housing scheme in
accordance with the layout prepared by Guy Holloway Architects (“the Architect”). For ease of
reference a copy of the Architect’s Masterplan (“the Scheme”) is attached to this letter as Appendix 1.

In addition to the residential development, the Scheme incorporates some 3,800 sq ft of commercial
development designed for employment uses, in line with the planning policy aspirations of Dover
District Council {*the LPA" or "the Council”). It should also be noted that the Site comprises a number
of historically important listed buildings, situated at the front of the Site. These are described in more
detail below.

We understand that this scheme is the subject of an undetermined planning application submitted by
Runnymede in April 2014 to the Council under reference DOV/14/00240).

For the reasons set out in this letter we are of the opinion that residential developments represents
the highest and best value use for the Site, albeit given the prevailing low level of house prices within
the local area; the provision of commercial accommodation; and the high cost of restoring and
converting the listed buildings on Site. the development of the Scheme is not commercially viable. In
making this statement, the development profit forecast, of some 12.82% (as a return on all costs) is
below the level that, in our opinion and experience, would be required by the market in the event that
the Site was to developed by a third party.

Against this background, we are of the opinion that the Scheme cannat viably sustain the
development of any affordable housing, or afford to make any form of Section 106 or CIL payment.

®

£<e




Fage 2

Factual background

Although the Site is well known to you, | wauld confirm that the site is situated in the village of Eastry,
which liss 7 miles to the narth-west of Deal, 12 miles to the south of Ramsgate and 10 miles to the
north of Dover,

The Site, which is broadly levsl and & reverse 'L in shape is situated on the south side of Mill Lane in
Eastry, and extends o some 12 acres or 4.86 hectares. |t includes a number of Grade |l Listed
Buildings located towards the front of the Site comprising a former hospital and work house building.
We understand that these buildings have besan substantially damaged following a fire at the propery
in Decamber 201 2.

The Site was acquired by Runnymeds in November 2007 in consideration of the sum of £1,700,000,
The Site was acguired in the open market, in competitian, dicactly from the Department of Health (“the
Department™) and, as such, the price paid represented markst valus as at the date of acquisition.

The Site was acquired subject to an overage agreement which required Runnymede to pay an
additional sum cslculated by reference to a fixed price par square foot multiplied by the number of
square feet for which planning petmission was obtained,

Following discussions with the Depariment of Health, in March 2014 Runnymede entered intc a
supplemental agreement with the Department and negotisted the release of the overage
arangement. In consideration of the release of the overage provisions, a further sum of £400.000 was
paid to the Deparimant, who have no further interast in the Slte.

Against this background, the total price paid by Runnymeds to acquire the Site from the Department
of Health was £2,100,000. As notad, this sum and the overage provisions were representative of
market value and terms as at the date of the original acquisition in 2007, The amount paid to the
Department in consideration of the release of the average obligations is the lowest sum that the
Department was willing to accept.

This is an impartant point in that Runnymede doss not seek to test the viability of the Scheme against
anything other than the actual cost that it has incurred in acquiring the Site. The volatility in the UK
and world economy that emerged in tata 2007 and culminated in the Global Financlal Crigis of
Septembrer 2008, had a profound effect on the UK housing market in the pericd 2008 to date, and
whilst the tetms on which Runnymede agreed to acquire the Site may not be market terms now, they
were at the time that they were agreed and they form the starting point for assessing the financial
viablllty of any developmenit that Runneymade may propose for the Site.

In the abserce of Runnymede being able to progress a financially viable schema, the Site wlll not
come forward for davslopment.

Proposed Scheme
We have been providad with a copy of the proposed scheme for which Runnymede seeks planning

permission as shown on the Architects drawings No. 14.042.02. This shows proposals for the
development of a scheme of 100 units; 20 of which are to be built within the shell of the existing

98




Fage 3

buildings known as The Range and Tewksbury House. The balance of the units are new build, and
are to be developed within the site grounds of the former hospitsl.

The net saleable area of the proposed scheme is some 83,844 sq ft with units providing between 1
and 4 bedrooms in units of between 600 and 1,581 sq ft. A copy of the indicative layout is shown on
the plan attached to this letier as Appandix 1.

In additicn to the resitenlial accommodation the scheme also provides 3,800 sq ft of commercial
accommodation within the Chapel and Tewkasbury House situated towards the front of the Sits. We
understand that Runnymede propose to convert this accommodation for commergial and employment
uges in accordance with the requirements LPA,

Methodology

In accordance with your instructions we have undertaken a development appraisal utilising industry
standard methodalogy h order to assess the profitability of the proposed Scheme.

The property market adopts what is known as the residual method of valuation in order 1o assess the
viability of development proposals through an assessment of scheme profit. This approach involves a
consideration of the Gross Development Value of a development proposal from which the costs of
development, including finance costs, site scquisition costs, Section 1068 or CIL contributions are
deducted.

The difference between the projected scheme revenue and forecast costs is the amount that, subject
to the developmant being built out In accordance with the assumptions made in the appraisal that i
likely to be available as development profit.  The monstary amount of profit, which is generally
expressed as a percentage of development cost or ravenus, that is produced through the residual
calculation is then compared to general industry benchmarks in order to assess whather or not the
scheme, with any inherent planning liabilifies {notably the provision of affordable housing and saction
1086 and/or CIL Payments), could be said to be commercially viable.

In the case of residential development schemes, the market generally conslders that a “viable"
scheme is one thal generates a profit as a return on all cost of at jeast 15%. This minimum
benchmark applies to what the markst perceives as relatively straightforward developments, notabily
greenfield. In respect of more complicated development situations; for exampls Invelving the
refurbishment of lisled buildings (where the costs of conversion are difficult to estimate); brownfield
developments {whera there may be additional costs associated with the previous use of the site); or In
locations where the scheme is of a significant size in a limited market; the level of profit requirad
would be in excess of the minimum level of 15% profit an cost,

Bazed on these industry “typical® benchmarks if a scheme is likely to generate a profit that is below a
benchmark of 13% of overall development costs, then that scheme is considered by the markel o be
financially unviable on any basis and is uniikely to be brought forward. On the contrary, where the
vigbility of a scheme is in excess of these benchmark levels the surplus "additional” profit is notionally
available to fund Section 108 and affordable housing obligations up to a policy compliant level,

However for 2 scheme such as the development of Eastry Hospital to be considered viable, | am of
the cpinion that the minimum profit that the market would require would be higher in order to reflect

99




Pags 4

the various additional construction and market risks to which the project is subject (listed building,
brownfield site and limited local market with an extended sales period). To reflect these risks |
considet that the minimum level of profit that would be required to render the development of the sile
viable is of tha order of 17.50% Lo 20.00% return on cost.

The schame that has been submitted to LPA doas not include the provision of any affordable housing.
Furthetmore, Runnymeds has indicated to the LPA that, based on its own intemal assessment of
viability, the Schame cannot afford to make a Section 106 contribulion.

The purpose of this letter is to test the reasonableness of these statements.
Viability Assessment

As noted we have prepared an assessment of the viability of the proposed Scheme having regard 1o
the actual cost that Runneymede incumed in acquiring Site, coupted with curment estimates of likely
scheme revenue and build cost. The revenue and cost estimates have been provided to us by third
parties and are detailed below,

We have incotporated the revenue and cost assumplions into an industry standard residual
development model knowh as “Argus Beveloper”. This is a cornmercially avallable programme that is
widely used in the development industry and amongst valuation surveyors,

The information that we have been provided with in terms of revenue and development cost is as
frllows;

1.  An estimate of residential scheme revenue prepared by Colebrook Sturrack dated May 2015
A copy of this note is attached a5 Appendlx 2. The units have been priced on a unit by unit
basis with vaiuss ranging from around £215 per sq ft, up to just under £200 per sq ft. or £230
per sq ft overall. These revenues, which have been split as between the listed buildings and
new build units at averages of just under £188 per sq ft and £238 per sq ft respectively, have
been carried forward into our development appraisal;

2. An gxplanatory note prepared by Simon Greaves prepared in July 2015 detailing the rationale
and comparable evidence utilised in amiving at his opinian of revenue. A copy of this note is
attached as Appendix 3;

3. A marketing report prepared by Caxton's detailing the marketing of the Site in the period 1o
Qctober 2013 and confirming that thare was no market demand for the existing hospital in its
surrenl state for employment uses. A copy of this report, which includes an analysis of
available competing office locations is attached as AppendIx 4;

4. Marketing details prepared by Caxton's in relation to the proposed refurblshed coffice
accommodation In which a rent of £10 per sq ft is quotsd. A copy of these details are attached
as Appendix 5, and

5. Warious quotations and estimates provided to Runnymede in relation to the cost of devaloping
the Schame in the period 2011 to 2014, as set out in Appendix & and

100



€. Delails of the buiid cost adopted by DVS in their report dated November 2011.

In terms of build cost, the conversion of the listed buildings has besn looked at in detail more recently
than the remainder of the Scheme, which was considered |n datail in 2011 and 2012 in relation to the
2010 application approved by committes, but unimplamented due to Section 106 requiremeants, We
are advised lhat a consensus as 1o build cost was reached with DVS a1 the time, and this has been
updated by Runnymede's in house construction team to cumrent, 2015 Hices.

Over the period 2011 to 2015 construction costs have increased significantly, particularly in the South-
East as the property market and economy has recoversd. According to BCIS, the all in Tender Price
Index increased by almost 18% over the period, albeit that the level of increase in the residential
sector, particularly in the South-East, has been substantially higher at some 27.50% (median cost -
housing, mixed developments).

Based on these calculations, we have adopted a total cost of devsloping the Scheme of just under
£13,850,000, which is equivalent to £141 per sg ft overall. In terms of a breakdown this reflects the
following;

« Listed buiding and Tewkesbury House - £1.930,000 (Jerner estimate plus S% inflation
derived from BCIS TPI) which it equivalent to £168.66 per sq ft overall, including non-
recoverable VAT: and

+  New build costs based on an average cost of £137.28 per sq ft totalling just over £11.90m.

It should be noted that these costs include all estata roads and site services infrastructure.
The remaining inputs 1o our appraisal are based on our experience generally applied to the specific
factors that would be taken into account In assessing the viability of developing the Scheme. Notable
assumptions include an overall time scale of 30 manths to develop and sall the Scheme, professional
feas of 10% of cost ard & finance charge of 5.50%.
A copy of our appraisal is attached to this letter as Appendix 7. In order to be consistent with
Runneymede's adopted posiion, no allowance for the payment of any section 106 or CIL costs is
included within the appraisal, nor is 1he provision of any affordable housing,
Conclusion
In summary the output of our appraisal is a3 follows;

REVENUE £21 832,590

COSTS (INCLUDING LAND)  £19,414 244

PROFIT F 2,418,349

PROFIT AS % COST 12.46%

FROFIT AS % REVENUE 11.06%

101




Papa &

Although the Scheme is forecast to make a profit, the level of profit is significantly less than would be
commercially acceptable to a third party developer. We understand thal, having regard to the costs
that Runneymade have already incurred {oth site purchase costs snd holding cosis), they are
prepared to procesd with the development of the Schame &t this reduced level of profit.

However, based on our analysis of the Scheme and the development appraisal that we have
undertaken, we are of ihe opinion that having regard to the sub-optimal profitability of the Scheme, it

cannot afford to provide any affordable housing, nor can it afford to make a section 108 paymeant.

I trust that the foregoing is self explanatory, albeit we would, of course, be pleased to outling our approach
and appraisal 1o the LPA in more detail if required.

¥ours sincerely,

Mark Whitfield
Partner
Fer and on behalf of Montagu Evans

102




————

TeEC 1%

guy hollaway

Eastry Hospital Masterplan (n.t.s)

%c]i[:urf_‘{l masterplan using 14.042 29 Revision PS

_Former




104

I SANFEE FIZH | FL) H [ i PR L il
= T T 7 5] =R A L _ N
[ FET BLL T 3] L wan 7
FEL Sk 3 ] [T aE] an [
FRRL Gl 2 (BN FITLKA) Tan
dans i T (5] i [ ECF] (T3] [N
[T
e i E Th] S ol I
ELE [ z ] A ) [Ty
o e G il T 5] R N o
Pr
Fihi B s} FIE T Hi EL
Sl - 1D TN A @ o
FLEn) [ 10 iR Wi Ti:]
LI VR [T AL (e wan
T =] i By oy %] =1 e
LR o 1 TR | i) o fE]
(1] ] i Dy peer [ isn =]
[T i Tesred ek oy o 1)
EiT) ] Twin pary T [ il
Fi ] Al B Fiaegng pard 1 ] [l =
[N i 3 Tyl a1 e Tl B
Y] o] [ Fisgeng ] =] L] [E]
] w 1 Towmrn s ] FHTT [i7]
L3 ] Twers [ | ZE] ] [Fe ]
[
[N [ o i Fiiil 1]
I (AT =] W T &
(1 5 o T [T10] e
IZH Fii 3 [T [T =]
B S & o ] [0 [
EH £ H & BT 1] [Z5]
& s AT 3 ] SR 1N [
=
[T G 4 G [ Al 5]
5L Tue [3 s SR ] ]
0 E20 158 i 1] SR Fin iF
e ] i i AL oy £ aF
Uiar 154 3 i Sk i Ea
FE T E JiE W (A [¥1] ¥
Tivii (] I i) R Il [
; = ER
Gl REL I i S AIN iv
[ [T z 15} A e [T [
[ L 3 ] AL &N 4
[CTH [T E [ IR [ Ea
[N N 3 [ L [ i
arag 7] z 5] LIS P [ L5 ]
[§°H L5 T (3] L] [2] 18
e LiE H W TR f21]] .h.Mll_
CEi Eon T bty iy oy Lzn IT
£ L W i | LRy N i3
TELL FLn 3 oy By I [Tl [
&8 [ ¥ W ST #in [H
ELil Finl i i AR FiTi] [
(1A FA[ 5 W G Ay akn i |
SR iu z W [y SN [
9 ] b4 L ] wLn =
& iy [NT] F whih (eI i 3
ey 7y T [ [ £in 3
ELET AT & ] en g B s nin 1]
[
HEaL (&Y 4 [5] TEA T v TN [
; G B 4 [ w0 TApEE il —ur ]
TE T5 ORREE e ] T L] ai
I 2o [T L ] ¥ ] N
[ [y [T ] 3 2] an
[ [ £9EY Fiz] £ =] &n [EL]
1
I I
T TOETE FET] it T i [ |
o TEE [T LS8 i 2 i 541 [
ot il ) ] LT 3 CT] Fi ]
Al ] L T z F] N [
i ey G
[y E] Tlef e L7 S . VL T ' SO B - 1
3
i1 - S W | | Gl SR Ty [0 ARG ik Ly s rwil| ||
H I Er | ] | 3 L ] I E] | " I W




B

488

ek G Buin L [ ] TR
TS (7] Tl 3 ¥l ]
R [T ok E i TaRpe e
[ EET T [ [ [l S
[ FET! £ 004 £ (¥ A L
[ ] T = e R
[ ] T i ] [ ]
(5 S =] L [l AT -
[ 1=37 OOk ! i 33 PRRALAR LR
[XE WL [ ] e
| & NEFT 3 Wi e
R SHIERE [ ] R
BLIr S a [ 3 3 L]
BT T T ains (A v 3 [l
HERIE T [E v [ (] o]
FIFT T T T Rar T EE] ] [l =
CIH [T=A EAT] Aar T FE] ] N [t
i
[ R [T E T [ v E o] w“n L]
1l
¥ ET [ [T i v F] BTl i 1
[
W ERT ot NI [ ¥ ] SRR an L
oD
N [ ik Erarl v [E] EL [T L
Fs
COIRRE ol E [ ] [T =3
AR bk E -] EEp an ca |
ST 50 E id AT g ] (]
TN RS WL £ £l FRp BT [t
]
e —wo [ ] PR T SN [#]
OSED L5 3 e e s e FLll I
=
[ [N Wil T 5] e 31} =3
[y G (171 H il PR Tin 3
= [TF
LS iiE ] ] dis Lin E
] iR 3 [l "3 an 1]
L9880 ] g ] et ] R [
Toam Fis) t [ T [ =
=]
[h SR &R ¥ (=N TR ] ]
H ] 3 a ] [l O

105




Mark Whitfield
Montagu Evans

Eastry Hosphal skte

Martin Brown has asked me io provide you with some background
evidence for the sales values we have proposed for the above site. We
have secured this from sales on new home sites in the area, combined
with sales of comparable re-sale properties as flats have not heen
available on any of these sltes.

The new homes sites in the area Include,

Sholden Flelds at Sholden, Deal. This is a large site of 230 units on the
north western horders of the town {about 1 mile from the centre) by Ward
Homes that provides a mix of 2,3 and 4 hed properties and includes
affordable units. In terms of appeal | would suggest this represents a
better location in that demand for homes In Deal and values achievable are
5-10% higher than those at Eastry.

The Eastry site Is close to a village centre with its limited range of
amenities including a single pub whereas Deal offers a comprehensive
range of facilities and the High Speed rail service that broadens the towns
appeal to younger purchasers. The Sholden Fields is also sufficiently
separated from nearby development to be able to set its own values,

Based on their claimed sizes their 722f 2 #t 2 bed home is averaging
£27TT/12

There is a range of 3 bed homes from £234 . £286/ft2 from 786f2 to
1,067z

Thelr 4 bed range starts at 1,192#2 rising to 1,446ft2 and have sold at
prices between £240 -£266/H2.

At Stanhope Place, Deal Abbey New Homes have a scheme nearing
completion of 44 No. 2,3 & 4 bedroom homes. This Is located on a
former school site in Mill Road, closer to the centre of town.

Their Wilton 2 bed terrace at 650#2 has achieved an average of £176,
000 (end and mid-terrace comblned} or £271/H2,

Their Rushton 3 bed terrace (820#t2) has achieved from £195,000 to
£208,000 or an average of £235/H32.

106




Their Deene 3 bed semi (903f2)has achieved £220,000 or £238/ft2

Thelr Stanwick 4 bed townhouse (1,250ft3) achieved £250,000 or
£200/1t2

Persimmon Homes are building Timperley Place, off Church Lane,
Sholden a mixed scheme of 65 units including 12 affordable units,
including 2,3 & 4 hed homes. At an early stage their completed and
exchanged sales include

Their Wootton 2 bed terrace at 613ft2 has achieved £174,950 or
£277/H#2. This included and Is adjusted for fitted appliances, flooring and
{urfing worth ¢.£5k*.

Their Walmer 4 bed townhouse at 1,207ft2 has sold at £254,950 to
include a package of carpets, turfing, appliances and £500 legals
contribution. This equates to ¢. £207/f2

Current pricing for avallable units ranges from £289/fi for smaller 2 bed
units (Wootton 6132 and Lydden 639ft3),t0 £261/ft2 for the Elvington {3
bed semi-detached) or £27 3/ft2 for the detached variant.

The larger units are the Alkham (1,266ft%) priced at £248/H2 and
Challock (1,44 3112} priced at £246/R2

*NB for the unsold units 1 have not allowed for price discounting but have
allowed £5k per wunit for sales incentives as above

At Bowman's Place, Sandwich Road, Whitfleld Abbey New Homes are
offering a site of 74 new homes, part of a larger site planned as part of
Whitfield’s expansion. Due to an infrastructure hold-up sales started only
in April this year since when there have been 10 sales completions and 7
exchanges.

Their Wingham 4 bed detached (1,202 12} has achieved £215/ft%

Their Maxwel 4 bed detached at 1,558 #t2 has achieved c. £312,000 net
of incentives or £200/12 .

They have reservations for

Their Fernwood (1,366#2) 4 bed detached at £289,995 or £208/12*
Their Carmey (1,138fi2} 3 bed seml-detached townhouse is available at
£254,995 or £219/42*

107




Their Ripley (1,12212)4 bed detached is available at £289,995 or
£254 /12 +

*NB for the unsold units | have not allowed for price discounting but have
allowed £5k per unit for sales incentives as above

In addition there are 2 smaller sites in nearby villages that may be
considered.

At Woodneshorough (about 1'2 miles distance) there is a development
site called The Village by TG Deslgner Homes of 24 units from 2-5 beds
backing onto farmland. At an early stage, 3 plots are reserved which are
each 2 bed units of 820ft2 which show an average of £291/ft2. However |
understand that this is includes a fully fitted kitchen with appliances,
under-floor heating, landscaping, turfing, and carpeting throughout.
Allowing a figure of say £5,000 for these elements the adjusted value/ftz
is £280. You should be aware that the village has few amenities, no shop
or pub and residents rely upon travelling to Sandwich (2 miles), Eastry or
further afield.

In Ash, a comparable but better village lying about 2 miles to the west
towards Canmterbury, Rogate built 14 homes on a development called The
Lanes, malnly terraced or semi-detached homes, comprising 11 No. 3 bed
and 3 No. 4 bed homes in four terraces. These were sold between May &
August last year and achieved values ranging from £228/ fi2 for a 4 bed
end terrace (1,447 #t2) but average values were between £250 - £270/H2
for the remaining 3 bed properties averaging 1,110 fz. In a better
location this was a higher spec. scheme including Amtico flooring to
ground floor and bathrooms, fully fitted kitchens including dishwasher and
fridge freezer.

Flats

There are no flats currently being offered on any of these sites. However
2 recent re-sales at the Abbey Homes site {(Archers Field) at Whitfield
show 2 bed flats of between 517fi2 and S59ft2 achieving resale values of
c. £210/f12 and selling between £116,000 and £118,000.

Comparison of proposed pricing to current market evidence

Flats

Based on the only available data from a recent development that included
flats, a price of £200/f2 seems reasonable albeit that the B units
proposed are bigger than the comparables. We have proposed a sale value
of £135,000 and | feel this is too high based on this evidence. | have
adjusted these to £125,000.

108




Based on the figures above | have not altered the Flat prices in the Range
Building.

C1 - 2 bed unlts

Smaller units such as this are clearly achieving higher prices/ft2 but this is
also size dependent where the smaller units in the range available achleve
£275-£285/2ft for a typical 613-650ft* whereas the larger unmits
proposed at Eastry are 77082, | have therefore amended the pricing of
these units to reflect a £285/#2 average.

Although larger overall, | have not altered the anticipated prices
achievable for The Range bullding.

D1/D2/D3 variants

These are mid-sized 3 bed units proposed hetween 1,000 and 1,145fi2
with a median sales value proposed of £E225/f2. The lower achieved
values at the Whitfield site and Church Lane, Sholden sile suggest that
this value should be adjusted to an average £220/ft2 which 1 have applied.

D4 semi-detached 3 bed units

At 1,078ft2 these are priced within the range of £225 to £240/R2. |
have made no adjustment to these as | feel these sit comfortably within
the range achleved elsewhere and are in a better part of the site.

Detached units 80-88 (E1, & F)

Although these units have southerly views over open farmland | cannot
ighore the most recent evidence for the sale of similar sized detached
homes nearby. Our estimate average price/ft? is £240, | have applied a
more modest reduction from previous estimates to £235/#

109




‘CGX(OQS
Chartered Survayors

MARKETING REPORT

Applicant. Runnymeds Investments Limited

Proposal: Residential Redavelopment

Location:  Former Eastry Hospital, Mill Lane, Eastry, Kent CT13 0LD
Marketing: Through Caxtons from 9" March 2008 to 10 October 2013

1. Marketing { Media

Caxtons commenced markeling in March 2009. There was a comprehensive
range of advertising, details of which are shown below with copies attached,

2. Formal Offers Received

Caxtons have not received any formaf offers for the premises.

3. Source of Enquiries
Four enquiries have been raceived as set cut below,

*  24.05.10 Strutt and Parking in Canterbury for sales particulars
 07.10.10, 27 July 2011 and 24.12.11 General enguires from individuals
and details sent

4, Marketing Analysis

The hospital closed in 1997 and has been unused since this time. Caxions
have marketed the premises far sale and to jet for office use for nearly three
years. The lack of success is due to two main factors which are location and
the prevailing market conditions. Eastry is a rural location and as such is not
suited 1o large scale office development. Small offices take time to find
occupiers for in Canterbury and Dover but rural areas are not stitable for
many employees due to extended travelling times, lack of focal service and
higher housing costs.

We did not feel that it was appropriate to quote a price or rent on the

marketing details. This was due to the size of the premises and the
prebability that most occupiers wouid wish to take on a smaller proportion of

110




(caxtons

Chartared Survoyes

the overall space. This is a frequently used approach when advertising
unrefurbished space which is dilapicated.

The economy has also had a negative effect on the success of the marketing
campaign. The {ack of bank lending has severely reduced the number of
businesses requiring office space. It will be some time before the currently
available space is taken up again, and before new stock is required.

The following comments are from Locate In Kent who have assisted in
marketing the site.

The property has been logged on our system since March 2008,

We have received very little interest in the site. If has been pul forward
to clients on a few occasions bul there has been no follow up o my
knowledge. As you know demand for offices is siow al the moment and
the enquiries we have had for Dover have been looking for town cenire
premisss.

Another factor is Discovery Park in Sandwich. Hopefully this will soon
come to the market but that could accommeodaie alf the focal office
demand, particularly when you faclor in the Enferprise Zone staliis
(business rate exemption up to £55k per annum) and availability of
Regional Growth Fund grants. There is circa 3 miflion sq.ft. of available
space al Discovery Park which will have a significant impact on the
commercial property market in East Kent.

A residential use would nc doubt create employment in the short temm during the
gonstruction phase. Iimportantly, employment would also be required for ongoing
maintenance of the kuildings, grounds and communal areas of this site.

The development of a similar former hospital site at Chartham proved successful.
The resideniial development has successfully incorporated some of the former
hospital buildings.

In March 2013 we added further office space to cur particulars in the form of the
chapel building. This will provide 1884 sqft of modern office space within the original
chape! buiiding.

5 Comparative analysis
There are a number of vacant offices available in the vicinity. We have offices

available at Eurokent Business Park, Ramsgate, Discovery Park and Spratling Court,
Manston.

111 |




‘ caxtons

Chartered Survayors

Space Asking Rent | Caxtons
available Epsf Marketing
N _ Commenced
Eurokent 1775sqft 14 2008
Discovery 500,000 20 Fely 2013
Spratling 3000 8 Feb 2013

Whilst we have recently had enquiries for all of the abave offices, take up appsars to
depend hugely on whether the offices are in an existing hub such as the former
Pfizer plant or not. There has been no take up of the rental office space at Eurokent,
Shell units have been bought and fitted as offices by occupiers but there have been
no offers to take the cffice suite. Discovery park has seen reasonable take up of
office space but this existing office space benefits from reduced rates and excellent
on site facilities. Spratling Count Offices are converted from a bam and we have had
no offers on the advertised space since marketing commenced in February 2013,

The offices at Eastry will provide good accommodation but they are relatively remote
despite being on the village outskirts, It is apparent that lettings are achievable when
office are close to coastal towns and established hubs which provide the facilities so
often required by companies. These include good transport network, support
services including catering facilities and good local housing stock. | would suggest
that the subject premises would see good take up if they were offered as residential
accommodation for which there is demand.

James Logan BSc (Hons) MRICS
For and on behalf of Caxtons

112




1 Castle Streat, Cantarbury
Kent, CT1 20F

Tel: 01227 7RE088

Fax: 01227 450003

caxtons

Chartered Surveyors

FORMER EASTRY HOSPITAL
MILL LANE
EASTRY
NEAR SANDWICH
KENT
CT13 0LD

PROPOSED REFURBISHED OFFICES
UP TO 2,203 M* {23,704 FT?)

FOR SALE/TO LET
ADDRESS OF PROPERTY

CRGDTE W0 R o T R OF Iemank o s poape iy whasn snerm b s -4 nodoe tha A AL chie ikl Divar ety sl # KN Wi ] 2L L]
wmuwmwﬂmmFuWHmwm?1uhwm

T [arlispdras Tim o sn 20 hoenne? G ek bt e edaa0 o i b PR U b e - . e K . 1 by gL o R b 1
! AT O L T Sty HoTh et s
G R fiee 0 LK e Rl sl el g et
Fri s wah
¥ Tl v g L M el e e Dy o0 I egs e gy gl el PERLRALE o Mikh ipm
S Al | T e e o U L S e e e L iz i e PP TR IR TR T P P, SEEY
- :—I\.;I: “::f:u:lu T B T R P TR e Vo 1 LR MRS E e AR Sty SRR il
Frey mhi ¢ aamt P g B, AR W gnet S s Lwih 07 ILG
X M pne e I o o COTENT VIZ Av 2010 Iy 1 ke ©F G AR LA T sy etz Ol Sanns FU7 o Hor o 45 Ak e Tineeaiea, bed
Fup it e BTTE0




Location
The offices are {0 be located in the former Eastry Hospital fronting Mill Lane,
close to the village centre,

Eastry is appraoximately 3 miles south east of the Cingue Port of Sandwich,
just off the A256 dual camiageway from Eastry to Dover, approximately 11
miles from the Port, town and A20/M20. The A2 at Whitfield is only 6 miles
distant, so the property is well placed for the motorway network.

There is a main line station in Sandwich with London Charing Cross being
approximately 2 hours.

Description
The property i1s atiractively situated and comprises two of the remaining
buildings of the now Listed former hospital.

The remainder of the site to the rear is o be redevaloped for residential
purposes.

It is proposed that the buildings will be fitted out to a high standard of finish
and to any internal layout required by the tenant consistent with the
restrictions of a Listed Building.

Accommodation
Gross Int. Areas

Main Building M2 FT2
Ground floor office 618 8650
First floor office 481 5176
Second floor office 167 1797
Basement storage 171 1839
Total 1437 15462
Range building

Ground floor office 374 4024
First floor affice 39z 4218
Total 766 8242
Total for both buildings 2203 23,704

Outside — parking areas will be provided for both buildings.

Tarms

The offices are available for rent at £10psfior purchase on terms to be agreed.
Expressions of interest are invited and further details and plans are available
on request.

114



caxtons

Chartered Surveyors

1 Castle Street, Canterbury
Kent, CT1 2QF

Telk 01227 Y8E0RS

Fax: 01227 450003

Rating
To be assessed by the Valuation Cffica.

EPC
Results awaited, a copy of the report will be available upon reguest to
prospactive purchasers / tenants

Legal Costs
The landlord’s legal costs in respect of a letting will be the responsibility of the
ingoing tenant.

Note
The buildings are currantly in a poor state of repair and access is restricted.

Viewing
Strictly by appointment through Sole Agents Caxtons on & 01227 788088
James Logan (Extn 225) or Beverley Chaplin {Extn 240},

TN 1] Mg Al 10 vooGos o IESErs ol Lis GeLatly woees nen thoy £, Gha naEgs 11 £ R T RTINS i 0 i LThEu i Iy LI e B h 1 gL, g
sithi e I B Gl w PG N enbn e p o W inlag g inners 4 TN G d A s 00 lin
AT AL D EEIRRIE B el 100t Lul sl saterly emanvs by eanrtn o0 3hose e g o
Lt 0 S R

b T patlealas A Kl o g b penial calbog one 192 1R ity S e ded poschiuts v hroass, 101
A2 W el i e AL A [ AT AR 2aThaET
§ 0 TRy e e s Aty HRL b A fet e, gmtelaE, sl aeE ol g e s Al gL
LEEL AR TSP L e R e PROISE LIIE B R IS g0 s s CUNE 1D Zaphn e Tu Ny Whern UG 2B LK S Gl AR R Tk T R
‘:n.-: -;ﬁ:ﬂ.\;:.:i:]::.l'l:l}wlw P lArmiri g a2 S0udd nay her e legs a8 1 T ant o7 S fui CAXTENN L AATIDAL IR faedyles At conenay CinToEe
y " Faoguoaras CHie 1 nes PR Eoe v @00 Al il e iraesshe pon

TR R e b B s i s mng 1IN T AR S G TR LGS O ey

WRILOTE 1 b Al D e ket LMz Momhey pERATRL




fee - Chartered
Ay

A JENNER

P e ———— - -  Enlfiing | ot pngas 1876 — - -

Our ref: -AKR/akr11-0-13
Your ref; -
Runnynmeds Hoemas Limited
182 Brooklands Road ;}gp;g_r; Ef-“ﬂ‘a*acturs} Ltd
Weybridge ek Farm st
Surray 30K P s ks
KT13 DR.J Frfst ne
ot A5 3T
th
4" March 2014 : M“ “ \
K .-'-;
For the attention of Mr Martin Brown E s s e s
W it s i, s
Dear Martin,

EE, ID!EM Costs for refurblshmnm g[_ng mnvmlurn of Eﬂﬂﬂ&m&ﬂ

Further to our recent tedlaphone conversation | have pleasure in submilting the following
budget information.

Tha indlcative costs to canstruct the above as shown on guy holloway drawings 13.028 — 45,
48, 47 & 48 would be in the sum of £1,837,500.00 including VAT. Thie |s based upon
carrying out tha works in a traditional manor end under a traditional form of building corirect,
with the design aspects of the works remaining with yourselves.

| trusl the abova is sufficlent for your purposes at this stage but showtd vou wish o discuss
any points or raguire eny further inforrnation please do not hesitate to contact me.

) look forward to hearing from you again in the naar fuiurg,

Yours einceraly,
For Jenner (Contractors) Lid

Arelrew Ralph
Eslirmatingg Director

Ry ulogae rﬂﬁr-'..
AR R T ML

-’: i)

o] ' Snghi M,
VAT Thimfera™an Ha, &5 -0 A
GHBH'—"J‘!

\ P
vtq

Qv

gy YOy J‘;,:;_‘__,_—'r

A LE Y

116




BUDGETARY ADVICE

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT
oF
THE FORMER
EASTRY HOSPITAL

ON BEHALF OF

RUNNYMEDE HOMES LTD

ISSLE 1
10.10.11

117



Contents

* Proposed Budget Cost Sum Analysis

Client’s Provisional Sums

]I ¢ Contractor's Provisional Sums

Qualifications/ Exclusions

118




Proposed Budget Contract Sum Analysis
Erefiminaries {80 weaks)

Fiats Type A {2 blocks of 6 units @ £60,144)
Flats Type B (1 block of 4 units @ £68,274}

House Type C— 30 units

£1 terraced {13 no. & £73,922.00)

¢1 semi-detached {4 no. @ £78,535.00}
2 terraced (S no. @ £74,214.00)

3 semi-detached {2 no. @ £70 388.00}
C4 semi-detached (3 no. @ £82,780.00)
C5 semi-detached {2 no, @ £79,798.00)
Step/ staggers (4 no. @ £500.00]

House Type [ — 26 units

D1 zemi-detached {3 ne. @ £99,840.00)
01 terraced (3 ne. @ £97,476.00}

D2 terraced (2 no. @ £95,678.00)

D7 semi-detached {3 no. @ £57,330.00}
02 detached {3 no. @ £98,509.00}

D4 semi-detached {2 no, @ £57,346.00)
D5 detached (2 no. @ £98,490.00)

DE semi-detached {8 no. @ £57,368.00}
Step/ staggers {7 mo. @ £500.00,

House Type E
Detached {4 no, @ £181,831.00)

House Type F
Detached [4 no. @ £164,447.00)

Refurbishment to externals of existing builldings

Exte rnal waorks

Overhead & profit recovery

NB/ the Bilis abave include the Provisonal Sums

631,042.00
721,728.00

273,096.00

$60,986.00
315,340.00
371,070.00
238,104.00
248,340.00
159,556.00

2,000.00

299,520,083
292 428,00
191,256.00
293,9490.00
285,527.00
194,692.00
196,980.00
778,544.00

3,500.00

72752400

657,788.00

215,000.00

2,263,540.00
10,327,891.00

275,893.00

£10,603,734.00

119




Clignt’s Provisional Sum

Flats Type A Kitchen units @ £2500 12 np 30,000.00
Type B Kitchen units @ £2500 4 nag. 10,000.00

Hous= C1 terrace Kitchen units @ £2500 12 no. 32,500.00
1 Semi kitchen units @ £2500 4 no. 10,000.00

C2 ierrace Kitchen units @ £2500 5 no. 12,500.00

3 semi Kitchen units @ £2500 2 ni. 7,500.00

C4 semi Kitchen units & £2500 Inc. 7,500.00

C5 semi Kitchen units @ £2500 Z no. 5,000.00

House 1 semi Kitchen units & £3500 3 ne, 10,500,008
D1 terrace Kltchen units @ £3500 2 no. 10,500.00

D2 terrace Kitchen units @ £3500 2 no. 7 000.00

D2 semi Kitchen units @ £3500 3 no. 10,500.00

D2 detached Kitchen units @ £3500 3 no. 10,500.00

D4 semi Kitcharn units @ £3500 2 no. 7,000.00

D5 detached Kitchen units @ £3500 2 non 7,000.00

D& sermi kitchen units @ £3500 8 no. 28,000.00

- E detached Eichen units @ £4500 4 . 18,000.00
£ Fire hearths @ £500 4 ng. 2,000.00

F detached Kitchen units @ £4500 4 nao. 18,000.00

F Fire hearths @ £500 4 na. 2,000.06

Sie clearance 10,000.00

Gas supply complete 20,000.00

Electrical supply complete 60,000.00

Water supply complete &0,000.00

Sight lines 5,000.00

E£401,000.00

120




Contractors Provisianal Sums

Ereak our existing roadways 5, 00000

small fycle stores a0,000.00

Large cycle stares {L1] 91,000.00 | »

Large cycle stores {L2) 56,000.00 | ¢
[ Small bin stores r 9,00000 | >

Large bin stores ¢ 5,250.00 | ¢

Tree protection 2,500.00 '
| Street lighting 50,000.00

BT supply complels 20, 00060

Drainage/ unit with ground flaor 80,000.00

Self-binding gravel drive 7,200.00

Steps/ handrafls 7,000.00

Rasin based roadway 73,750.00

Resin based footpath &7,900.00

Pergola parking structures 31,500.00

Eus stop sighage 250.0¢ |

Road signage {names] 2,500.00

Bus layby 7,500.00

Alterations to existing site entrance 16,000.00

Rgrhishggm Wnrg fo Exterig; of Existlgg Building

Preliminaries 47,000.00

Demalition £,000.00

Brickwaork repairs 34,000.00

Roof covering repairs 31,500.00

Guiters 7,500.00

Feplacement windows 90,000,000

215,000.00

T £832,850.00 |

121




lifications, lusions

1. Any works which may be required in re-routing, removal or upgrade of existing services
which may be found crossing the site.

2. Any works in the ramoval of contaminated materials which may be found on site. This
includes any demclished or excavated materials,

3. Any works which may be reguired in connection with an archaeological survey.

4. Allfees to the Local Authorities In connection with obtaining/ discharging of Planning
Approval or Building Regulations,

5. Design fees including Robust Details.

. 6. MNHBC or any other stmilar insurance cost.
7. Costsinvelved in testing for compliance with Building Reguiatidns.

: 8. The warks are to be completed in a continuous operation with a contract perfod of 80
waeks,

9. The works will be constructed in an economical sequence, not based Upon a sales seguence.

10. Standard of properties to achieve Code Lavel 3,
11. Standard Form of Contract

12. Exclusion of 3 Bond if requlred

13, No al!uw:":lnce made for a Conting=ney Sum

. 14. Type D5 = no detailed drawing — assumed simitar to other “D” type units

122




OO0 bs Coombs (Canterbury) Lid wmul Trickatt Page 1of 1 2210/201208:56:41
weodlndn vLaaall I.-I:'llv-' ST
Net Estimate
Tender Ma. 8189 Bt
Title Enastry Hospital Sle Secllon
R, Description Cuamilty | Unita Rate Extansbon
Sactlon Summary
g A SUBSTRUCTURES 35,151.48
B STRUCTURAL FRAMEWGREK 43,123.50
o G EXTERMAL WALLS 40,122,580
oM o UPPER FLOORS & STAIRS 347423
04 E WINDOWS EXTERNAL DOORS 3484424
04 F POOF 26,277.85
o4 QG INTERNAL WALLS a,771.64
04 H INTERMNAL DOORS /77687
o4 WECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL 61.642.77
od J FIXTURES & FITTINGS 20,357.16
04 K FINISHINGS 70,411,485
4L DECORATIONS 11, 700.57
GrandTotal |~ 360,861.28
—
Bill Summary
o Flats Type A 2.00 HAR0,BH1.208 721,722.56
Grand Total 72172258
—

Summary

Loomurmanls and Setingad Tricceshpeealon [k P eyl B griod [ Regwerl Lar Moot ZHI00T

123




pombs

L. Bhmar COSTAECLRCLiAD WIS

Coombs (Canterbury) Lid

-l Trgkett Page 1ol 1 22A001208:57:13

Met Estimate
Terdar Ne. cB188 Eill
Title Easiry Hospita! Site Secton
Ref. Dasctiption Quantity | Unita |  Rate Extension
Sectlon Summary
05 A SUBSTAUGTURES 26,814.80
05 B SYRUCTLRAL FRAMEW DRIK §1,530.00
s o EXTERMAL WALLS a1,M6.28
0 D UPFER FLOODRS & STAIRS 2867315
0z E WINDOWS & EXTERNAL DOORS a7 Fe2 11
0z F RCOF 1803363
06 @& INTERNAL WALLS 283621
6 H INTERMAL DOORS 7401.62
o5 | HMEGHANICAL & ELECTRICAIL 43 547.08
o5 J FIXTURES & FITTINGS 132,048.50
05 K FINISHINGES A7 131,14
s L CECORATIONS 9,508,858
———
Grand Total 273,095.03
—
Bill Summary
05 FLATS TYPEB 27309543
(irand Total 274,056,039
——
Sumimary
ATt A SalbAgHE TR LppREtion DD TImeciontesprirt (4 Rapor] La Modfisd 20MI1E

124




OOombs Cocmbs {Canterbury) Lid ‘aul Trickett Page1of1 22/10/201209:00:56

BRI O ad T ) [0 GNEE S T

Net Estimate
Tender No. cB185 Bill
Title Eastry Hoapltal Sits Section
Raf. Csacription Quantty | Unlta Rate " Extanslon
Section Bummary
M oA Managemenl & Staff 138,000.00
oM B Site Accommodation 20,800.00
K G Servicas & Faciflins FA,100.00
o D Mechanical Flart 1320000
™M E Tamporary Works ' 369,542 00
ol F Project Specific Requirsments 15,0800.00
oS Design Feas
Grand Total 631,042.00
. ———
Bl Suminery
o Praliminarias 631,042.00

Grand Total ||~ 631,042.00
e y—

Surmmary
D, e 1 5| L T et e i, Lalwt RO apsalimnit prind e Rapot Lasl Madilad: 22110 HE

125




coambs Coombs {Canterbury) Lid aul Trickelt Page 1 of { 22104201208:58:48

PR
Net Estimate
Tender Mo, c6189 Bill
Tifle Eastry Hoapita! Site Settion
Ref. Dascription Quantity | Unlis Rate Extenslon
Section Summary
13 A SUBSTRUCTURES || 18 523,57
13 B STAUCTURAL FRAMEWORK 18,230.00
15 EXTERMAL WALLS 211230
13 O UFFER FLOOA & STAIRG 241747
13 E WINDOWS & EXTERMNAL DOCOAS 13,887.25
13 F ROGF 13,876.40
13 @& INTERNAL WALLS & CHIMNEY 653765
13 H INTERNAL DOCRS 3485750
131 MEGCHANICAL & ELECTHICAL 2236758
153 J FIXTURES & FITTINGS 6,264.65
13 K FINISHINGS 30,607 74
13 L DECORATIONG 5 G64.50
Grand Tolal 184 447 27
— . ——— -}
Bill Bummary
13 HOWUSE TYPE F 4,00 164,447 37 667, 788,08

Grand Tetal B57,759.08
= ——————=-]

Summary
oy foymaets and Batungal P Ticheagplalicn Duls RO apEicinkadprict. ol Fapeort Lt Maefflne 22010/30%2

126




5 L02B0ME1 "eeq

£00°00°9 :usisiaA, Jadojensq SNEMY
syom Buiwy [euibuo esieidde 1 )464d sUun s|gepiaye on - ABSEuAMEIElequeltiold: | JadoRsagisddyy | pdde-asur, B4

(ang Buipn|ax3)
I LL 266 TFEEL FLA T4 40 & 0¥ LELFL LGGTHEC) Eaiyile w00 Buipng 184
LA ) LEG'TPEE) EFGLELL ELZL 0z Tl £FLEL BLER BLiping paistT - wad
LEDEL'BEL BT LEL GO EZLL LEO'ELE L o900 08 SIL[T BEANL - D)
SEEEE S 25 L[] £6E'9EL SRS [EERIELIGT - WD
IEGEr'eEL L 1udd LLPL S0000L 507 Ua2nIsuan
| aseyd
ealy a[aepIng BoUy S|QETER|
|E13L jupy sad SE0IC Jodd ss0ig) Jad U I\ =3Y]
B sy 1500 Jdnson Ao LSl 1500 jususg
] LRIy
tPe'i6 Y19
ZTT'26 YD
: 1agLnpy Jaaload ! SSAIPPY
ez 1snEny  S12g G102 Sung pasiAdy - (endsoy Agsey : joeloud

W0oEF @ afeisan wnid 12a pue paviy
{Bepiope %0} awsyss apaliuuny

471 sueag nfejuop

127




SLOZMOE ] 8]

E00'00 G (uoisies Jadalassd SNOHY

aw Buiun EuBue jesigidde ||40ud SHUN 3qepIoYs ON - AseaiarivEIegiRIeaeiBold: | 1sdoisragisddy | gpdde-astn, :ei4

SHOZ 1snbny  © seq

1Wor3 D eBessac snid 1s07) pue] paxiy
{ajqeoye 3,0) BWELIS BpeliuLny

$10Z BUNT PASIADY « JeydscH Ayses: jasloag’

JPL'SLY Qrign OO0 D SAE M Ad
000g' T L0000 @ dA 00'sg sy yeuey
[[TETETTT L
UojEnjEn Juswsan|
d0U'sE  oof'sg 000"3E oL DOR'E b [ElmeLoy
AW fajeg e IYNAMN ) SIEY H DU
[eu) juay 19N L= FIET] Arewiung eary [ejuay
LIS LY LT e ]S e A
56 8¢e F 969'ZEL SEELL cH ol Buiping peysin
gog'zL2'0Z FRG'FTE e6'ZET 6298 06 UM ML
FAleg 5304 82ug pun ey e 1] SHUN uanenjes sajes
ANNIAIY
3w Aoualing
| BEEL 40 [25iesddy Alpuhung
%22 (Bl 60 Ot S0 S0 000 v W%EED Bunenep
FLFLS) vSL 85} FLE'LGL %60 | oed |efieq sejeg
LTBTO'E BOE aL'e LZ9'E0E b6l E o84 Juaby sejeg
HrZ85'Y F1) 44 oLs FIRPD 250451 T Bue] ‘Bunaxoy
WL L 00E'FEE'L QUEFR'TL &0l HLFL COE P2’ Yl Ok Py
00 sre’sl BTl kel %000 S99 [EUDISEA}0Id
WPTTL ac'EEL'2 oooee SZ0 L0 o0a'seg “RLn Buueld uma)
Q0 ool 0¥ oLy oo Joy L LCISIGIY JaUio
oo 0gs B3 [LER 0o's9 bt 0 Ang dwieys
a0 oo’ E°LL LWL Do OoL' | g B i P
00058’ LE ££°22 H'TT WrSL S1503 unjysinbay
| BsEyd
BElY Sgeppng Ay JesEaT]
[E30) jun 2d s&oucy Jad 800y Jed MR oneEy
40 % TNy =20 J4dr=00 L4507 [ELaWa|g 107 ) jueana|J
‘a1 e T
¥ra'le e
4140 e £ 1)
s daguanpy sl I BEMPPY

JT1 suBAg nBeuow|

128




SLOZ/E0ML (Bjeq £00°00 9 UoIsIa, 18doleAs] SNOHY
som-BUILI [BLIBPO [Esjesdde || 40Md SIUN BIAER.IONe ON - AlseIyarinEleaeeduiestold | Jedoaragsddy | gdde-seu taji4

204'G6+'| 1507 A0uEUlS [EOL
So0'LEL LIOOMIEur)
BES'FRE’L puEy
(rEunuon] %000 ey HPaD %05 9 ey 1050
JONYNLL
L2 ot
rLE LG WG D 324 |ela sajEg
JER'R0E %0%'| 28 Waby saEg
£334 Tvs0dsI0
000+
ong' vt Bujaxdeiy
QNLLLET ' DNILIHHYN
ODEFEE |
OOE R LU0 eI
£334 T¥NOISS3J0Ud
GE'TPA'EL  2E6'TPR'EL M ZZT'RE B|RjOY
FRG BT od9pnal RIETT Fujppng paye
IZOELE L A9 BZ 4T SINTIR: SHU S1eALd
E6E'SES dd 90391 M BIE'E (oAU
ol el 31T «H UGQINQEUDT
S1205 NCHLINHELSNOD
00000k
000" 00F LoD IR J3O
ucgisinboy s3I0
QO0'E6L" L
O00°sE Bunuueyd umo)
ao0as WOOF Ang dieys
Q00'00L" L &L PEXId

S1502 NOLUSINDOY

AYLNO
065°ZER'1E NOLLYSITy3Y L3N
0BS'ZER'LT IMTYA LNIWJOT3AIOD L3N
(620'%2)

(5L0'+2} WS 07y § I05EYDINS
BE9'950° 1T INTYA LNINGODTIAIA SS0HD

A00F3F B ebelenp snid ys0] pue] pax|y
{B|QepaCYE 9,0} SWBYDT BPEWALIMIY

[dT7 SNVA3 NOVINOW . AMVIAIANS LSO TY.LNIW3T3

129




G 0ZM0/E L "ee]

£00°009 “unIskA Jadasseq SnouY

om Buig 1ewBuo [esteldde 113044 sHun ajemuoye ON - AlSeauArNEIBQEIEqueIBoIAL L Isdoaastdyy | pdde-asuny, a9

BFL'OMrZ

WE'FIPEL

LT T T )
SUlu § 4 gg

SFGEL

WLkFR
Lo0rg
i
WROLL
HEEL
F A

[d77 SNYAT NSVINOW

AUYINIAINS 1503 T¥LN3W33

(%0069 B1ed aoueLy) UoISOIT o
12405y ua

Hul

{3an14] %Pplaly Juaseanbg
{{ewmwon) %peiA juseanky
[wey vok whpELs, uswdepasg
HACN D 1ol
%A0D UC 1Yoy
Y00 LD WOl

SERINSEa BIURLLOHD]

Lid0ud

SL802 TvLOl
Y00+F @ eBesaad snyd )80 pue paxiy
(3yqepiopye ¢p) eweyos apawAuuny

130




For: Dover District Council

Review of Applicant Submitted
Viability Position

Eastry Hospital
Redevelopment

October 2016
(DSP16411D)

o e

3
i

et TS -
".“_ F #‘iutb* - “?,.
e g ' i . f & ..

-

i "'I‘L
‘-E A .t. 5-"#1;'# B

khﬂh

Dixon Searle Partnershig

131




Contents
MNotes and Limitations 1

General — Introduction 2 ’

132




Dover District Counchl

1.

DixonSearle
Fartngrshp

Notes and Limitations

111

1.1.2

113

114

115

The following does nat provide formal valuation advice. This review and its findings are
intended purely for the purposes of providing Dover District Council (DDC} with an
independent check of, and opinion on, the planning applicant’s viability information and
stated positian in this case.

This document has been prepared for this specific reason and shauld not be used for
any other purpose without the prior written authority of Gixon Seatle Partnership (DSP);
we accept no responsibkifity or liakility for the consequences of this document being
used for a purpose other than far which it was commissioned. To the extent that the
document is based on information supplied by others, Dixon Searle Parthership accepts
n& fizbility for any loss or damage sufferad by the client. '

We have undertaken this as a desk-top exercise as is appropriate for this stage and level
of review. For general famiiarisation we have considered the site context from the
information supplied by the Council and using available web-based material. We have
not visited the location; it was not considered pecessary to enter the site for this current
review purpase.

We have assumed that the information supplied to D3P to inform and suppart this
review process has been supplied on a COMMERCIALLY CONFIDENTIAL BASIS; hence
D5P's assumpticn is that the review detail, as contained within this repart is ta be
treated in the same way.

It is requested that the viability information, this report and any further supparting
information or similar reporting prepared by DSP will not be disclased to any third
parties under the Freedom of Information Act (Sactions 21 and 43{2)) or under the

Environmental Information Regulations.

Uowver District Counol — Eastry Hospital - Yahility Review GS21E4110 1

133




Dover District Council ‘

2.

DixonSearie
Fartnerab

Introduction & Background

211

2.1.2

213

214

Dixon Searle LLP {DSP) has been commissioned by Dovar District Council (DDC) to carry
out an independent review of the viability letter, appendices and appraisal supplied to
the Council by the applicant’s agent Montagu Evans on behalf of the applicant
Runnymede Investments Limited. This is in respect of the proposed development
comprising: two storey terrace, semi-detached and detached new build dwellings;
Change of use and conversion of Tewkesbury House and the Chapel to provide 568 sg.
m of community space {Use Class D1} and employment space {Use Class B1} two
residential units; minor demolition, altaration and conversion of the 'Ofd Workhouse' to
provide ten residential units; retention and reinstatement of the fire damaged Range
building and erection of a two-storey terrace of ten residential units’; car parking,
landscaping, public open space and alteration to - exlsting access. A total of 100
residential units are to be provided. The Council’s planni'ng reference is DOV/14/00240.
The development is also subject to an application for listed building consent
(DOV/14/00241).

In presenting their viability position the applicant’s agenit has supplied to the Council &
viahility letter dated 5™ August 2015. In addition we were supplied with both a hard-
copy and electronic versions of the applicant’s appraisal {Appendix 7). This was
supparted by a copy of the architect’s masterplan {Appendix 1}; estimate of residential
scheme revenue (Colebrook Sturrock (May 2015); explanatory note by Simon Greaves
{July 2015) detatling rationale and comparable evidence {Appendix 3); marketing report
for the hospital in its current state {Appendix 4); marketing details prepared by Cexton’s
in relation to the proposed refurbished office accommodation (Appendix 5} and;
quotations and estimates relating to the cost of developing the scheme in the period
2011 - 2014 [Appendix 6}, We have also had sight of the othar documents contained on
the electronic planning file.

The Council's adopted affardable housing policy {Policy DM5} of their Core Strategy
reguires the Council to "seek oppfications for residentiaf developments of 15 or more
dwellings to provide 30% of the total homes proposed as offordable homes™ which in
this case aquates to 30 no. affordable units.

For general backgraund, a viable development can be defined as ‘the ability of g

develapment profect to meet its costs including the cost of planning obligations, while

Joweer District Counci' - Sastry dospita - Viability Roview DSP164123 2

134




Daver District Council ‘

ensuring an appropricte Site Value for the landowner and & market risk adjusted retirn

2.1.5

2.1.6

2.1.7

DixonSearle

Farthership

to the developer in delivering that project.. Site Value should equate to the market value
subject to the folfowing assumption: that the volue hos regard to develgpment plan
policies and olf other materiol planning considerations and disregords that which is
contrary to the development plon.. The residual fund vefue fignoring any planning
obligations ond assuming planning permissign is in ploce) and current use volue
represent the parameters within which to assess the levef of any planning obligations .
Under normal circumstances, if the residual land value (RLY) created by a scheme
proposal exceeds the current or alternative use value then we ysually have 3 positive
viability scenario — L.a. the schame is much more likely to procead.

As an alternative a development appraisal may be rum as a profit residual where the
land cost becomes a fixad cost to the development appraisal and the profit becomes the
key output / variable. This is the case here whereby the applicant’s agent has carried out
the development appraisal exercise assuming a fixed level of land cost (£2.1m).

The submitted viability repart presents and the scheme as appraised by the applicant,
currently produces a profit of 12.46% on cost / 11.06% on revenue. The applicant’s
agent states that:

“aAlthough the Scheme is forecast to make a profit, the level of prafit is significantly fess
than waould ke commercially acceptoble to o third parly developer. We understand that,
having regard to the costs thot Runneymede hove aiready incurred {both site purchase
costs and holding costs), they are prepared to proceed with the development of the
Scheme at this reduced feve! of profit.

However, based on our analysis of the Scheme and the development approisol thot we
have undertoken, we ore of the opinion that having regard to the sub-optimal
profitabifity of the Scheme, it cannot afford to provide any affordable housing, nor can it
gfford to moke @ section 106 payment”.

We assume (as appears to be the case in the statement above) that in putting this
proposal forward as unviable, the applicant is prepared to accept an element of
commercial risk as represented by the submitted position, and accept the resultant
profit level in order to progress the scheme. This could therefore be regarded as the

applicant’s base position. We will consider this further as the review progresses.

! Financial Viability in planning — RICS Guidance note {August 200.2)

Daver District Councl — Eastry Hospitzl - Viakility Review DSP1E41L0 3

135




Doaver District Council ,

218

214

2.1.10

2.1.11

2.1.12

2.1.13

DixonSearle

Fartrershio

This review does not seek to pre-determing any Council positions, but merely sets out
our opinion an the submitted residential viability assumptions and putcomes in order to
inform the Council’s discussions with the applicant and its decision making; it deals only

with viability matters, in accordance with our instructions.

We should point out at this stage that the submission of the wviability letter is dated
August 2015 and the associated supporting evidence dated across a range 2011 - 2014,
All appear significantly out of date and we have not had an eaanation as to why an
updated viahility letter / report and evidence has not been submitted. We therefore
have concerns aver the robustness of the viability assessment put forward in that so
much could have changed in the intervening period in terms of both caosts and values.
The Council may nead to bear this in mind when reviewing our report and in the
decision taking process. At this stage we have reviewed the information as factually as
passible (given the passing of time) based on the instructions providad to us by Daver
District Council. We have, where possible, attempted to update the assumptions {at a
high level} to test he impact of those changes to see the potential impact on the

currently indicated outcomes.

We also note referance to a 2010 application approved by committee — a search of the
Council’s planning file indicates an application far 80 residential units and assaciated
works but no outcome is available. For the purposes of this review we have assumed
that no current, implementable consent exists.

Dover District Coundil requires our opinion as to whether the viability figures and
paosition put forward by the applicant are reasonable. We have therefore considered the
information submitted. Following our review of the key assumptions areas, this report
provides our views.

We have hased our review primarily on the submitted report and appraisal to see if the
viabifity assumptions are valid in cur opinion and whether the base position put forward
by the applicant is reasonable. We then discuss any variation in terms of any surplus (or
deficit) created from that base position by altering appraisal assumptions {(where there

is disagreement) utilising the applicant’s appraisal as a base.

This assessment has been carried out by Rob Searfe and Richard Dixon of DSF wha have

many years combined experience in the development industry warking for Local

Coves Jstrct Touncil - Eastry Haspital - ahility Ravrew D5P154110 a

136



Dover District Council ‘

DixonSearie
Fartrgrstig

Authorities, developers, Housing Associations and in consultancy. As consultants we
have a considerable track record of assassing the viability of schemes and assessing the
scope for Local Authority planning obligation reguirements. This expertise Includes
viability-relatad work catried out for many Local Authorities nationwide over the last 13

YEars Or 5Q.

2.1.14 The purpose of this report is to provide our overview comments with regard to this

2.1.15

individual schame, on bebhalf of the Council - taking into account the details as
presented. It will then be for the Council to consider this information in the context of

the wider planning cbjectives in accordance with its policy positions and strategies,

In carrying out this type of review a key theme for ys is to identify whether, in our
opinion, any key revenue assumptions have been under-assessed (e.g. sales vaiue
estimates) or any key cost estimates [a.g. build costs, feas, otg.} over-assessad — since
both of these effects can reduce the stated viability outcome fin this case the RLY,
equating to the sstimated crass-subsidy level available).

Cover District Councii — Zastry Hospital - Wabitity Review DSP154110 5

137




Dever District Council ‘

3.

DixonSearte

Fartriersho

Review of Submitted Viability Assumptions

211

3.1.2

313

314

3.1.5

Dower Distoet Council — Fastry Basaiel - vizhilitg Reveew J5F152110

The following commentary reviews the applicant’s submitted viability appraisal
assumptions as set out in the viability letter and associated development appraisals
issuad to DSP by the Council.

As noted above DSP was also supplied with working versions of the appraisal used by
the applicant. The applicant’s agent has used Argus Developer software, a suitable tool
for use in testing the viability of specific sites in our opinion. In summary the appraisal
works on a residual valuation basis, with a cashflow sitting behind it in order to take
account of the timing of the varicus current stage estimations of the revenue {receipts)
and develapment costs {expenses). In this case the development appraisal has been run
an the basis of a residual profit calculation. This produces a residual profit after all
development costs have been deducted from the anticipated level of sales revenue
{from the opan market housing, affordable homes and capitalised ground rents) finance

costs on the basis of a fixed level of land cost.

Primarily the review process takes into account the fact that the collective impact of the
various elements of the cost and value assumgptions is of greatest imporiance, rather
than necessarily the individual detailed inputs in isolation. We have considered those
figures {the appraisal assumptions) provided, as below. In the background to this we
have used the working version appraisals to review the impact of trial changes to
particular submitied assumptions.

This type of audit / check is carried out so that we can give the Council a fee! for
wheather or not the indicated pruﬁf positions are approximately as expected — ie.

infarmed by a reasonable set of assumptions and appraisal approach.

Site value / Benchmark Land Value
In all appraisals of this type, the base value {value of the site or premises — e.g. in

existing use) is one of the key ingredients of scheme viability. A view needs 1o be taken
on |and value so that it is sufficient to secure the release of the site for the scheme (sale
by the landowner} but is not assumed at such a level that restricts the financial capacity
of the scheme to deliver suitable profits (for risk reward), cover all devalopment costs
tincluding any abnormals) and provide for planning cbligations as a part of creating

sustainable development. This can be a difficult balance to reach, both in terms of

(a4}

138




Dover District Council ’

developers’ dealings with landowners, and Councils” assessments of what a scherme has

316

3.1.7

Partnersis

the capacity to bear.
The RICS Guidance ‘Financial Viability in Planning’” states that:

‘A vigbility approfsal is token at g point in time, toking account of costs ond values gt
that date. A site may be purchased some time before a vinkility ossessment takes ploce

and circumstances might change.

This is part of the developer’s risk. Land values can go up or down between the date of
purchase and a viability assessment taking place; in a rising market developers benefit,

in a fafling market they may lose out.

A developer may make unreasonaiie/overoptinistic assumptions lregc!.rt:i‘i"ﬂgi the type ond
density of development or the extent of planning obligations, which means that it has

overpaid for the site’,

‘Site Value' is defined in the same Guidance as the following: ‘Site Volue should equate
ta the market value subject to the following assumption: that the value hos regard to
development plan policies and alf other materiaf plonning considerations and disregards
thot which is contrary to the development plon’. It goes on to say ‘it is for the
proctitioner to consider the relevance or otherwise of the actual purchase price, and
whether any weight should be attached to it, having regard to the date of assessment
gnd the Site Value definition as set out in this guidonce. Where historic costs ffor
exomple remediglion works) are stated it is important that these are not reflected in the
Site Value (i.e. double counted)

In this case, the site value {cost) is stated to be £2.1m. This in turn is explained in same

depth within the Monatgu Evans [etter. This is set aut again here for ease of reference:

“The Site was acquired by Runnymede in November 2007 in considergtion of the sum of
£1,700,000. The Site was acquired in the open market, in competition, directly from the
Department of Heafth {“the Department”) and, as such, the price paid represented
market vilue as at the date of acquisition,

" RICS Professional Guidance — Financial Viability in Planning {August 2012}

Dower District Coungil — astry Hospital - Vianifity Review DSPI64110 7

DixonSearle

139




Daver District Council ‘

3l38

DixoanSearle

Farirarzrig

The Site was octuired subject to an gverage ggreement which required Runnymede to
poy an additional sum colculated by reference ta g fixed price per square foot multipiied
by the number of square feet for which plonning permission was obtained.

Following discussions with the Department of Heofth, in Morch 2014 Runnymede
entered intc o supplernental agreement with the Department and negotioted the release
of the overage arrangement. In consideration of the refegse of the overage provisions, a
further sum of £400,000 was paid te the Department, who have no further interest in the
Lite.

Against this hackground, the totol price poid by Runnymede to dcquire the Site from the
Gepartment of Heolth was £2,100,000. As noted, this sum and the overage provisions
were representative of market volue and terms as at the dote of the original acquisition
in 2007. The amount poid to the Department in consideration of the refegse of the

averoge obligations is the lowest sum that the Departrment was willing to occept.

This is on important point in that Runnymede does not seek to test the vigbifity of the
Scheme against anything other thon the actual cost thot it has incurred in acquiring the
Site. The volatility in the UK ond world economy that emerged in fote 2007 and
culminated in the Globol Financial Crisis of September 2008, had o profound effect on
the UK housing market in the period 2008 to date, and whilst the terms on which
Runnymede agreed to ocquire the Site may not ke market terms now, they were at the
time that they were ogreed and they form the starting point for assessing the financial
viahility of ony development that Runneymede may propose for the Site.

in the absence of Rurinymede being able to progress o financiolly viable scheme, the Site

will not come forward for development”.

RICS Guidance makes it clear, as discussed above, that the price paid for a site does not
necessarily equate to the market value of the site. Equally, the value of the site should
be the Market Value at the date of the assessment (in this case it is debateable whether
that should be August 2015 or at this current review point}. Theoretically therefore
there should be an up to date valugtion of the site taking into account the current
constraints and opportunities including the requirement for affordable housing and any

ather planning obligations.

Dewer Distict Counl — Eastry Hospitzl  Wiabdlity Review CSPL1EA1LD 2

140




DixonSearle

Fartnership

Daver District Council ‘

3.0.9  Without an up to date valuation it is difficult to comment as comparable evidence, given

the type of site, is very difficult to source. DSP have hesn involved in a viability review of
development of hospital land elsewhere in the South East where the land value was put
forward by the applicant’s agent in that case at £2.295m (£21,650/plot} in December
2014, This was for a scheme of 106 units in a locality with significantly higher sales
values than those of the subject site (approximataly 30% higher than those indicated
within the subject site development appraisal). Taking the figures above and discounting
t take account of the difference in average sales values would suggest a site cost
equivalent per plot of approximatety £16,250/plot and an overall site value in the region
of £1.6m. This is not significantiy different from the price paid for the site previously but
of course does nat take into account the overage release cost. At a very high level
therefore it appears that the site value included here, regardless of the price paid, is
possibly too high when including the £400,000 overage release costs. The Council may
therefore wish to see up to date evidence in this regard. |

Gross Development Value = Private Residential & Affordable Housing

3.1.10 The viability submission indicates sales values based on advice provided by Colebrogk
Sturrock {May 2015) with units priced on a unit by unit basis with comprehensive
supporting information provided in a note to Mark Whitfield of Montagu Evans detailing
evidence for the sales values assumed. The values range from £215/sq.ft. to
approximately £300/sqg.ft. (£2,315/m* - £3,229/m?). This provides capital values of
£115,000 - £135,000 for the flats £190,000 to £228,000 for the terraced properties,
£204,500 to £258,000 for the semi-detached propertias and £375,000 to £392,000 for
the detached properties. The gross development value of the residential element of the
scheme is stated to be £21,441,521 with an overall average sales rate of approximately
£228/sq.ft. [E2,459j’m1}. Pleasa note that whilst the sales value information states
£230/sq.t average, the development appraisal indicates an average of £228/50.ft. The
overall gross development wvalue is the same and we therefore assume that the

difference is caused by rounding within the safes value schedule.

3.1.11 We have carried out our own deskiop research of property values using property search
engine RightMowve and simiiar sources to review local market indications for comparable
properties {both re-sale and new build) considering current / recent asking prices within
a 1-mile radius of Eastry. This research indicates that averall the sales valuss assumed
are possibly low in the current market but potentially approximately wvalid, as
assumptigns, at the point the viabkility submission was made [May 2015). Reviewing the

comparable information and the UK House Price Index for Dover District as a whole we

Daver District Couneil - Eastry Hospital - Yahility Review DSP152110 9

141




Gover District Council ‘

3.1.12

21.13

3.1.14

3.1.15

3.1.16

DixonSearle
Zarmnership

would expect prices now to achieve in the region of 10% more than at the date the sales
advice was provided. Of course, any sales price increase in the development appraisal
would also need to be accompanied by updated build cost data — please see associated
Developmeant Costs section.,

In addition to the sales values, it is normal to include revenue associated with the
capitalised ground rental income for any apartments / flats within a development. In
this case not such revenue appears to have been included. Typically, we would expect
ground rents at an average of £250 - £350 per unit, capitalised assuming a yield of 5% -
6%. For the purposes of this review we have assumed ground rents at £250/unit and a
yield of 5.5% {applied to 22 units} and added this to the applicant’s version of tha
development appraisal.

It is worth noting that any improvement in the sales value assumptions {compared with
a level set at the point of the appraisal) would most likely be reflected in an
improvement in schema viability. Whilst the opposite could also accur {the sales values
could fall relative to the assumptions made), that is the developer’s risk and such factors

need to be kegt in mind in making an overall assessment of the applicant’s position.

Affordable Housing
Mo affordable housing has been included within the scheme and as such we are unable

ta comment further in this regard. As a general point, it is always useful if a policy
tompliant development appraisal ¢an be included in order that any identified
differences of opinics within the review process can be sensitivity tested against the
policy compliant appraisal.

Grass Development Value — Non-Residential
The scheme as submitted also includes an element of nen-residential space. We

understand that this forms part of the Chapel & Tewkesbury Houses as converted and
rafurbished community and / or employment space. For the purposes of the vizhility

assessment it appears that this space is included as office accommaodation.

3,800s54.ft. {(353m?) of office accommadation has been included in the deveiopment
appraisal at an average of £1Qfsg.ft. (£107.64/m”) indicating a net annual rent of
£38,000. A yield of 8% has been assurmed leading to a capitalised value of £415,147 once
a 12-month void period has been included within the appraisal. The rental value is based

on advice provided by Caxton's Chartered Surveyors that suggest an asking rent of

Deyer Dist ot Councl - Eastry Nosaital - Viak:lity Review 0SP1A2110 1a

142




Dover Qistrict Council

3.1.17

1.1.18

3.1.19

3.1.20

‘ DixonSearle

Frartnership

£10{sq.ft. this figure has been included within the development appraisal and in our
oginion is not an unreasonable assumption based on our own research using Co-Star
property research database. The same is true of the yield assumgptions.

What is very clear is that the office / non-residential accommeodation is having a
negative impact on developrment viability in that the cost of development is, as set out

in the development appraisal, significantly higher than the revenue received.

Developrant Costs, Contingencics & Fees
Build costs for the development have been based on cost advice and quotes obtained

between 2011 and 2014. As noted previously in this review report, the data is now
increasingly historic and it is difficult to know how much reliance to place on it at this
stage. Ideally the build cost information would have been updated to the date of the
viability assessment at the very least {notwithstanding our overall comments about the
timing of the viahility assassment).

Budeetary advice was provided in 2011 by Coombs, presumably the principal contractor
far the applicant in this case and indicates build eosts of £10,603,784. A separate single
page quote from lenner building contractors provides an estimate / indicative costs for
the refurbishment and conversion of the existing listed buildings and Tewkesbury House
of £1,837,500 (dated March 2014).

In setting out the costs within the development appraisal, Montagy Evans state:

‘In terms of build cost, the conversion of the listed buildings has been fooked ot in detoif
mare recently than the remainder of the Scheme, which was considered in detaif in 2011
ond 2012 in refation to the 2010 application opproved by committee, but
unimplemented due to Section 106 requirernents. We are advised that @ consensus as to
build cost was reached with OVS ot the time, ond this has been updated b],r Runnymede’s

in house construction tearn to current, 2015 prices.

Cver the period 2011 to 2015 construction costs hove increased significantly, porticulorty
in the South-East os the property market ond economy has recovered. According to BCIS,
the alfl in Tender Price Index increased by almost 18% over the period, albeit thor the
level of increase in the residential sector, porticularfy in the South-Cast, has been

substantiafly higher at somea 27.50% {medion cost - housing, mixed developmernts).

Caovee District Coenal - Eastry Haspital - Viability Review D3P164110 11

143




Dover District Council ‘

3.1.21

3.1.22

3123

DixonSeare

Furtnership

Based on these calculations, we Rove adepted o total cost of developing the Scheme of
just under £13,850.000, which is equivalent to £141 per 5q. ft. overall. In terms of a
breakdown this reflects the following;

» listed building ond Tewkesbury House - £1,930,000 (Jenner estimate plus 5%
inflation derfved from BCIS TPI) which is equivalent to £168.66 per sq. ft. overalf,
including non-recaverabfe VAT and

s MNew build costs based on an average cost of £137.28 per sq. ft. totaling just over
£11.90m.

It should be noted that these costs fnclude ofl estate roods and site services

infrastructure’.

We have not been party to any discussions that the applicant may have had with the
DVS during previous negotiations on the level of S106 costs for a previous application.
We note {and accept} the commentary on the build cest inflation over the pericd
between 2011/12 and the date of the Montagu Evans {2015} letter as well as the
assumed uplift in costs from the date of the lenner indicative cost estimate. We note
however that no evidence has been supplied to show the costs as updated by
Runnymede’s in house construction team in relation to the main new-build construction

costs.

In order to provide a high level comparison, we have reviewed the RICS Building Cost
Information Service {BCIS) database re-based for a Dover location factor and updated to
current day rates. The data indicates that for housing, mixed developments median
build costs are in the region of £1,236/m’ [E115/sq.ft.). To allow comparison with the
new build costs indicated above we would also need to make an allowance for external
works {typically 10% - 20% of base build costs) and contingencies (typically 2-5% for new
build; more for conversion / refurbishment). Allowing 15% for external works and 3%
contingencies would lead to an overall build cost for comparison of approximately
£1,464/m* (£136/sq.ft.). These are the costs as at the current time, not a camparison
with May 2015. We are therefore of the opinion that along with updated sales values,
the new build costs set aut in the development appraisats would be broadly acceptable

today.

For tha refurbishment and conversion of the existing buildings, it is difficult to anatyse

the costs by unit type as the costs are not broken down in that way but at a high level,

Jover [istrict Council - Zastey Hospita: - Wianility Seview DRPI6401D0 12

144




DixonSearle

Partnerstug

Dover District Council ‘

the BCIS data indicates base build costs of £1,270/m?; £906/m? for offices. Even allowng
for extarnal works and contingencies these costs are obviously lower than those
assumed withir the development appraisals. However, given that they are based on a
costs estimate (albeit indicative) we would need to accept those at this stage — as a
current date allowance for build costs.

3.1.24 The viability submission and development appraisals also include an allowance of 10%
for professional fees. This assumption appears within typical parameters in our
experience.

Cost Assurnptions — Section 106 Payments / Planning Obligations

3.1.25 The viability assessment allows for no affordable housing, CIL or other specifically
raquested 5106 payments. The Council would need to be clear on the planning
obligations reguirements and whether thaose were required to mitigate the impact of
the development and are comgliant with CIL Regulation 122 being (a) necassary to make
the development acceptable in planning terms; {b) directly refated to the developrment;
and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. We would
assume, if any and regardless of the wiability exercise, that without meeting those
requirements the scheme would not be acceptable in-planning terms? Equally, of course
from the Council’s perspective it must ensure that it in requesting any contributions it
dees not fall foul of the pooling restrictions by entaering inte S or more s106 obligations
for the same type of infrastructure (backdated to April 2010},

Cost Assumptions — Agent’s. Marketing & Legal Fees
3.1.26 The viability assessment has assumed marketing costs of £44,000, agent’s fees on sale of

1.5%, legal fees on sale of 0.75% and purchaser’s costs an the nen-residential units at
5.8%. Overall these cost additions are not untypical and we would not query those
furthar.

Develapment Timings & Development Finance

3.1.27 Finance costs have been assumad based on debt finance rate 5.5% p.a. with no credit
intarest rate {assuming 100% debt funding over the whole development period). No
aliowance for other finance related fees has been made.

3.1.28 The interast rate is the cost of funds to the scheme developer; it is appliad to the net
cumulative negative cash balance each month on the scheme as a whole. According to
the HCA in its notes to its Development Appraisal Tool (DAT) ‘The rote applied will

Dover Cistrict Cauncil — Eastry Hospital - Vianility Review D3PTE4210 . 13

145




Dover District Counal

3.1.2%

3.1.30

313

3.1.32

, DixonSearle
Farinership

depend on the developer, the perceived scheme risk, ond the state of the financial
maorkets. There is also a credit interest rate, which is appfied should the curnulative
month end bolance be positive. As o developer normaily hos other varighle borrowings
(such os on overdraft), or other investment opportunities, then the volue of credit
balances in reducing overoll finance charges is generally the same as the debit interest
chorge. A zero rate of credit interest is not generolly plousible, and wifl generate

significantly erroneous results in a fong term scheme’.

RICS also points out that it is often the case that schemes are modelled at current costs
& values i.e. ignaring inflation {as is the case here). In this case RICS Financial Viability in
planning paper states in appendix D 4.5 *... current values and costs should be used
together with a net of inflation finance rate. Such a net of inflation rate would be much

fower thon o bank rate fwhich naturally includes inflation expectations)'.

As a package, the overall finance cost does not look unteascnable in our experience

given that other finance costs are not included separately.

Development timings indicate an overall project timescale of 30 months to develop and

sall the scheme with an 18-month construction and overlapping 18 month sales period.

The overall scheme period does not appear unreasonable in our opinion however we
have noticed that the fand payment is included at September 2007 {£1.7m} with the
‘overage’ release payment inciuded at March 2014. This is affactively attributing a
holding cost to the appraisal and would not normally be included (i.e. it increases the
period over which interest is charged and as such leads to a worsening viability picture).
RICS Guidance (Financial Viability in Planning) makes it clear that ‘The site will be valued
at the date of assessment. Holding costs attributable to the purchase of the site should,
therefore, not normafly be allowed, as the Site Value will be updated'. It s therefore our
opinion that whatever site values is attributed, this should be included at the date of the
appraisal. In the case of the appraisal submitted that would be May 2015 with all other
construction / sales dates following on from that including a reasonable alowance for
pre-commencement planning. As we have updated both sales valuas and build costs to
the current date in carrying out this review we have also adjusted the project timings to
include bringing the land cost payment to the current date, allowing a 6-month laad-in
period, 18-month construction and 18 month sales pericd. We note that in the
submitted appraisal the sales appear to occur in one lump sum at the start of the sales
period with construction continuing beyond the sales period. This does not appear

Sover District Counci: - Zastry Hospital - Viability Roview DSPLEALLD 14

146




Dover District Council ‘

correct and again we have made alterations in our versicn of the applicant’s

DixonSearle

Fartniership

development appraisal. Making the timing changes alone {before any adjustment to
sales values / ground rents or land value assumption} leads to an improved output of
15.79% on cast and above the stated minimum benchmark profit level (see discussion
befow).

Ceveloper’s risk reward — profit

3.1.33 In this case the level of developer prefit is indicated as an output of the appraisal

procass. The Montagu Evans letter states

‘In the case of residential development scheres, the market generally considers that o
“viable” scheme is one that generates o profit as o return on alf cost of at least 15%. This
minimum benchmark applies to what the market perceives as relatively straightforward
developments, notably greenfield. in respect of more complicated development
situgtions; for example, invalving the refurbishment of listed buildings (where the cosis
of conversion are difficult to estimate); brownfield developments fwhere there may be
additional casts associoted with the previous use of the site); or in locations whare the
scheme is of o significant size in a imited muarket; the level of profit reguired would be in

excess of the minimum level of 15% profit on cost.

Based on these industey "typical” benchmorks if o scheme is likely to generate a profit
that is below o benchmork of 15% of overall development costs, then that scheme is
considered by the market to be financiolly unvioble on any basis and is uniikely to be
brought forward. On the contrary, where the viability of a scheme is in excess of these
benchimark levels the surplus “odditionof” profit is notionally avaifable to fund Sectian

166 and aoffordabie housing cbligations ug to a policy compliont fevel

However, for a scheme such as the development of Eustry Hospital to be considered
vioble, I am of the opinion thot the minimum profit that the market would require would
be higher in order ta reflect the various additional construction and rmarket risks to
which the project is subject {listed building, brownfield site and fimited local morket with
an extended safes period). To reflect these risks | consider thot the minimum level of
profit that would be required to render the development of the site viable is of the order
of 17.50% to 20.00% return on cost”.

Gover Diirct Council - Eastry Bospital - Viakility Review DSPLAS1LD 15

147




DixonSearle

Fartrershin

Dover District Council ‘

3.1.34 The level of profit assumed viable is a matter of debate and there are no rules about

what can be consigerad acceptable; case faw as well as our own significant experience
of recent site specific schemes suggests a significant range. We would however
comment that the overall approach to the profit level does not appear unreasonable in

aur gpinion in relation to this particular site and lecation. For the purposes of carrying

out this review and associated sensitivity testing we have assumed a benchmark of 15%
-17.5% on cost.

awer O strict Council  Eastry Hospital- weabiity Rewiew D5P154110 M=

148




Davar District Council ‘

4,

DixonSearle

Partnershg

Summary & Overview of Findings

4.1.1

41.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

Our review of the submitted information leads us to concluda that 2 number of the
assumpticns used in the submitted viability information and associated appraisals

appear reasanable.

There are we think difficulties in being asked to review a viability submission that is
historic both in terms of the date of the submission and even more so in terms of the
evidence used to support the submission. We have however attempted to review as
factually as possible and updated the submitted development appraisal both in

terms of timings and assumptions where we feel those should be updated / altered.

In summary, the areas that have been updated include the overall development
programme and in particular the timing of the land payment and subsequent
cverage release payment. In our apinion, the site value, where an input assumption
{rather than a residual output} should equate to the site valug at the date of the
appraisal for reasons explained above, Equally we are of the opinion that the sales
values and development costs should be updated to the current date and so have
increased sales values by 10% in line with average house price inflation within Daver
and suggested that the build costs utilised could, at this stage, be considered current
for the purposes of this exercise. We have also included an allowance for ground

rental income for the 22 flats included within the scheme,

The net result of those changes is to increase the profit on cost to 27.9% compared

to a profit on cost of 12.82% as presented within the submittad viability assessment.

In order to test the impact of the additional profit we have run a further test
appraisal that, through iteration, includes a sum representative of the affordable
housing / 5106 package that could potentizlly be secured whilst rmaintaining eithar
13% profit on cost or 17.5% profit on cost. The development appraisals [DSPv1 —
base updated; DSPv2 15% profit on cost and DSPv3 17.5% profit on cost) are
appended to the rear of this review report.

Assuming a 15% profit on cest, a surplus of approximately £1.85m is created.

Assuming a 17.5% profit on cost benchmark, a surplus of approxirmately £1.485m is

Dover Gistrict Cauncil - Eastry Hosputal - Viability Review DSP1s4110 17

149




Dover District Conncil ‘

4.1.7

4.1.8

419

MxonSearle
Partnership

created. This sum could theoretically be diverted inte previding on-site affordable

housing and / or other 5106 reguirements.

Of course, no viability appraisal or review can accurately reflect costs and values
until a scheme is built and sold - this is the nature of the viability review process. In
this sense the applicant and their agents are in a similar positicn to us in estimating
positions moving forward — it is not an exact science by any means, and we find that

opinions will usually vary.

We also need to be clear that the above is based on making adjustments to key
assumptions, as described within this report and also subject to any views tha
applicant may have on this. Any agreed affordable housing either via a financial

contribution or on-site will need to be agreed based on updated full appraisals.

OSP will be happy to advise further as required.

Review report ends
October 2018

Carrigd put by: Reb Searle BSc (Hans) MSc CEHM
Checked by: Richard Dixon B5 [Hans) MRICS CIHW

Tover District Cauncil - Fastry Hosptal - wiability Beview D5PLG4L10 18

150




DixonSearle
Harmership

Dowver District Couneil ‘

Appendix [

D5SP Versions of Applicant Submitted Development Appraisal

Cover Cistrwt Council — Eastry Hozprtal Viability Rewew Q5P 154110 13

151




Eastry Hospital - Revised June 2015
Runnymede Scheme (0% affordable)
Fixed Land Cost plus Overage @ £400k

Development Appraisal
Dixon Searle Partnership
October 16, 2016

152



APPRAISAL SLMMARY DIXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|
Emstry Hoapiial - Ravised Juna 2015
Runnymede Schems (X atfordable)
Fluad Land Cost plus Overage & E400K
Summrary Apgwaisal for Phesa 1
Currency in £
REVEMUE
Zales Yawation Unity i Rate it UnkFrice  Gross Sales
Priveria Lirils # BETTS 25621 247,041 22.233,544
Lisked Building i Tike 181,35 135,184 1,251,564
Totals R[] FEWCTT] 23,585,535
Rantal Area Summary Inltiat NetRent  Initial
Lnits 1 Rats i MRVILing Ak Saky MRy
Cornriarzial 1 %800 10.00 33,004 Q00 38000
Inwesirnani Valuation
Conamarcial
Markal Renl 33,000 TP @ B 00H0% 12 500q
P Syrs @ LRt ik R0 23TE1G
GROSE DEVELIPMENT WALLE FERFa R
Purchaser's Coss TR
13,752}
NET QEVELOPMENT YALUE 23,609,372
Additiones Rwvenus
Ground Fant moome 1020
180,002
MET REALISATION 3%, B, 372
DUTLAT
Thie appeaisal rapor does not conatiiilg a bormal wahwdion.
Prajecz. 164110 - Eaalry Haspilal redavakpirenl 1641 1E -Easlry (Mo aHordatis unes PROFIT) - DSP v 1 wrix
ARGUS Davelaper Veddin: 7.50.001 -2- Dlede: 16-0ct-15

153




APPRAISAL SUMMARY

Eastry Haspital - Revised June 2015
Runnymade Scharr (1% affardabla)
Fixed Land Cost plus Ovarage & E400%

ACQLNSTTON GOSTS
Fized Frica

Slamp Duty
Towir PHEArENG

Qther Acquinkition
Qther Acquitilion

CCHETELICTION COSTS
Congtructian
Commaial
Priwaba Linils
Leted Bukding
Tatals

PROFESSHINAL FEES
Archibact

WARKETING & LETTING
harkmiirg

GISFOSAL FEES
Sales Agard Fen
Sales Lagel Fee

FriaMCE

DIXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|

A 00

# Rata ft*
43TAR 1E9EEpP
BE7TAN 13 28 pP

T.0a5 168486 pP
96, 22 n*

1000

1.50%

0.7E%

Debt Ree 6.500%, Gredit Rabe 30003 (Nominaly

Lend
Caorsluclion
Tatal Financa Cosk

TOTAL CU5STS

1 TTHL R

GB.£30
25,040

40,000

Coat
733,393
11,912,021
1,191 583
13,547 00A

+, 384,500

44,000

333,208
106,543

Mo dan
T A6

Thia appraksal raport does not canstitube & formal valuebion,

1,770,000

RO

4000

13,642 35

1,384,300

+.000

495,547

28,3014

18 B2, 581

Primact 15414 [ - Easiry Hasprat radewslopmant, 154 14 £ -Eaatry (Ne atordable unde PR

ARGLS Deweloper Versian: T.50.001

O T) - Q5P vl wots

Dane: 16-0sl-16

154




APPRAISAL SUMMARY DIXOM SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|
Eantry Hoaplitsl - Revissd June 2015

Runnymede 3chema (7% affordabla)
Fied Land Cost phus Owgrage ) 400
PROQFIT
5,216,511

Parfarmance Maasmsy

Profiton Costha EER- AL

Prafit en S0v4% 1.80%

153 18.43%

This appraisal repart does not constitte a formal valuation

FProect 184110 - Eastry Hosprst moessioprmanl] 3411E Lasny jMo affardable unils PROFIT, - DSF 1 wofx

ARGUS Deelgper Versign: 750001 -4 Qo 18-Cct- 18

155




SEMSITIVITY AMALY SIS REFOR

DIXOM SEARLE PARTNERSHI
Eastry Hospital - Ravised Jura 2015

Runnymeda Schan (0% afordable}
Flued Land Coat plua Cverage & £400K

Bansitivity Analysis resuhls are net availabla.
Click the Analygis Rezults tab, then print the raport.

This eppraisal meort doas nol soostitube 4 formal valuation,

ARGUS Bevalepar Warawa- 7 50.001

Report Oxe: 16-0cl-1E

156




Eastry Hospital - Revised June 2015
Runnymede Scheme (0% affordable)
Fixed Land Cost plus Overage @ £400k

Development Appraisal
Dixon Searde Partnership
Qctober 16, 2016

157




APPRAISAL SUMMARY THXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|
Eaatry Hospital - Revizsd Juna 2015

Runnymede Sched (0% affordabe)

Fied Land Cost phis Overage & E400K

Summary Appralsal or Phasn 1

Cwmency in E
REVEMVUE
Salas Wakuation Lingta i Raie M*  UnH Price  Grosa Sales
Private Linas ¥ 2ETTH 3621 24vial 22253 B3
Lisied Building il TS 11,58 135,189 1,351
Tolalx 100 23,844 23,585,535
Ranlal Arga Summary Inlgial NetFent  Inirial
Units i Rabs fit* MRV Init 21 Soke MRY
Cammercal 1 3,800 1000 34000 aand 000
Inweatmant Yaluatian
Tormmencial
Markat Fant 35000 TP 8 000)% 12.5600
P Dyra i LR uik ) 05002 2T B1G
GRO4S DEVELOPMENT VALLE 28521158
Pulchasars Gosls 1A TED)
+13,782)
HET DEVELUPMEMNT ¥ALLIE 23,808,372
Additianal Ravamesg
Gieund Feri Ingome 100300
100,008
NET REALISATION 23,308,372

CHITLAY

This appraisal raport does not conatliute a formal valuation

Prajoct: 184210 - Easiry Haspilal redevalspmeniviBd] 1E -Easly [N afterdabla wils PROFLT: - DSF »2 15% Polzwofy

ARGHS Oevaloper Warsion: T 5000 -2 Bata; 16-Cht-16

158




APPRAISAL SUMMARY DIXON SEARLE PARTHERSHIF!
Eaniry Hoapha! - Revised June 2015
Runnymade S¢harma (0% affordabila)
Flead Lang Cost plus Ovarage § £400%
ACCHNEITION COSTS
Fiked Price 1,705 000
1,700,000
Stamp Chaty 4.00% B&.000
Tomm Plagnning 28000
93,000
Qther Acquisibion
Qiner Acquallon 40, 00
00,000
CONSTRUCTION COSTS
Construction L Bate i Loat
Commaearncial AGTERT 1S8.65 T33,303
Priveng Linies DE G 1AT28pE 11,513,021
Lisked Builthig LpaEf  BAES PR 1191567
Tertal L FFFE 15,642 908 13,842,908
Slalulerwlf 1,B50,000
1,850 500
PFROFESSHIMNAL FEES
ArchRitess 1C0D % 1,534,300
1,364 300
MARKETING & LETTING
Markating 4 [
44,000
DIEPOSAL FEES
Galas Apent Fea 1.50% FIpzas
Lalas Legal Fae q75% 16649
453,947
FINAMCE
Crabar Ree B.500%, Credik Fawe & BO0% (Momingl)
Land J&r, 105
Coanstrctio S RE2
Talal Firinge st 47, 7T
Thi# appesisal report dogs not constihile & fomet valustioe
Friygos. 164110 - Eactity Hospital redweaiopmen|16411E Eaalry [Na afordabla units PROFIT) - DSP vz 15% PoC. wef
ARGUS Detecloper Veraign: 7.50.001 -3 Dade: 16-0l-18

159




APPRAISAL SUMMARY DIXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIF|
Eastry Hosgital - Ravisad Jua 2015

Runpymada Schame (0% affordabla)

Flaad Land Coat plus Cvaraga & E400k

TOTAL COETS 20,762,031
FROFIT
E147 341
Parformance Maasune
Profil on Comi ¥ 15 16%
Prodil on GICAS, 1221%
IRR 2285%

This apprais nipenl doss (ot ool a termal vakeation,

Project 184110 - Eaatry Hospital mdamlopnent 15411 E -Eastry (Mo atardabe unse PROFIT) - D2P vz 15% Pol wih
BRIGS Deuloper Veralon: 750 Y -a- Care: 16-0c1- 14

160




SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS REPOR ‘DIXON EEARLEPAH'I.'HERSHM

Eastry Hosplil - Revised Jung 2015
Rurnmymede Schema (0% affordabie)
Flxed Lard Coat plus Cverags & E40G0k

Sensitivity Analysig results are not available.
Click the Analysis Results tab, then print the report.

This appraiaal rapot doas nat constinete a fonmal veduation.

Frapct: 16411 € -Eaairy (Mo Fartabe unis PROFIT) - DSP «2 15% Polaes T T T
ARGLS Deweloper Wersign: T.50 001 _5-

Reparl Cate. 25-01-16

161




Eastry Hospital - Revised June 2015
Runnymede Scheme (0% affordable)
Fixed Land Cost plus Overage @ £400k

Development Appraisal
Dixan Searle Partnership
October 186, 2016

162




APPRAISAL SUMMARY

DEXON SEARLE FPARTNERSHIP

Eastry Hospital - Revited Juna 2015
Ry mads Sehiems (% affordable)

Flwed Land Goat plua Overaga @ 400k

Fummary Apprakaal for Fhasa 1

Curmancy in €
REEVENLIE
Zales Yaluation Linia
Privahg Units. =11}
Listad Bunkding a0
Tolals 1H
Aartal Ares Summary
LimH
Commertisl 1
|meaBtmat Waluation
Gy ciai
Merhat Rent 38,000
GRO%S DEVELOPMENT YALUE

Furchasars Coals

MET DEVELUPMENT YALUE
Addiend Riranus

Grourvd Rert Ineone
NET REALISATION

OUTLAY

[ig Ramftt  Linll Price
Bg, 775 25621 247041
TS5 184 35 135,380
T

Initled
Ly Raw ftt MRV
A5 10840 8,600
¥R g B0 12.5000
P Byrs ) [T 0802
23,823,154

12,782)
[13,Faz
23,804,972

100,000
TH), K0
23009 312

Thit appraigal repert dogs not constitube A formal valuation.

Groas Salys
22,235,615

1,351 858

23,588,613
MHet Bant

atZaly
8,000

23618

haltlal
MRY
o0

Prejadd: 184110 - Eastry Hespital regavaloamariicd 1E  Easiry (Mo affardabie unis PROFIT) - BSP w3 17 5% Pol woh

ARGLS Daveloper Wersion : 750 (01

.2

Date 16-0cl-26

163




APPRAISAL SUMMARY DIXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|
Eastry Hosphal - Ravised Juns 2015
Runnymade Schema (0% afferdabhe)
Fixed Land Cost plus Overage § £A00k
ACQUIATION COSTS
Fized Frica 1. TTH00
1,770,000
Slamp Duty 4 0% GE.0
Tewart FlARCeY 25,000
92,400
[Hhar Acquisdtion
khar Acouisiion 0. 00
40,004
CONSTRUCTION COSTS
Gt o " Rawe 1t Coal
Crmimencal 43731 1BAGE P 738.243
Privxe Linits 85, TrE v apt 1U3EDN
Lisbed Evldmg 7065 1T D B pf 1,191,583
Tatals B8, 222 T 13,642,958 13,042,008
ranaory'La 1,484,005
1480000
PROFESSHINAL FEES
A hifges 000 1 3&d, 20
1,304,300
MARKETING & LETTING
Marknlirsy &, 000
4 00
DISPOSAL FEES
Sales Agenl Faa 1,800 3%3,208
Sales Legal Fea 0. 75% 164,840
4,547
FINAMCE
Dabil Alala §.500%, Crade Rale 0,000%, [Hariral)
Lard w2 BES
Consiuctan 50,7
Toded F.narce Gl 902 4493
This apprsinak repan doas rot congtiite & formal valuation.
Praject: 164110 - Eaalry Hospital redevaleprenlii B411E Easiry (No alfordable nitg PROFIT] - DEP v3 17 5% Pol welx
BRGUS Dmelopes Varsion: 7 50 001 E. Ciata: 16-Ckct-18

164




AFPRAISAL SUMMARY

DIXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|

Eastry Hospltal - Revissed Junk 2015
Runmymecs Schems (0% affordable)
Flxad Land Cost phus Ovecage £ £400k
TOTAL COSTS
FROFIT
Parfarrmince Measures
Prof on Cost% 1T 51%
Proft on GOWY 1495%

L33 FELAL

This apprainsl repirt doas i conalitula a farmal v,

20,348,603

3.5d2,6T3

Progece. 164110 - Eatiry Hospital redeveioperanlil 5411E «Easiny 1Mo aftordakls umts FROF

ARGUS Developey Verkion: T.50,001

-4

T} - DFP w2 17 5% Pol wots

Dale: 160418

165




SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS REPOR DIXON SEARLE PARTNERSHIP|

Eaatry Hospilal - Ravisad June 2015
Rurimymede Schiema (0% affordable)
Fikgd Land Cost plus Cuerage ) £400K

Sensitivity Analysis ragults are nat available.
Click the Analysis Results tab, then print the raport.

This appraisal report dogs nat canstitvte 2 formal valusten.

ST 12 £y S Sable i PROTY D3 17 S RB i e . e e
ARGLS Daverope: Wersion. 750,001 -5- Repovt Date: 16-0wt-16

166




Appendix 4

Minutes of Planning Committee Meeting of 31 August 2017

Members were shown photographs of the application site. The Planning Consultant advised
that the application sought full planning permission for the redevelopment of the site,
providing 100 dwellings and 568 square metres of commercial and community space. The
site had been allocated for development under Policy LA29 of the LALP which set out a
provision of up to 80 dwellings and 2,000 square metres of commercial floor space at the
site. The scheme therefore proposed a significant uplift to the number of dwellings provided
for in the LALP, and a significant reduction in the amount of commercial space. However, in
respect of the latter, there was more attractive commercial space available elsewhere in the
District (e.g. at the Discovery Park), with better connections to the public transport and

highway networks.

The site contained a number of listed buildings which were in a significant state of disrepair.
The renovation costs involved were considerable, and the applicant had gone to a lot of
trouble to devise sensitive plans for these buildings. The new buildings were of a scale and
form to be expected. The applicant had taken a structured approach to the layout of the
development, with a less dense form of development as buildings moved away from the road

and closer to the countryside.

KCC Highways had raised no objections. Concerns had been raised about visitor parking
provision and how it related to the dwellings. Concerns had also been raised about the
number of vehicular movements which were predicted to be around 60 two-way movements
during peak hours. However, this was not a significant number in the context of Eastry

which was a large and busy village.

A Viability Assessment had been submitted and independently assessed. The applicant
had originally proposed to make no affordable housing contribution but, following advice
from the Council’s assessor that house values had been underestimated, and further
negotiations, a revised offer of 10% affordable housing had been made, as well as
contributions towards play space and SAMMS (Strategic Access Management and

Monitoring Strategies for protected areas).

167



In summary, the Committee was advised that the site, which had been allocated for
development since 2002, would deliver 100 dwellings without the strategic infrastructure
issues of other sites in the District. Whilst the level of affordable housing provision was
disappointing, it was not surprising given the costs involved in renovating/repairing the listed
buildings. Overall, the scheme was well designed, and it was considered that, on balance,

the benefits outweighed any negative factors.

Councillor Gardner expressed concerns that 30% affordable housing would not be delivered,
and conjectured that this was because the applicant had paid too much for the site.

Granting planning permission would send out the wrong message to applicants that
affordable housing did not matter. He proposed that the application should be refused on
this basis. He also raised concerns about the advice received from Southern Water that
there was a lack of capacity in the foul sewage network. Councillor Conolly questioned how
much reliance could be placed upon the Viability Assessment which was now two years out

of date.

The Chairman advised that the applicant would be required to submit drainage details which
would then need to be approved by Southern Water. He also pointed out that some of the
figures submitted with the Viability Assessment were now three years old. The Planning
Consultant clarified that the Viability Assessment had been submitted the previous year and
reviewed in October 2016. It was as a result of the Council’s independent assessment that
the absence of affordable housing provision had been challenged. He appreciated the
concerns raised about drainage. Nevertheless, these could be addressed by conditions.

Surface water would be disposed of by way of a sustainable drainage system which would
not feed into the foul sewage network. In respect of foul sewage, it was for Southern Water

to ensure that there was suitable off-site capacity.

In response to Councillor Butcher, the Planning Consultant clarified that the Chapel would be
renovated for commercial or community use. There was a policy requirement for some
commercial space at the site, and it was easier to convert the Chapel for commercial
purposes than it was for residential. It was clarified that the conversion of The Range would

be the most costly part of the scheme.

Councillor Bond expressed unease that Southern Water would not carry out any
infrastructure upgrades until schemes were complete or nearly so. Schemes such as
Whitfield often had an immediate detrimental impact on the drainage network. Further

information was needed on this and the increased flood risk.

168



The Chairman wondered whether the sewerage infrastructure could be incorporated into a
legally binding Section 106 agreement to ensure it was in place by a certain time. He also
expressed reservations about the lack of any phasing plan to ensure that the renovation of
the listed buildings was carried out. The renovation/preservation of these historic buildings
was probably the most important reason for developing the site after all. Councillor Eddy
agreed that the low level of affordable housing provision was disappointing, particularly in a
semi-rural area like Eastry. He also supported proposals for further clarification on drainage,
details of the proposed conservation of the listed buildings and Eastry Parish Council’s views

on additional traffic.

In response to Members’ queries, the Planning Consultant confirmed that a phasing plan
had been submitted which indicated that the renovation of the listed buildings would happen
in the second phase of the development. A phasing plan could be incorporated into the
Section 106 agreement, and could restrict occupation to the listed building works. Suitable
trigger points would need to be considered. Following discussions with the developer, KCC
Highways had indicated that it was satisfied with the traffic information provided.

Requesting more information would therefore be unreasonable. The layout of the site had
largely been dictated by the position and reinstatement of The Range building. In respect of
drainage, it was not standard procedure to include such matters in a Section 106
agreement. Finally, a reduced time limit could be placed on the development to ensure that

the Viability Assessment remained relevant and to achieve the early delivery of housing.

RESOLVED: That, notwithstanding the Officer's recommendation, Application No
DOV/14/00240 be DEFERRED for the following information: (i) An updated
Viability Assessment and an independent review of that Assessment; (ii)
Clarification from Southern Water on whether there is an increased flood risk;
(iii) Clarification from Southern Water regarding what drainage infrastructure
is required; (iv) Details of the phasing plan for the listed buildings; and (v)
Clarification on the design of the housing in front of the hospital and its

association with that building.

169



	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	5 Items Deferred
	 ITEMS WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO PUBLIC SPEAKING
	Important Information
	Human Rights Information
	Public Speaking at Planning Committee

	6 Application No DOV/17/01098 - 50 and 51 Biggin Street, Dover
	50 and 51 Biggin Street Report

	7 Application No DOV/17/01078 - The Tides, 9 St Margaret's Road, St Margaret's Bay, Dover
	The Tides Report

	8 Application No DOV/17/01107 - 25 Granville Road, Walmer
	Granville Road Report

	9 Application No DOV/17/01165 - Land Between The Chalet and Milner, Claremont Road, Kingsdown
	The Chalet Report

	10 Application No DOV/17/00967 - 5 Alexandra Road, Kingsdown
	Alexandra Road Report

	11 Application No DOV/16/01356 - Land at Monkton Court Lane, Eythorne
	Monkton Court Lane Report
	Monkton Court Lane - Appendix 1
	Monkton Court Lane - Appendix 2

	12 Application No DOV/14/00240 - Eastry Hospital, Mill Lane, Eastry
	Eastry Hospital Report
	Eastry Hospital - Appendix 1
	Eastry Report - Appendix 2
	Eastry Report - Appendix 3
	Eastry Report - Appendix 4


